Ohio Office of Budget
and Management

State of Ohio
Ted Strickland
Governor

!
S

|:>
==t ==
w
=
<3
=
=
= :«>C£
-

|

|
=
| vl [wml |52

Ol ~|l==

=J|—=
===
'z

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDED JUNE 30, 2008



BASIC
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

25



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
Cash Equity with Treasurer...........ccocceeveeeeenns
Cash and Cash Equivalents..........
INVESIMENTS......eiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Collateral on Lent Securities............cccocvvveennen.
Deposit with Federal Government.
Taxes Receivable............cccocccoeenen.
Intergovernmental Receivable..........................
Premiums and

Assessments Receivable.....
Investment Trade Receivable.
Loans Receivable, Net.........ccceeiieiiiiieiiinenns
Receivable from Primary Government..............
Receivable from Component Units
Other Receivables..........cccccvviiiiiiniiieee,
INVENEOTIES. ..ottt
Other ASSELS.......ccoeiiiiiicee e
Restricted Assets:

Cash Equity with Treasurer............ccccceeeneee.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

INVESIMENLS........ooiiiiiiiii e

Collateral on Lent Securities............cccceeenee.

Intergovernmental Receivable...

Loans Receivable, Net...........cccoovveieiiinennen.

Other Receivables..........ccccccooviiiiiiiicnne
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net...
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated....

TOTAL ASSETS.....ooiiiiiiiiieiieeceee e

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable...........ccccoooiiiiiiiiinee
Accrued Liabilities...........coooeviiiiiiniiiciiee e
Medicaid Claims Payable
Obligations Under Securities Lending...............
Investment Trade Payable..............ccccoeeeenienen.
Intergovernmental Payable
Internal Balances..........ccocoeiiieiiiiiiiienesiee e
Payable to Primary Government.......................
Payable to Component Units......
Unearned Revenue....................
Benefits Payable.....................
Refund and Other Liabilities............c.cccccveennnee.
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds and Notes Payable:
Due in ONe Year.......ccccoevieeeiiieeiiie e
Due in More Than One Year
Certificates of Participation:
Due in One Year.......cccooveveviieeiiiic e
Due in More Than One Year........ccccccceeenneee.
Other Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due in ONe Year.......ccccoevieeeiiiee e
Due in More Than One Year.........ccccccuveennnen.

TOTAL LIABILITIES......cciiiiiiiiiiee e,

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS

$ 8,121,369 $ 125,660 8,247,029 3,652,949
124,533 394,326 518,859 1,097,019
1,015,478 16,979,459 17,994,937 6,575,242
3,304,352 40,072 3,344,424 1,099,521

— 427,589 427,589 —

1,697,595 — 1,697,595 —
1,393,488 7,273 1,400,761 57,758

— 3,702,636 3,702,636 —

— 81,315 81,315 —
1,044,323 — 1,044,323 288,186
— — — 40,336

4,014,630 — 4,014,630 —
462,333 449,321 911,654 1,122,668
76,242 37,306 113,548 53,716
111,837 17,374 129,211 594,412
— 105 105 7,155
141,797 1,216 143,013 480,441
392,040 1,497,705 1,889,745 1,299,426

— 307,740 307,740 —
— — — 76
— — — 3,886,554

205,737 4,300 210,037 —
2,459,431 116,249 2,575,680 7,942,041
22,170,333 11,994 22,182,327 1,159,161
46,735,518 24,201,640 70,937,158 29,356,661
604,335 43,503 647,838 461,549
428,736 5,862 434,598 612,505

920,976 — 920,976 —
3,304,352 347,812 3,652,164 1,099,521

— 129,896 129,896 —
1,705,143 924 1,706,067 31,328

816,582 (816,582) — —
— — — 4,014,630

40,151 215 40,366 —
334,976 1,672 336,648 402,298

— 5,395 5,395 —
816,673 93,104 909,777 80,313
1,043,690 16,005 1,059,695 835,371
15,265,187 81,281 15,346,468 5,527,538
9,863 — 9,863 405
177,473 — 177,473 4,670
141,017 2,562,809 2,703,826 1,196,788
540,205 18,593,645 19,133,850 1,298,641
26,149,359 21,065,541 47,214,900 15,565,557

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt...........ccoeoviviiniiiiiiiene
Restricted for:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education....
Transportation and Highway Safety.............
State and Local
Highway Construction.............ccccoeevennen.
Federal Programs..........c.ccccevviieeiiieesieeenee.
Coal Research
and Development Program...............cc......
Clean Ohio Program..........ccccoccveinieeeniieeennns
Community and Economic Development
and Capital Purposes...........cccceevievennnen.
Debt Service.......coovviiiieniciicecc
Enterprise Bond Program.
Deferred Lottery Prizes.......cccccoooeeivieeiiinenn.
Unemployment Compensation.....................
Ohio Building Authority............ccccceiiiiieninnnn.
Nonexpendable for
Colleges and Universities............ccccceenee.
Expendable for
Colleges and Universities
Unrestricted (Deficits)..............
TOTAL NET ASSETS.....coiiiiiiiiiriiieeniee

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS

21,983,900 32,068 22,015,968 5,469,999
41,842 — 41,842 2,573

844,666 — 844,666 —

118,011 — 118,011 —
76,396 — 76,396 22
— — — 6,929

90,485 — 90,485 —
1,420,180 — 1,420,180 4,582
— — — 2,580,256

10,000 — 10,000 —

— 44,126 44,126 —

— 452,082 452,082 —

— 25,558 25,558 —
— — — 3,350,650
— — — 1,972,687
(3,999,321) 2,582,265 (1,417,056) 403,406
20,586,159 $ 3,136,009 $ 23,722,058 $ 13,791,104
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STATE OF

OHIO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL
GRANTS, GRANTS,
CHARGES CONTRIBUTIONS AND CONTRIBUTIONS AND
FOR RESTRICTED RESTRICTED NET
SERVICES, FEES, FINES INVESTMENT INVESTMENT (EXPENSE)
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES AND FORFEITURES INCOME/(LOSS) INCOME/(LOSS) REVENUE
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Primary, Secondary
and Other Education.. 11,304,014 $ 29,479 $ 1,704,781 $ — (9,569,754)
Higher Education Support . 2,729,423 4,049 48,371 — (2,677,003)
Public Assistance and Medicaid .............ccccceoveeeeeieiieeceeee e 16,003,345 1,021,341 10,351,564 — (4,630,440)
Health and Human Services ... 3,651,313 297,356 2,041,821 714 (1,311,422)
Justice and Public Protection .. 3,127,726 879,534 240,751 789 (2,006,652)
Environmental Protection
and Natural RESOUICES..........ccuciriiiiiiicciiiiec s 394,459 202,183 77,998 4,370 (109,908)
Transportation .. 2,078,872 49,141 114,621 1,050,676 (864,434)
General GOVEIMMENL .........coiiiiiiiieieeieeteeeee et et saeesae e e enaeas 746,490 694,492 180,554 1,645 130,201
Community and Economic
Development.........ccciiiiiiiiiiicee e 4,017,838 362,388 363,020 12,115 (3,280,315)
Interest on Long-Term Debt
(excludes interest charged as
Program eXPENSE).........ceeirurieueiirisieeiiiiisiseiesieieseseseieaas 173,934 — — — (173,934)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 44,227,414 3,539,963 15,123,481 1,070,309 (24,493,661)
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Workers' Compensation 2,675,254 2,160,649 719,870 — 205,265
Lottery COMMISSION.........c.ceeiiiiiiiciiiieiiieeee s 1,704,848 2,332,866 88,007 — 716,025
Unemployment COMPENSALON...........ccciiiieiiiiiecie e 1,333,180 1,174,979 21,208 — (136,993)
Ohio Building Authority. 28,117 26,725 802 — (590)
Tuition Trust Authority. 121,673 11,864 47,562 — (62,247)
LiQuUOT CONLIOL......c.cviiiiiiiiiiiice e 460,398 663,830 — — 203,432
Underground Parking Garage............c.ccccoevieiriiinincicccieiienns 2,665 2,782 8 — 125
Office of Auditor of State. 73,225 44,956 25 — (28,244)
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES........cccoovviiiiiiias 6,399,360 6,418,651 877,482 — 896,773
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT......ccoiiiiieiiieiee e 50,626,774 $ 9,958,614 $ 16,000,963 $ 1,070,309 (23,596,888)
COMPONENT UNITS:
School Facilities Commission. 799,861 $ 86,765 $ 98,389 $ — (614,707)
Ohio Water Development Authority. 128,993 146,298 147,444 — 164,749
Ohio State University. 3,922,257 2,743,454 654,682 6,754 (517,367)
university of CINCINNALL.........cccouiiiiiiiciic s 989,155 453,837 232,374 1,228 (301,716)
Other Component UNItS..........ccccoiiiniccnniniciiincnes 4,650,667 2,773,193 463,787 48,325 (1,365,362)
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS. ..ot 10,490,933 $ 6,203,547 $ 1,596,676 $ 56,307 (2,634,403)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:
Net (EXPENSE) REVENUE............rvveeereereeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeseseeeeeeeeenees $ (24,493,661) $ 896,773 $ (23,596,888) $ (2,634,403)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
INCOME....oiiiiiiii s 9,887,502 — 9,887,502 —
.................... 7,863,969 — 7,863,969 —
........................ 1,610,629 — 1,610,629 —
950,646 — 950,646 —
e 1,732,034 — 1,732,034 —
Restricted for Transportation Purposes:
Motor Vehicle FUEBI TaXES........coeeeieieiieeeieeiee e 1,820,336 — 1,820,336 —
TOtAI TAXES. ...ttt 23,865,116 — 23,865,116 —
TODACCO SEHEMENL.........cieeiieieeeeeee ettt 362,897 — 362,897 —
EScheat PrOPertY........ccoiuiiiiriiiiiecei et 185,016 — 185,016 —
Unrestricted Investment Income. 250,293 — 250,293 (183,255)
State ASSISTANCE ......coviiiecieieiiceieeieeee et — — — 2,137,077
Federal......couiviiiiiicci s 2 — 2 —
OENET ... bbb 200 19 219 217,603
Additions to Endowments
and Permanent Fund Principal... — — — 133,647
Transfers-Internal ACtiVitieS.........c..cceeeieiciiccecee s 885,842 (885,842) — —
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES,
CONTRIBUTIONS, SPECIAL ITEMS
AND TRANSFERS. 25,549,366 (885,823) 24,663,543 2,305,072
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS. ...ttt 1,055,705 10,950 1,066,655 (329,331)
NET ASSETS, JULY 1 (@s restated).......cccccevuerueriienienieiiesieeiesieeens 19,530,454 3,125,149 22,655,603 14,120,435
NET ASSETS, JUNE 30....cuttiiiiiiiieiiieircer e $ 20,586,159 $ 3,136,099 $ 23,722,258 $ 13,791,104
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STATE OF OHIO

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
Cash Equity with Treasurer
Cash and Cash Equivalents
INVESTMENTS.....eeiiiiiie et
Collateral on Lent Securities

Taxes Receivable

Intergovernmental Receivable
Loans Receivable, Net
Interfund Receivable
Receivable from Component Units
Other Receivables
INVENTONIES ....veevveeiie e
Other ASSEtS .....ccceeveerieeiieeieee

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable

Accrued Liabilities
Medicaid Claims Payable
Obligations Under Securities Lending
Intergovernmental Payable..
Interfund Payable............cccccceee.
Payable to Component Units
Deferred Revenue
Unearned Revenue
Refund and Other Liabilities
Liability for Escheat Property.
TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCES:

Reserved for:

Debt Service........cccooveiieninnne

Unreserved/Designated

Unreserved/Undesignated:
General Fund...........cccoccvienne
Special Revenue Funds...
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.......

MAJOR FUNDS

JOB, FAMILY AND
OTHER HUMAN

GENERAL SERVICES EDUCATION
3,397,620 310,513 128,550
10,283 2,884 59
601,021 8,266 2,641
1,294,439 120,795 42,162
1,112,695 — —
545,398 345,982 111,411
254,317 — 250
6,615 84 65
166,635 186,782 220
26,295 — —
17,626 2,156 6,185
7,432,944 977,462 291,543
164,460 83,318 20,321
167,716 22,277 2,319
805,179 1,014 —
1,294,439 120,795 42,162
467,150 178,802 54,557
715,117 15,144 2,871
12,815 1,420 1,108
434,175 177,211 7,484
— 232,090 45,622
763,146 5,347 —
7,375 — —
4,831,572 837,418 176,444
386,672 1,031,904 29,155
249,717 — 250
26,295 — —
— 2,782 7,677
81,687 29,101 545
1,012,288 — —
844,713 — _
— (923,743) 77,472
2,601,372 140,044 115,099
7,432,944 977,462 291,543

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BUCKEYE

TOBACCO
SETTLEMENT
FINANCING NONMAJOR
HIGHWAY REVENUE AUTHORITY GOVERNMENTAL
OPERATING DISTRIBUTION REVENUE BONDS FUNDS TOTAL
970,612 $ 220,770 $ — 3% 3,093,304 $ 8,121,369
746 11,279 141,938 99,141 266,330
— — 392,040 403,550 1,407,518
368,684 84,331 — 1,393,941 3,304,352
66,421 509,636 — 8,843 1,697,595
100,213 — — 290,484 1,393,488
102,895 — — 686,861 1,044,323
1,181 116,432 915,531 4,909 1,044,817
— — 4,014,630 — 4,014,630
5,385 — 205,737 103,311 668,070
29,664 — — 20,283 76,242
3,279 — — 6,487 35,733
1,649,080 $ 942,448  $ 5,669,876 $ 6,111,114 $ 23,074,467
143560 $ — 3 — 3 192,676 $ 604,335
28,842 — — 60,141 281,295
— — — 114,783 920,976
368,684 84,331 — 1,393,941 3,304,352
1,584 824,889 — 178,161 1,705,143
93,615 1,106 — 1,033,580 1,861,433
330 — — 24,478 40,151
8,855 22,777 205,469 145,363 1,001,334
— 7,092 — 50,172 334,976
— 47,603 — 1,916 818,012
— — — — 7,375
645,470 987,798 205,469 3,195,211 10,879,382
— — 5,464,267 43,701 5,507,968
1,402,115 — — 2,042,677 4,892,523
100,888 — — 669,916 1,020,771
— — — 104,702 104,702
29,664 — — 20,283 76,242
— 118,012 — — 118,012
11,095 — — 39,207 60,761
7,787 — — 81,968 201,088
— — — — 1,012,288
— — — — 844,713
(547,939) (163,362) — 169,770 (1,387,802)
— — 140 — 140
— — — (256,324) (256,324)
1,003,610 (45,350) 5,464,407 2,915,900 12,195,082
1,649,080 $ 942,448 $ 5,669,876 $ 6,111,111 $ 23,074,464
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STATE OF OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

Total Fund Balances for Governmental FUNGAS.......uviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets is different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are not
reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Buildings and Improvements, net of $1,630,611 accumulated depreciation..............cccccveeevueeene
Land Improvements, net of $200,657 accumulated depreciation................cccvevreeeerieeesiinesineens
Machinery and Equipment, net of $443,767 accumulated depreciation
Vehicles, net of $131,320 accumulated depreciation..............coceeerieeeeiireeseeeseeeesee e seeeeseeeas
Infrastructure, net of $6,916 accumulated depreciation.............cccovveeeiiee e
(O70] 0153 (U Tot o] BT g B e (o £ PP EPRPEI

Some of the State's revenues are collected after year-end but are not available soon enough to
pay for the current period's (within 60 days of year-end) expenditures, and therefore, are deferred
in the funds.

TAXES RECEIVADIE. ... ..ottt et e e e e e e e e e e e ee et aeeeaeeaeeaeeeessaees
Intergovernmental RECEIVADIE..............oiiiiiiii e
Other RECEIVADIES...... ..ottt ettt e e e et et e e e e e e e e e e e e es e e e eeeeeeeaeeesssaees
(@) 1 LT XY= PSP

Unamortized bond issue costs are not financial resources, and therefore, are not reported
in the funds.

The following liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Accrued Liabilities:

INEEIEST PAYADIE..... ettt e et e e e et e e e e e e atbe e e e e e e annnreeeennes
Refunds and Other Liabilities.........cccuiiiiiiiiiiici e
Bonds and Notes Payable:

General Obligation BONGS. .......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit et e e e e e e e s st e e e e s s stbaeeeeeeasaeaeaeeann

REVENUE BONUS.... .ottt e e ettt e e e st b b e e e e e esbb e e e e e s anbneeeeaneee

Special Obligation Bonds
Certificates Of PArtiCIPALION. .......ooiuuiiiiie it e et e e e e snbeee e e e saeneeeas
Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

COMPENSALEA ADSEINCES. .....eeiiieiiiiiiei ettt e e e ettt e e e e e bbb et e e e s abbeeeaeeaanteeeeeeaannnee

Capital Leases PayabIe..........ocuii i

Litigation LIabilitIES. ........ e et

Estimated Claims Payable............oooiiiiiiiei et

Liability fOr ESChEAL PrOPEITY.......coii ittt et e e et e e e e e annneeea s

Total Net Assets of Governmental ACHIVITIES.........ooiiieiiiiiiiie e e eeeaaees

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

12,195,085

1,885,136
1,935,616
199,236
199,401
138,894
18,445,790
1,825,691

24,629,764

386,052
288,587
320,713

5,982

1,001,334

76,104

(147,441)
1,373

(7,310,376)
(6,413,182)
(2,585,319)

(187,336)

(398,311)
(9,804)
(11,303)
(3,787)
(250,642)

(17,316,128)

20,586,159




STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

REVENUES:

INCOME TAXES...eitiiiiieiiiei ittt e e e e
SAIES TAXES..uviiieiiiiiiie e e ettt e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e eaare e e e e
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes..........cccevieieniiieiiiee e

Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes........ccooeveeiiiiiiiie e

CgArette TAXES.....coiiieeiiiiiie it e siee et e et et e e ee e sibeeesetea e e
(01 L= I V(TSP OP PPN
Licenses, Permits and Fees...
Sales, Services and Charges.........cccueeeiieeiiiie s
Federal Government...............

Tobacco Settlement...
Escheat Property........
INVESTMENT INCOME.....ouiiiiiiiieieeeic e eeaeee

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT OPERATING:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education..............c.ccccceeeeueee.
Higher Education SUPPOI........ccoiiiiiiiiieiiie e
Public Assistance and Medicaid..............cccceeeeeeiiiiieeeeeecciieenn.
Health and Human Services...........cccocvvieeeeeiiiiiee e
Justice and Public Protection............ccccceeeeeiiieeeeeecciieeee s
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources..................
TraNSPOTTALION. .....ccitiieiiiieeiiee ettt e e e e saee e
General GOVEIMMENT.........cooiiiiiee e
Community and Economic Development.............cccceevieeeninen.

CAPITAL OUTLAY ..ottt

DEBT SERVICE.........cc.ccccue....

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES..........cccoiiiiiiiiiien,

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bonds and Certificates of Participation Issued....

Premiums/DisScounts..........ccccooiveeiiieeeniieesennn.

Capital Leases...........

Transfers-in......

TrANSTEIS-0UL.....coiiiiiiiiie ettt
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).............

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.........cccocoiiiiiiiieceiee

FUND BALANCES, JUIY Lot

Increase for Changes in INVeNtories. ...........cccevvieriiieesiiieeee,

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30.......cccccveniene

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR FUNDS

JOB, FAMILY AND
OTHER HUMAN

GENERAL SERVICES EDUCATION
8,955,642 — —
7,556,034 — —
1,198,202 — —

950,644 — —
601,557 2,911 —
328,260 484,006 579
51,351 509 447
5,626,381 5,322,652 1,679,458
1,135 — —
137,125 — —
395,408 31,280 5,284
582,672 206,822 27,761
26,384,411 6,048,180 1,713,529
7,735,139 1,614 2,335,627
2,270,998 186 22,258
10,548,380 5,454,677 —
1,277,637 572,830 1,833
2,101,223 51,573 14,703
86,833 — —
22,625 — —
438,076 2,261 —
641,619 45,727 —
10 2,298 —
25,122 540 6,131,166 2,374,421
1,261,871 (82,986) (660,892)
7,998 — —
1,533 — —
496,538 28,991 697,399
(1,424,672) (5,082) (23,193)
(918,603) 23,909 674,206
343,268 (59,077) 13,314
2,255,526 199,121 101,785
2,578 — —
2,601,372 140,044 115,099




BUCKEYE

TOBACCO
SETTLEMENT
FINANCING NONMAJOR
HIGHWAY REVENUE AUTHORITY GOVERNMENTAL
OPERATING DISTRIBUTION REVENUE BONDS FUNDS TOTAL
— 802,907 — 3 7,788 $ 9,766,337
— 285,289 — 22,646 7,863,969
— 1,480,009 — 1,540 2,679,751
645,922 1,128,516 — 45,898 1,820,336
— — — 2 950,646
— 13,859 — 44,586 662,913
68,780 350,650 — 1,057,145 2,289,420
2,545 — — 28,315 83,167
1,104,333 — — 2,007,184 15,740,008
— — 333,135 — 334,270
— — — — 137,125
39,512 2,255 14,893 117,303 605,935
45,574 102 — 335,494 1,198,425
1,906,666 4,063,587 348,028 3,667,901 44,132,302
— 790,601 97,370 1,675 10,962,026
— — — 294,024 2,587,466
— — — — 16,003,057
— 1,968 — 1,738,005 3,592,273
— 318,387 — 640,794 3,126,680
— — — 322,810 409,643
2,056,952 — — 589 2,080,166
— — — 208,437 648,774
— 2,228,982 — 990,381 3,906,709
— — — 545,517 547,825
— — 225,948 1,648,627 1,874,575
2,056,952 3,339,938 323,318 6,390,859 45,739,194
(150,286) 723,649 24,710 (2,722,958) (1,606,892)
— — 5,531,595 675,106 6,214,699
— — (66,825) 24,080 (42,745)
— — — — 1,533
481,553 200,869 — 1,757,680 3,663,030
(217,563) (974,139) (25,073) (107,466) (2,777,188)
263,990 (773,270) 5,439,697 2,349,400 7,059,329
113,704 (49,621) 5,464,407 (373,558) 5,452,437
888,196 4,271 — 3,269,178 6,718,077
1,710 — — 20,283 24,571
1,003,610 (45,350) 5,464,407 $ 2915903 $ 12,195,085
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STATE OF OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances -- Total Governmental Funds............cccccceeeennnie
Change iN INVENTOMIES. .....eeiieiiiieee e a e e e e e e eneeeeeae s

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital Outlay EXPENCItUIES. ......c.uviiiiiieiiiie et 716,613
Depreciation EXPENSE. .......oii ettt e e et e e e e e e e e nneeas (345,128)
Excess of Capital Outlay Over Depreciation EXpense..........cccovceveiiieeenineeenns
Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. In the
current period, proceeds were received from:
General Obligation BONGS. ......c..ooiiiiiiiiei et e e e (268,000)
REVENUE BONGS.........coo ittt e e r e rereeeeaee s (5,791,594)
Special Obligation BONGS........ccooiiiiiiiiia it ieee e e (80,000)
Refunding Bonds, including Bond Premium/Discount, Net...........c.cccoccvvveeennnns —
Certificates Of PartiCipation.............uueiei it (75,105)
Premiums and Discounts, Net:
General Obligation BONS. ........c.coeiiiiiaiiiie e see e e (11,106)
REVENUE BONAS........cco ettt r e reeeeee s 56,507
Special Obligation BONGS.........ccoiiiiiiiie it (1,944)
Certificates of PartiCipation..............ccccovviiiiniininii e, (712)
Deferred RefuNdiNg LOSS.........cuiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt —
CaPital LEASES. .......eiiiiiiiieiie e (1,533)
Total DeDt ProCEEAS. ..o
Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Assets. In the current year, these amounts consist of:
Debt Principal Retirement and Defeasements:
General Obligation BONAS..........coiiuiiiiiiiiiiiee et 535,605
REVENUE BONAS........ccc o e e e e e e e 154,940
Special Obligation BONAS..........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 454,854
Certificates of PartiCipation.............cccoviiveiiieee e 9,320
Capital Lease PaymMeNtS........c.uueiiiiiiiiiii et 10,466
Total Long-Term Debt Repayment............ccooiiiiiiieiiiieeee e

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are deferred in the governmental funds. Deferred revenues increased
by this amount this year.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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5,452,437
24,571
5,477,008

371,485

(6,173,487)

1,165,185

114,784



Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized for
transactions that are not normally paid with expendable available financial
resources. In the Statement of Activities, however, which is presented on the
accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial
resources are available. In addition, interest on long-term debt is not recognized
under the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather than as it
accrues. This adjustment combines the changes in the following balances:

Increase in Bond Issue Costs Included in Other ASSetS.........cccvveveeiiiiieieeennnns 20,978
Increase in Accrued Interest and Other Accrued Liabilities.............c.cccocceeeen. (22,986)
Amortization of Bond Premiums/Accretion of Bond Discount, Net..................... 27,834
Amortization of Deferred Refunding LOSS.........cc.uueiiiiiiiiiiiieieiiee e (23,348)
Decrease in Compensated ADSENCES.........cocuiiiiiiiaiieieiiiee et 51,977
Increase in Litigation Liabilities...........ccceeviieiiiie e (6,605)
Decrease in Estimated Claims Payable...........ccccoiiiiiiiiieee e 4,989
Decrease in Liability for Escheat Property 47,891
Total additional eXPeNditUreS. ..........eeiiiiie i 100,730

Change in Net Assets of Governmental ACtiVitieS........cccccveeiiiiiiiee i $ 1,055,705



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

GENERAL
VARIANCE
WITH
FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET
POSITIVE/
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Income Taxes $ 9,146,500 $ 9,149,200 $ 9,114,735 $ (34,465)
Sales Taxes.... . 7,680,621 7,639,500 7,614,131 (25,369)
Corporate and Public Utility TaXes........cccccceereeriveenieniiieeneens 1,233,306 1,151,106 1,142,408 (8,698)
Motor Vehicle FUel TaXes.........coourieieieriiieiee e — — — —
CIQArette TAXES. . e veeiieerireaieesieeentee st e stee e e stee e e sree e e sneeen 970,000 970,000 950,939 (19,061)
Other TAXES. .. oo iuieiiieiiieeitee ettt e 630,520 620,520 600,290 (20,230)
Licenses, Permits and FEES............ocovvvuviiiieeeiiiciiiiiiiieeeeeeenn 383,466 383,466 342,671 (40,795)
Sales, Services and Charges...........ccceveeriieiieaiee e 38,634 38,634 38,173 (461)
Federal GOVEIMMENt.........uuvviiiieeiiieciiiieiee e 5,876,989 5,672,433 5,711,473 39,040
TOobacco SettlemMEeNt.........o.coiiiiiiiieiiieieee e — — 1,135 1,135
Investment Income... . 180,868 180,868 132,415 (48,453)
O 1,218,557 1,218,557 1,078,231 (140,326)
TOTAL REVENUES.......cooiiiiiiieiie e 27,359,461 27,024,284 26,726,601 (297,683)
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT OPERATING:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education......................... 8,039,965 8,122,205 7,937,398 184,807
Higher Education SUPPOIt........c.ccooiiiiieiieiieiie e 2,464,584 2,468,834 2,370,924 97,910
Public Assistance and Medicaid.. 11,211,005 11,401,005 11,245,785 155,220
Health and Human Services 1,520,566 1,530,498 1,451,396 79,102
Justice and Public Protection..............ccoeevvvveereeeeieeiiiiinenns 2,272,003 2,290,466 2,230,112 60,354
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources............ 136,537 136,855 126,659 10,196
TraNSPOIALION. ....c.veeiiiieitie ettt 37,952 37,952 34,587 3,365
General Government... 797,064 814,082 701,116 112,966
Community and Economic Development 729,852 775,237 763,601 11,636
CAPITAL OUTLAY 122 122 98 24
DEBT SERVICE........coiiiiitiiieie et 1,273,858 1,241,155 1,220,143 21,012
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES.... 28,483,508 28,818,411 28,081,819 736,592
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES....... (1,124,047) (1,794,127) (1,355,218) 438,909
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TrANSTEIS-IN...ciiiiiii e 1,320,345 1,318,566 1,395,388 76,822
TrANSTEIS-0UL....c.eeiiiii et (762,515) (762,515) (786,174) (23,659)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)......... 557,830 556,051 609,214 53,163
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........ccccoiiiiiiieiieiieene $ (566,217) $  (1,238,076) (746,004) $ 492,072
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY Luiiiiiiiiiieiiie et 1,607,476
Outstanding Encumbrances at Beginning of Fiscal Year.. 1,368,069
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30.....cciiiiiiieiiieaieesiee e seeesiee e $ 2,229,541

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JOB, FAMILY AND OTHER HUMAN SERVICES EDUCATION
VARIANCE VARIANCE
WITH WITH
FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
POSITIVE/ POSITIVE/
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE) ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
2,911 —
484,904 579
509 447
3,994,208 1,688,028
30,902 5,187
395,668 37,874
4,909,102 1,732,115
2,665 $ 2,665 1,890 $ 775 $ 2,449,000 $ 2,596,724 2,426,517 $ 170,207
7,985 7,985 1,860 6,125 31,061 32,541 27,511 5,030
5,995,101 6,012,573 5,291,223 721,350 — — — —
762,146 763,851 605,692 158,159 3,575 3,575 2,300 1,275
76,830 95,047 72,347 22,700 35,570 36,020 25,152 10,868
2,260 2,260 1,285 975 — — — —
46,672 46,672 46,604 68 — — — —
26,515 26,526 4,286 22,240 — — — —
6,920,174 $ 6,957,579 6,025,187 $ 932,392 $ 2,519,206 $ 2,668,860 2,481,480 $ 187,380
(1,116,085) (749,365)
3,708 688,099
(6,579) (1,005)
(2,871) 687,094
(1,118,956) (62,271)
(859,939) 83,922
1,065,196 38,121
(913,699) 59,772

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)

HIGHWAY OPERATING

BUDGET

ORIGINAL

FINAL

VARIANCE
WITH
FINAL
BUDGET
POSITIVE/
ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes
Sales Taxes.... .
Corporate and Public Utility TaX€S.......ccocerreriieiiiriieeiieieens
Motor Vehicle FUel TaXES.......cccueiiiiiieiieeiie e
CigArette TAXES...cciuieiieiieeerieeeieeseeenieesteeestee e steeeneeesneeaaee e
OthEr TAXES. .. eeeiiiieiee ettt
Licenses, Permits and FEES..........ueveiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeiiiiieeee e
Sales, Services and Charges.........ccoooeveeieeiieenie e
Federal GOVEIMMENT..........ccciiuiiiiiaie e
Tobacco Settlement........ccoiuiiiiiiie s
Investment Income...

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:

CURRENT OPERATING:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education.............ccccccceeuee. $ — $
Higher Education SUPPOIT.........c.coieriieenieriiieniee e —
Public Assistance and Medicaid
Health and Human Services
Justice and Public Protection —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources —
TraNSPOIALION. ...c..eiiiee i eiee ettt 4,204,113
General Government... —
Community and Economic Development —

CAPITAL OUTLAY —

DEBT SERVICE.......cciiiiiiaiiiiiee et 10,555

5,507,792

10,555

670,044

67,920
2,545
1,148,410

33,984
126,486

2,049,389

3,741,583 1,766,209

10,520 35

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES.... $ 4,214,668 $

5,518,347

3,752,103 $ 1,766,244

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES.........

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TrANSTEIS-IN...eotii e
TrANSTEIS-0UL. ...cueieiie ettt
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)...........

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES...........cccoviiiiiiie,

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY Luiiiiiiiiiiiicisieseeeie et
Outstanding Encumbrances at Beginning of Fiscal Year....

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30.....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieece e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(1,702,714)

482,027

(207,298)

274,729

(1,427,985)

(827,538)

1,667,535

(587,988)



REVENUE DISTRIBUTION

VARIANCE
WITH
FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET
POSITIVE/
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ 725,666
245,945
1,373,179
1,175,922
13,859
508,920
2,229
102
4,045,822
$ 711,992 $ 711,992 706,305 $ 5,687
1,972 1,972 1,972 —
554,483 554,483 496,936 57,547
2,241,584 2,241,584 2,142,890 98,694
$ 3510031 $ 3,510,031 3,348,103 $ 161,928
697,719
673,646
(1,422,544)
(748,898)
(51,179)
259,522

S 208343



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE
JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash Equity With Treasurer..........ccccooververrenieeiieeeeeeenene
Cash and Cash Equivalents...
Collateral on Lent Securities..
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer...
Investments
Collateral on Lent Securities..
Other Receivables..
Deposit with Federal Government...
Intergovernmental Receivable
Premiums and Assessments Receivable....
Investment Trade Receivable...........ccccoovviiniiniiiiciicieens
Interfund Receivable
Other Receivables
Inventories
Other Assets..
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS.

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents..
Investments
Investments
Premiums and Assessments Receivable.
Interfund Receivable
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net....
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS....ccooeiiiieieeneeienen
TOTAL ASSETS..oiiiiiiiieienienteeeee et

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable...........cocooieiiiiiiiiee e
Accrued Liabilities.
Obligations Under Securities Lending...
Investment Trade Payable...........cccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiniec
Intergovernmental Payable
Deferred Prize Awards Payable
Interfund Payable...
Unearned Revenue
Benefits Payable
Payable to Component Units.
Refund and Other Liabilities...
Bonds and Notes Payable.............ccccoveoieiienieniciecee,
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES.....ccccoiiiiiiiceece

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Deferred Prize Awards Payable
Interfund Payable
Benefits Payable
Refund and Other Liabilities...
Bonds and Notes Payable.............ccceoieeienienicniiecee,
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES..
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debit.................

Restricted for Deferred Lottery Prizes

Unrestricted .
TOTAL NET ASSETS....ciiiiiiieieeieie et

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
$ 11,856  $ 81,658 $ —
366,222 10,588 4,617
2,933 31,232 —
— 105 —
— 50,468 —
— 307,740 —
— 4,300 —
— — 427,589
— — 137
996,984 — 17,186
81,315 — —
74,527 — —
384,997 44,431 11,769
2,686 7,188 6,396
1,921,520 537,710 467,694
1,216 — —
— 735,003 —
16,903,409 — —
2,688,466 — —
752,833 — —
102,536 4,389 —
11,994 — —
20,460,454 739,392 —
22,381,974 1,277,102 467,694
7,687 9,349 —
2,933 338,972 —
129,896 — —
— — 509
— 54,873 —
— 5,655 —
— 1,579 —
1,892,226 — 5,395
— 215 —
576,831 42,244 9,708
16,005 — —
2,625,578 452,887 15,612
— 685,315 —
— 2,188 —
15,708,119 — —
1,463,707 2,783 —
81,281 — —
17,253,107 690,286 —
19,878,685 1,143,173 15,612
18,368 4,389 —
— 44,126 —
2,484,921 85,414 452,082
2,503,289 $ 133929 $ 452,082

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL
$ 32,146 § 125,660
12,899 394,326
5,907 40,072
— 105
101,468 151,936
— 307,740
— 4,300
— 427,589
7,136 7,273
— 1,014,170
— 81,315
2,065 76,592
8,124 449,321
37,306 37,306
1,104 17,374
208,155 3,135,079
— 1,216
610,766 1,345,769
76,050 16,979,459
— 2,688,466
7,317 760,150
9,324 116,249
— 11,994
703,457 21,903,303
911,612 25,038,382
26,467 43,503
5,862 5,862
5,907 347,812
— 129,896
415 924
— 54,873
3,118 8,773
93 1,672
74,400 1,972,021
— 215
5,631 634,414
— 16,005
121,893 3,215,970
— 685,315
9,199 11,387
725,400 16,433,519
8,321 1,474,811
— 81,281
742,920 18,686,313
864,813 21,902,283
9,311 32,068
— 44,126
37,488 3,059,905
$ 46,799 $ 3,136,099
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and ServiCes.........ccooeevvevieeieiveciee e, $ — $ 2325140 $ 11,963
Premium and Assessment INCOME..........cocuvveeeeeieeviieeeeeeeenn. 2,138,402 — 1,108,760
Federal GOVEIMMENL..........oiiiiiieeee e — — 18,761
INVESTMENE INCOME.......cciiiiiiiieie e — — —
(@1 1= S OSSP UUPUPTRRRRRPORt 22,247 7,726 34,291
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES............covvviieeeeeeein. 2,160,649 2,332,866 1,173,775
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and SEerviCeS........uuiivieiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e — — —
AAMINISIAION. ....ee e e e 43,042 108,904 —
Bonuses and COMMISSIONS...........ueeviieiieeieieeeiiee e eee e — 143,926 —
PlIZES. . — 1,397,019 —
Benefits and Claims..........cooiiiiiiieeiieieeeee e 2,587,483 — 1,333,000
DePreciation.........oocuii e 11,798 990 —
(@1 1= S UUURRPTRRIIN 32,931 16 180
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES......ccccooeivvviieeeeeeei, 2,675,254 1,650,855 1,333,180
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....cooooviiieeeerrressennn, (514,605) 682,011 (159,405)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INVESTMENT INCOMEB.....iiiiiiii e 719,870 88,007 22,412
INtErESt EXPENSE...cciiviiieiiiiiie et — (15,214) —
Federal Grants..........ccoooiiiiiiiieiiiee e — — —
OtNEI ... — (38,779) —
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)...... 719,870 34,014 22,412
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS.........ccoociiieeiiiiennn 205,265 716,025 (136,993)
TRANSFERS:
TrANSTEIS-IN...ciiiieee e — — 3,519
TranSTErS-0UL......ccoiiiiiiiiiie e (7,522) (672,519) (22,808)
TOTAL TRANSFERS.......coiiii e (7,522) (672,519) (19,289)
NET INCOME (LOSS).....eieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeenenens 197,743 43,506 (156,282)
NET ASSETS, JULY 1 (as restated)......ccccceevvvereerncinnrennnne. 2,305,546 90,423 608,364
NET ASSETS, JUNE 30.....ccoiiiiiiiiiiee e $ 2,503,289 $ 133929 $ 452,082

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL
$ 746,518 $ 3,083,621
— 3,247,162
— 18,761
(23,638) (23,638)
74,839 139,103
797,719 6,465,009
488,432 488,432
81,754 233,700
— 143,926
— 1,397,019
110,940 4,031,423
2,943 15,731
1,668 34,795
685,737 6,345,026
111,982 119,983
810 831,099
(40) (15,254)
25 25
(282) (39,061)
513 776,809
112,495 896,792
43,713 47,232
(230,225) (933,074)
(186,512) (885,842)
(74,017) 10,950
120,816 3,125,149
$ 46,799 $ 3,136,099
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from CUSIOMETS. .......cocuiiiiiiiiiiie ittt $ — $ 2,323,038 $ —
Cash Received from Premiums and ASSESSMENTS.........c.ccoueerveereesiieerinnanieenes 2,467,854 — 1,115,723
Cash Received from Multi-State Lottery for Grand Prize Winner.................... — 111,152 —
Cash Received from Interfund Services Provided.........cccooeeeeeeeviviiiiiiiiiieneeeees 70,311 1,822 —
Other Operating Cash RECEIPLS.......cciiiiiiieiiieie ittt 32,489 5,904 32,524
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services.. (63,120) (82,287) (32)
Cash Payments to Employees for SEerviCes..........cccouiiiiiiieeiiieeiie e (244,568) (25,298) —
Cash Payments for Benefits and Claims...........ccooceeiieiiienin i (2,237,987) — (1,187,002)
Cash Payments for LOEIY PriZeS.........cocioiiiiiieiie e — (1,480,621) —
Cash Payments for Bonuses and COMMISSIONS.........ccouearuiereieneeaiieesieanieees — (144,062) —
Cash Payments for Premium Reductions and Refunds...........cccccceeeviieeennnen. (127,852) — —
Cash Payments for Interfund Services Used.............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiicnice, (12,711) (3,989) —
Other Operating Cash Payments............ccociiiiiiiiiiiiiicee e — (16) (51,999)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES . ....ooieiveieeeeeeeeeseeteseeeeees s (115,584) 705,643 (90,786)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers-in ..... — — 3,619
Transfers-out (7,522) (672,519) (22,808)
FEABIAI GraNnTS......coieieiiieii ettt ettt sen e b sane e — — —
NET CASH FLOWS (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......coivirieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneneen, (7,522) (672,519) (19,289)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments on Bonds and Capital Leases.........ccccccveevieveiiieeerieeeenns (15,055) — —
INterest Paid ........coovveeeeiiiieeiiie e (5,291) — —
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (9,521) (2,831) —
Principal Receipts on Capital Leases Receivable.............cccceveeeiviiieenienennnns — — —
Proceeds from Sales of Capital ASSELS ........ccceeeiiireeiiiieiiiie e 120 193 —
NET CASH FLOWS (USED) BY
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES......cccoovevieeiienene (29,747) (2,638) —
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESIMENTS........c..uiiiiiiieiie e (7,667,843) (155,484) (1,103,092)
Proceeds from the Sales and Maturities of Investments ... 7,023,339 108,274 1,217,104
Investment INCOME RECEIVED .........ccocuviieiiiieieeeere e 859,795 39,447 60
Borrower Rebates and AgeNt FEES......cccuuiiiiiiiieiiiie et (12,623) (15,401) —
DUE 10 STALE....ceeieiee e — 5,562 —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES.....coiiiiieeeeeree et 202,668 (17,602) 114,072
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS............... 49,815 12,884 3,997
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 ..iiiiiiieieeieeeeee e 329,479 79,467 620
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 ...ccceoiitieriiiiieenreeieesre e $ 379,294  $ 92,351 % 4,617

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY
FUNDS TOTAL

733290 $ 3,056,328

— 3,583,577
— 111,152
2,010 74,143
14,149 85,066
(482,957) (628,396)
(92,396) (362,262)
— (3,424,989)
— (1,480,621)
— (144,062)
— (127,852)
(2,946) (19,646)
(109,346) (161,361)
61,804 561,077
43,553 47,072
(230,225) (933,074)
27 27
(186,645) (885,975)
(2,696) (17,751)
(31) (5,322)
(1,131) (13,483)
2,259 2,259
26 339
(1,573) (33,958)
(1,518,848) (10,445,267)
1,599,064 9,947,781
31,886 931,188
— (28,024)
— 5,562
112,102 411,240
(14,312) 52,384
59,357 468,923
45,045 $ 521,307
(continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

(continued)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (LOSS).....ccueiiuriatieiiiieniee et e siee bt et e e e siee et e e sbe e sineesbeesaneens
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
INVESTMENT INCOME......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e
DEPIECIATION ....eeeiii ettt ettt sttt st be e b e e be e nbe e sbeeenbeesaeeeneeens
Provision for Uncollectible ACCOUNTS..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiecie e
Amortization of Premiums and DiSCOUNTS.........cccceeieiirieiiieenee e
Interest on Bonds, Notes and Capital Leases...........cccoceereeeieeiiieeneesieenne
Miscellaneous Nonoperating (Revenues) EXpenses.........ccocovevveenieeseeennnn.
Decrease (Increase) in Assets:
Deposit with Federal GOVErnmMENt...........coocvveiiiiieiiieeeeeeeeee e
Intergovernmental Receivable..............c.cccooiiiiiiiiii
Premiums and Assessments Receivable..............cccocoeiiiiiiiiiiiiniieenns
Interfund Receivable................occoiiiiiiiii i,
Other Receivables ...
INVENTOTIES ...ttt ettt e e
OLNEI ASSELS ..ttt
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
ACCOUNES Payable ............ccooiiiiiiiiicii e
Accrued Liabilities........cocviiiiiiiii e
Intergovernmental Payable................coooiiiiiiiiii e,
Deferred Prize Awards Payable...............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiice
Interfund Payable...........cccoooiiiiiii e
Unearned REVENUE ..........cccuiiiiiiiiiiii e
Benefits Payable..........ccooiiii e
Refund and Other Liabilities...........cccooiiiiiiiieee s

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ...t

NONCASH INVESTING,
CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in Fair Value of INVeSIMENTS.........ccoiiiiiieiiieie e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
$ (514,605) $ 682,011 $ (159,405)

11,798 990 —
96,690 — —
(735) — —
5,291 — —
(5,687) — —
— — 72,361
— — 3,751
150,581 — (5,400)
60,394 — —
(110,392) (2,689) (1,781)
450 (658) 1,387
(1,778) (1,683) —
_ — (492)
— 20,611 —
— (386) —
— 586 —
187,680 — 939
4,729 6,861 (2,146)
$ (115,584)  $ 705,643  $ (90,786)
$ 143510 $ 80,922 $ —



NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL
111,982 $ 119,983
23,638 23,638
2,943 15,731
— 96,690
71 (664)
— 5,291
— (5,687)
— 72,361
(884) 2,867
— 145,181
236 60,630
234 (114,628)
161 161
(182) 997
(4,893) (8,354)
219 219
(23) (515)
— 20,611
(785) (1,171)
85 671
— 188,619
(70,998) (61,554)
61,804 $ 561,077
— 3 224,432
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
Cash Equity With Treasurer..........cccoooeuveveee e
Cash and Cash Equivalents.............cccccvvereeiiiiieee e
Investments (at fair value):
U.S. Government and Agency Obligations........................
Common and Preferred Stock
Corporate Bonds and Notes
Foreign Stocks and Bonds...........ccccoiviiiiiiiiiniiiieee e
Commercial Paper..........coccuviiieiiiiiiiiee e
Repurchase Agreements........c..eeeeeeeiiiieeiee s
Mutual Funds
REAI EStAte.....cciiiiiiiiie et
Venture Capital........cccvveeeiiiiiiiiiie e
Direct Mortgage LOANS. ......occuueeeeeiiiiieiiee e
Partnership and Hedge Funds
State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio).........
Collateral on Lent SECUNLIES.......cuveirveeeriieeiiiee e
Employer Contributions Receivable.............cccocooiiiiiiiiinnen.n.
Employee Contributions Receivable
Interfund Receivable.............cccccoiiiii .
Other ReceivabIles..........coooviiiiiiiiiie e
Other ASSELS....ci it
Capital ASSEtS, NEL......uviiiiiiciiiiie e

TOTAL ASSETS. ...

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable..........ccceoiiiiiiie e
Accrued Liabilities. ...
Obligations Under Securities Lending...........ccccceveeviiivneeeennn.
Deferred Retirement Option Plan...........ccoccoeiiiiiiiniennes
Intergovernmental Payable............ccccccoeeiiiieiieiicciiiee e,
Refund and Other Liabilities. ...

TOTAL LIABILITIES......cooiiiiiiiiiii e

NET ASSETS:
Held in Trust for:
Employees' Pension Benefits........ccccocvvvvieiiiiiiien i,
Employees' Postemployment Healthcare Benefits.............
Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments...........
POOI PartiCipants...........cooiiiiiiiiiiieiee e

TOTAL NET ASSETS.....cciiiiiiiiii e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PRIVATE-
PENSION PURPOSE INVESTMENT
TRUST TRUST TRUST
STATE HIGHWAY
PATROL
RETIREMENT VARIABLE
SYSTEM COLLEGE
(as of 12/31/07) SAVINGS PLAN STAR OHIO
— $ — $ —
12,226 81,399 —
— — 3,346,875
211,261 — —
13,369 — —
— — 1,130,358
— — 11,896
430,426 5,106,293 469,313
51,108 — —
121,074 — —
94,654 — —
1,546 — _
1,087 — —
730 16,540 1,170
10 — —
937,491 5,204,232 4,959,612
1,334 — —
1,459 6,091 _
94,654 — —
5,631 — —
709 13,299 1,564
103,787 19,390 1,564
718,779 — —
114,925 — _
— 5,184,842 —
— — 4,958,048
833,704 $ 5,184,842 $ 4,958,048




AGENCY

274,850
185,495

13,515,476
62,950,056
13,473,128
40,904,191
5,321,367
7,994,207
15,119,939
6,967,485
13,392,839
100,461
105,005

34
1,288
449,058

180,754,879

105,005
145,142
180,504,732

180,754,879
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

PRIVATE-
PENSION PURPOSE INVESTMENT
TRUST TRUST TRUST
STATE HIGHWAY
PATROL
RETIREMENT
SYSTEM VARIABLE
(for the fiscal year COLLEGE
ended 12/31/07) SAVINGS PLAN STAR OHIO
ADDITIONS:
Contributions from:
EMPIOYET ..ottt $ 24,233  $ — —
EMPIOYEES. ... e 8,901 — —
Plan PartiCipants............ccovciuviieeiiiiiiiee e sciiee e seiieee e — 1,460,560 —
[©1 = S USRI 719 — —
Total ContribBULIONS........ooiviieiieeee e 33,853 1,460,560 —
Investment Income:
Net Appreciation (Depreciation)
in Fair Value of Investments............ccoeeeevivveieievieeeeennnnn. 53,547 (963,314) —
Interest, Dividends and Other.............ccccooveveviiie i, 19,584 388,827 193,999
Total Investment INCOME..........cceeiiiiiiiiii e 73,131 (574,487) 193,999
Less: Investment Expense 11,544 37,179 4,180
Net Investment INCOME............eiiiiiiiiiee e 61,587 (611,666) 189,819
Capital Share and Individual Account Transactions:
Shares SOId........uveiiiiiiii e — — 17,241,773
Reinvested Distributions.............coviviviiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeves — — 189,820
Shares Redeemed..........ccccveeiiiiiiiiei i — — (16,336,029)
Net Capital Share and Individual Account Transactions...... — — 1,095,564
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ... .ottt 95,440 848,894 1,285,383
DEDUCTIONS:
Pension Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries........ 44,677 — —
Healthcare Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries.... 10,354 — —
Refunds of Employee Contributions......... 99 — —
Administrative EXpPense............ccccvveeeeens 702 — —
Transfers to Other Retirement Systems 331 — —
Distributions to Shareholders and Plan Participants............ — 1,194,920 189,820
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS.....coiiiiiiiiieiiiie e 56,163 1,194,920 189,820
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD FOR:
Employees' Pension Benefits........cccooceieeiiiiiiiinie e 34,198 — —
Employees' Postemployment Healthcare Benefits............... 5,079 — —
Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments............. — (346,026) —
POOI PartiCipants...........coueiiiiiieiie i — — 1,095,563
TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS....cocooiiiiiieeiiieeee 39,277 (346,026) 1,095,563
NET ASSETS, JULY 1 (as restated)........cccccevvvreniecennnennn 794,427 5,530,868 3,862,485
NET ASSETS, JUNE 30.....ccciiiiiiniiiiiniiie e $ 833,704 $ 5,184,842 4,958,048

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)
MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

OHIO WATER
SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT OHIO
FACILITIES AUTHORITY STATE
COMMISSION (as of 12/31/07) UNIVERSITY
ASSETS:

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash Equity with Treasurer.. $ 3,630,349 $ 12 $ —
Cash and Cash Equivalents. — 32,163 386,518
Investments — 47,419 516,401
Collateral on Lent Securities. 1,093,224 — —
Intergovernmental Receivable.... — 245 666
Loans Receivable, Net 1,537 1,885 11,350
Receivable from Primary Government. 200 — 5,972
Other Receivables 10 108 458,385
Inventories — — 25,434
Other Assets . 38 — 37,675

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS [ 4,725,358 81,832 1,442,401
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Assets:

Cash Equity with Treasurer 2,573 — —

Cash and Cash Equivalents. — 463,325 —

Investments — 778,281 —

Intergovernmental Receivable.... — 76 —
Loans Receivable, Net... . — 3,886,554 —
Investments — 26,994 2,178,654
Loans Receivable, Net... 5,956 40,594 60,816
Other Receivables — 4,745 9,384

Other Assets ' — 46,636 —

Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net.... 24 1,273 2,581,527
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated. 777 539 342,506
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS. 9,330 5,249,017 5,172,887
TOTAL ASSETS 4,734,688 5,330,849 6,615,288
LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable... 12,744 49,520 173,404
Accrued Liabilities... 387 12,873 347,402
Obligations Under Securmes Lendlng 1,093,224 — —
Intergovernmental Payable... 1,077,081 787 —
Unearned Revenue........... — — 168,535
Refund and Other Liabilities. 1,105 — 34,875
Bonds and Notes Payable.... . — 201,875 509,068
Certificates of Participation — — 405
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES. ..c.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiececie s 2,184,541 265,055 1,233,689
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Intergovernmental Payable... 642,487 — —
Unearned Revenue........ — — —
Refund and Other Liabilities. 600 180 212,283
Payable to Primary Government. 4,014,630 — —
Bonds and Notes Payable.... . — 2,283,822 538,945
Certificates of Participation — — 4,670
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES.... 4,657,717 2,284,002 755,898
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,842,258 2,549,057 1,989,587
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt...........ccccevverrieiiiinnins 24 1,812 1,847,935
Restricted for:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education.. 2,573 — —

Federal Programs
Coal Research and Development Program...
Community and Economic Development and Capltal Purposes......... —
Debt Service . — 2,580,256 —
Nonexpendable:
Scholarships and Fellowships...
Research
Endowments and Quasi-Endowments... — — 1,228,922
Loans, Grants and Other College and University Purposes........... — — —
Expendable:
Scholarships and Fellowships........ccoovvvviieiiiiiiienie e — — —
Research — — —
Instructional Department Uses
Student and Public Services
Academic Support.
Debt Service........
Capital Purposes.
Endowments and Quasi- Endowments
Current Operations.............ccoeevreerervennas
Loans, Grants and Other College and University Purposes..
Unrestricted (Deficits)........

(2,110,167) 199,724 1,018,197

TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICITS).. $ (2,107,570) $ 2,781,792  $ 4,625,701

'5F e notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



UNIVERSITY NONMAJOR
OF COMPONENT
CINCINNATI UNITS TOTAL

— % 22588 $ 3,652,949
89,445 588,893 1,097,019
53,916 1,074,639 1,692,375
— 6,297 1,099,521
— 56,847 57,758
3,266 17,533 35,571
92 34,072 40,336
82,335 381,848 922,686
2,001 26,281 53,716
5,531 55,299 98,543
236,586 2,264,297 8,750,474
— 4,582 7,155
— 17,116 480,441
— 521,145 1,299,426
— — 76
— — 3,886,554
1,164,569 1,512,650 4,882,867
33,282 111,967 252,615
55,887 129,966 199,982
400,877 48,356 495,869
1,220,925 4,138,292 7,942,041
249,541 565,798 1,159,161
3,125,081 7,049,872 20,606,187
3,361,667 9,314,169 29,356,661
59,039 166,842 461,549
71,328 180,515 612,505
— 6,297 1,099,521
— 5,268 1,083,136
40,429 225,808 434,772
42,823 114,015 192,818
56,608 67,820 835,371
_ — 405
270,227 766,565 4,720,077
— 8,325 650,812
— 6,652 6,652
209,994 218,121 641,178
_ — 4,014,630
875,619 1,829,152 5,527,538
— — 4,670
1,085,613 2,062,250 10,845,430
1,355,840 2,828,815 15,565,557
457,218 3,163,010 5,469,999
— — 2,573
— 22 22
— 6,929 6,929
_ 4,582 4,582
— — 2,580,256
139,516 123,430 262,946
97,680 2,586 100,266
622,918 644,139 2,495,979
389,446 102,013 491,459
50,306 182,779 233,085
114,223 20,475 134,698
33,439 172,919 206,358
45,155 16,815 61,970
32,973 140,857 173,830
13 8,814 8,827
18,992 93,979 118,942
120,236 31,888 322,934
11,056 108,010 472,932
12,763 226,348 239,111
(140,107) 1,435,759 403,406
2,005827 $ 6,485,354 $ 13,791,104
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands]

EXPENSES:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education
Community and Economic Development
Cost of Services
Administration
Education and General:
Instruction and Departmental Research
Separately Budgeted Research
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Scholarships and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprises
Hospitals........ccccoevveeennneen.
Interest on Long-Term Debt

Depreciation

PROGRAM REVENUES:

Charges for Services, Fees, Fines and Forfeitures............

Operating Grants, Contributions

and Restricted Investment Income
Capital Grants, Contributions

and Restricted Investment Income

TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES
NET PROGRAM (EXPENSE) REVENUE

GENERAL REVENUES:

ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS) TO ENDOWMENTS

AND PERMANENT FUND PRINCIPAL
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated).............

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS), JUNE 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

OHIO WATER
DEVELOPMENT
SCHOOL AUTHORITY OHIO
FACILITIES (for the year ended STATE
COMMISSION 12/31/07) UNIVERSITY
799,855 $ — —
— 113,071 —
— 11,364 —
— — 817,146
— — 391,987
— — 121,565
— — 135,720
— — 86,829
— — 166,172
— — 115,107
— — 71,260
— — 220,682
— — 1,526,253
— 395 42,437
6 117 213,594
— 4,046 13,505
799,861 128,993 3,922,257
86,765 146,298 2,743,454
98,389 147,444 654,682
— — 6,754
185,154 293,742 3,404,890
(614,707) 164,749 (517,367)
— 6,218 (141,558)
97,370 — 556,384
— 19 2,316
97,370 6,237 417,142
— — 59,108
(517,337) 170,986 (41,117)
(1,590,233) 2,610,806 4,666,818
(2,107,570) 2,781,792 4,625,701




UNIVERSITY NONMAJOR
OF COMPONENT
CINCINNATI UNITS TOTAL

— 29,905 829,760

— 27,827 27,827

— — 113,071

— — 11,364
283,503 1,481,502 2,582,151
157,843 186,909 736,739
57,247 134,908 313,720
63,944 404,127 603,791
37,722 216,819 341,370
87,404 428,892 682,468
63,560 302,512 481,179
23,630 201,731 296,621
78,163 569,950 868,795
— 286,021 1,812,274
41,264 74,295 158,391
88,040 274,038 575,795
6,835 31,231 55,617
989,155 4,650,667 10,490,933
453,837 2,773,193 6,203,547
232,374 463,787 1,596,676
1,228 48,325 56,307
687,439 3,285,305 7,856,530
(301,716) (1,365,362) (2,634,403)
— (47,915) (183,255)
239,105 1,244,218 2,137,077
5,235 210,033 217,603
244,340 1,406,336 2,171,425
37,668 36,871 133,647
(19,708) 77,845 (329,331)
2,025,535 6,407,509 14,120,435
2,005,827 6,485,354 13,791,104




STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE1l SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Ohio, as of June 30, 2008, and for the year then ended, conform with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles, which are
included in the GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. The State’s significant
accounting policies are as follows.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The State of Ohio’s primary government includes all funds, elected officials, departments and agencies, bureaus, boards,
commissions, and authorities that make up the State’s legal entity. Component units, legally separate organizations for which
the State’s elected officials are financially accountable, also comprise, in part, the State’s reporting entity. Additionally, other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete should be included in a government’s
financial reporting entity.

GASB Statement No. 14 (GASB 14), The Financial Reporting Entity, defines financial accountability. The criteria for
determining financial accountability include the following circumstances:

e appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing authority and the ability of the primary government to
either impose its will on that organization or the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government, or

e an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government.

1. Blended Component Units

The Ohio Building Authority, the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority, and the State Highway Patrol Retirement
System are legally separate organizations that provide services entirely, or almost entirely, to the State or otherwise
exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefit the State. Therefore, the State reports these organizations’ balances and
transactions as though they were part of the primary government using the blending method.

2. Discretely Presented Component Units

The component units’ columns in the basic financial statements include the financial data of another 28 organizations. The
separate discrete column labeled, “Component Units,” emphasizes these organizations’ separateness from the State’s primary
government. Officials of the primary government appoint a voting majority of each organization’s governing board.

The primary government has the ability to impose its will on the following organizations by modifying or approving their
respective budgets or through policy modification authority.

School Facilities Commission

Cultural Facilities Commission

eTech Ohio Commission

Ohio Air Quality Development Authority
Ohio Capital Fund

The following organizations impose or potentially impose financial burdens on the primary government.

Ohio Water Development Authority
Ohio State University

University of Cincinnati

Ohio University

Miami University

University of Akron

Bowling Green State University
Kent State University

University of Toledo

Cleveland State University
Youngstown State University
Wright State University

Shawnee State University

Central State University

Terra State Community College
Columbus State Community College
Clark State Community College
Edison State Community College
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE1] SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Southern State Community College
Washington State Community College
Cincinnati State Community College
Northwest State Community College
Owens State Community College

The School Facilities Commission, Cultural Facilities Commission, and eTech Ohio Commission, which are governmental
component units that use special revenue fund reporting, do not issue separately audited financial reports.

Information on how to obtain financial statements for the State’s component units that do issue their own separately audited
financial reports is available from the Ohio Office of Budget and Management.

3. Joint Ventures and Related Organizations
As discussed in more detail in NOTE 18, the State participates in several joint ventures and has related organizations. The
State does not include the financial activities of these organizations in its financial statements, in conformity with GASB 14.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements — The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information about the
primary government (the State) and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities.

Fiduciary funds of the primary government and component units that are fiduciary in nature are reported only in the statements
of fiduciary net assets and changes in fiduciary net assets.

For the government-wide financial statements, eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the State. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-
type activities are financed in whole, or in part, by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

The Statement of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. The State presents the statement in a format that displays assets less liabilities equal net
assets. Net assets section is displayed in three components:

e The Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. The portion of debt attributable to significant unspent related
debt proceeds at year-end is not included in the calculation of this net assets component.

e The Restricted Net Assets component represents net assets with constraints placed on their use that are either 1.)
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 2.) imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. For component units with permanent endowments, restricted net
assets are displayed in two additional components — expendable and nonexpendable. Nonexpendable net assets are
those that are required to be retained in perpetuity.

e The Unrestricted Net Assets component consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of the preceding two
components.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the
State’s governmental activities and for the different business-type activities of the State. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular program or function.
Centralized expenses have been included in direct expenses. Indirect expenses have not been allocated to the programs or
functions reported in the Statement of Activities.

Generally, the State does not incur expenses for which it has the option of first applying restricted or unrestricted resources for
their payment.

Program revenues include licenses, permits and other fees, fines, forfeitures, charges paid by the recipients of goods or
services offered by the programs, and grants, contributions, and investment earnings that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including
all tax, tobacco settlement, escheat property revenues, unrestricted investment income, and state assistance, are presented
as general revenues.
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE1] SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about the State’s funds, including the fiduciary
funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary
— are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed
in a separate column. All remaining governmental and proprietary funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Governmental fund types include the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds. The proprietary funds
consist of enterprise funds. Fiduciary fund types include pension trust, private-purpose trust, investment trust, and agency
funds.

Operating revenues for the State’s proprietary funds mainly consist of charges for the sales and services and premium and
assessment income since these revenues result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the
respective enterprise fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Investment income and revenue from the federal government for extended unemployment benefits are also reported
as operating revenues for the Unemployment Compensation Fund, since these sources provide significant funding for the
payment of unemployment benefits — the fund’s principal activity. Investment income for the Tuition Trust Authority Fund is
also reported as operating revenue, since this source provides significant funding for the payment of tuition benefits.
Nonoperating revenues for the proprietary funds result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities; nonoperating
revenues are primarily comprised of investment income and federal operating grants.

Proprietary fund operating expenses principally consist of expenses for the cost of sales and services, administration, bonuses
and commissions, prizes, benefits and claims, and depreciation. Nonoperating expenses principally consist of interest expense
on debt and the amortization of discount on deferred lottery prize liabilities, which is reported under “Other” nonoperating
expenses.

The State reports the following major governmental funds:

General — The General Fund, the State’s primary operating fund, accounts for resources of the general government, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Job, Family and Other Human Services Special Revenue Fund — This fund accounts for public assistance programs primarily
administered by the Department of Job and Family Services, which provides financial assistance services, and job training to
those individuals and families who do not have sufficient resources to meet their basic needs.

Education Special Revenue Fund — This fund accounts for programs administered by the Department of Education, the Ohio
Board of Regents, and other various state agencies, which prescribe the State’s minimum educational requirements and which
provide funding and assistance to local school districts for basic instruction and vocation and technical job training, and to the
State’s colleges and universities for post-secondary education.

Highway Operating Special Revenue Fund — This fund accounts for programs administered by the Department of
Transportation, which is responsible for the planning and design, construction, and maintenance of Ohio’s highways, roads,
and bridges and for Ohio’s public transportation programs.

Revenue Distribution Special Revenue Fund — This fund accounts for tax relief and aid to local government programs, which
derive funding from tax and other revenues levied, collected, and designated by the State for these purposes.

Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for the payment
of principal and interest on the revenue bonds issued to fund long-lived capital projects at State-supported institutions of higher
education and to pay the State’s share of the cost of rebuilding elementary and secondary school facilities across the State.

The State reports the following major proprietary funds:

Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund — This fund accounts for the operations of the Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation and the Ohio Industrial Commission, which provide workers’ compensation insurance services.

Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund — This fund accounts for the State’s lottery operations.

Unemployment Compensation Enterprise Fund — This fund, which is administered by the Ohio Department of Job and Family
Services, accounts for unemployment compensation benefit claims.

The State reports the following fiduciary fund types:
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Pension Trust Fund — The State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund accounts for resources that are
required to be held in trust for members and beneficiaries of the defined benefit plan. The financial statements for the State
Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund are presented for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund — The Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for trust arrangements under which principal and
income benefit participants in the Variable College Savings Plan, which is administered by the Tuition Trust Authority.

Investment Trust Fund — The STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund accounts for the state-sponsored external investment pool,
which the Treasurer of State administers for local government participants.

Agency Funds — These funds account for the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources held on
behalf of individuals, private organizations, and other governments.

The State reports the following major component unit funds:

The School Facilities Commission accounts for grants that provide assistance to local school districts for the construction of
school buildings.

The Ohio Water Development Authority, Ohio State University, and University of Cincinnati funds are business-type activities
that use proprietary fund reporting. The financial statements for the Ohio Water Development Authority, which provides
financial assistance to local governments for the construction of wastewater and sewage facilities, are presented for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007. The Ohio State University Fund accounts for the university’s operations, including its health
system, supercomputer center, agricultural research and development center, and other legally separate entities subject to the
control of the university’s board. The University of Cincinnati Fund accounts for the university’s operations, including its
related foundation.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Enterprise Fund, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — The State reports the government-wide
financial statements and the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

The State recognizes revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like
transactions when the exchange takes place. When resources are received in advance of the exchange, the State reports the
unearned revenue as a liability.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the State gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in
exchange, include derived taxes, grants, and entitlements. The revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities
resulting from nonexchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.

Under the accrual basis, the State recognizes assets from derived tax revenues (e.g., personal income, sales, and motor
vehicle fuel taxes) in the fiscal year when the exchange transaction on which the tax is imposed occurs or when the resources
are received, whichever occurs first. The State recognizes derived tax revenues, net of estimated refunds and estimated
uncollectible amounts, in the same period that the assets are recognized, provided that the underlying exchange transaction
has occurred.

Revenue from grants and entitlements is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Resources transmitted in advance of the State meeting eligibility requirements are reported as unearned revenue.

Investment income includes the net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments.

As permitted by GAAP, all governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds have elected not to apply Financial
Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — The State reports governmental funds using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. The State considers revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available when the
revenues are collectible within 60 days after year-end or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period.
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Significant revenue sources susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of accounting include:

Personal income taxes

Sales and use taxes

Motor vehicle fuel taxes
Charges for goods and services
Federal government grants
Tobacco settlement

Investment income

The State recognizes assets from derived tax revenues (e.g., personal income, sales, and motor vehicle fuel taxes) in the
fiscal year when the exchange transaction on which the tax is imposed occurs or when the resources are received, whichever
occurs first. The State recognizes derived tax revenues, net of estimated refunds and estimated uncollectible amounts, in the
same period that the assets are recognized, provided that the underlying exchange transaction has occurred and the revenues
are collected during the availability period.

For revenue arising from exchange transactions (i.e., charges for goods and services), the State defers revenue recognition
when resources earned from the exchange are not received during the availability period and reports unearned revenue when
resources are received in advance of exchange.

The governmental funds recognize federal government revenue in the period when all applicable eligibility requirements have
been met and resources are available. Resources transmitted in advance of the State meeting eligibility requirements are
reported as unearned revenue. The State defers revenue recognition for reimbursement-type grant programs if the
reimbursement is not received during the availability period.

Investment income includes the net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments.

Licenses, permits, fees, and certain other miscellaneous revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are
not measurable until received in cash. The “Other” revenue account is comprised of refunds, reimbursements, recoveries, and
other miscellaneous income.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term
debt, capital lease obligations, compensated absences, and claims and judgments. The governmental funds recognize
expenditures for these liabilities to the extent they have matured or will be liquidated with expendable, available financial
resources.

General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. Proceeds from general long-term
debt issuances, including refunding bond proceeds, premiums, and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources while discounts and payments to refunded bond escrow agents are reported as other financing uses.

D. Budgetary Process
As the Ohio Revised Code requires, the Governor submits biennial operating and capital budgets to the General Assembly.

The General Assembly approves operating appropriations in annual amounts and capital appropriations in two-year amounts.

The General Assembly enacts the budget through passage of specific departmental line-item appropriations, the legal level of
budgetary control. Line-item appropriations are established within funds by program or major object of expenditure. The
Governor may veto any item in an appropriation bill. Such vetoes are subject to legislative override.

The State’s Controlling Board can transfer or increase a line-item appropriation within the limitations set under Sections 127.14
and 131.35, Ohio Revised Code.

All governmental funds are budgeted except the following activities within the debt service and capital projects fund types:

Improvements General Obligations
Highway Improvements General Obligations
Development General Obligations
Highway General Obligations
Public Improvements General Obligations
Vietnam Conflict Compensation

General Obligations
Economic Development Revenue Bonds
Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bonds
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Revitalization Project Revenue Bonds

Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority
Revenue Bonds

Chapter 154 Special Obligations

School Building Program Special Obligations

Ohio Building Authority Special Obligations

Transportation Certificates of Participation

OAKS Certificates of Participation

STARS Certificates of Participation

OAKS Project

STARS Project

For budgeted funds, the State’s Ohio Administrative Knowledge System controls expenditures by appropriation line-item, so at
no time can expenditures exceed appropriations and financial-related legal compliance is assured. The State uses the
modified cash basis of accounting for budgetary purposes.

The Detailed Appropriation Summary by Fund Report is available for public inspection at the Ohio Office of Budget and
Management and on its web site at www.obm.ohio.gov/SectionPages/FinancialReporting. This Summary provides a more
comprehensive accounting of activity on the budgetary basis at the legal level of budgetary control.

In the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary
Basis) — General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds, the State reports estimated revenues and other financing sources
and uses for the General Fund only; the State does not estimate revenue and other financing sources and uses for the major
special revenue funds or its budgeted nonmajor governmental funds.

Additionally, in the non-GAAP budgetary basis financial statement, “actual” budgetary expenditures include cash
disbursements and outstanding encumbrances, as of June 30.

The State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, the Variable College Savings Plan Private-Purpose Trust
Fund, and the STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund are not legally required to adopt budgets. For budgeted proprietary funds,
the State is not legally required to report budgetary data and comparisons for these funds. Also, the State does not present
budgetary data for its discretely presented component units.

Because the State budgets on a modified cash basis of accounting, which differs from GAAP, NOTE 3 presents a
reconciliation of the differences between the GAAP basis and non-GAAP budgetary basis of reporting.

E. Cash Equity with Treasurer and Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equity with Treasurer consists of pooled demand deposits and investments carried at fair value. The State’s cash pool
under the Treasurer of State’s administration has the general characteristics of a demand deposit account whereby additional
cash can be deposited at any time and can also be effectively withdrawn at any time, within certain budgetary limitations,
without prior notice or penalty.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts on deposit with financial institutions and cash on hand. The cash and cash
equivalents account also include investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition for
the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund.

Cash equity with Treasurer and cash and cash equivalents, including the portions reported under “Restricted Assets,” are
considered to be cash equivalents, as defined in GASB Statement No. 9, for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.

Additional disclosures on the State’s deposits can be found in NOTE 4.

F. Investments

Investments include long-term investments that may be restricted by law or other legal instruments. With the exception of
certain money market investments, which have remaining maturities at the time of purchase of one year or less and are
carried at amortized cost, and holdings in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) investment pool, the State
reports investments at fair value based on quoted market prices. STAR Ohio operates in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7
of the Investment Company Act of 1940; investments in the 2a7-like pool are reported at amortized cost (which approximates
fair value).

The colleges and universities report investments received as gifts at their fair value on the donation date.

The primary government does not manage or provide investment services for investments reported in the Agency Fund that
are owned by other, legally separate entities that are not part of the State of Ohio’s reporting entity.
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Additional disclosures on the State’s investments can be found in NOTE 4.

G. Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable represent amounts due to the State at June 30, which will be collected sometime in the future. In the
government-wide financial statements, revenue has been recognized for the receivable. In the fund financial statements only
the portion of the receivable collected during the 60-day availability period has been recognized as revenue while the
remainder is recorded as deferred revenue. Additional disclosures on taxes receivable can be found in NOTE 5.

H. Intergovernmental Receivable

The intergovernmental receivable balance is primarily comprised of amounts due from the federal government for
reimbursement-type grant programs. Advances of resources to recipient local governments before eligibility requirements
have been met under government-mandated and voluntary nonexchange programs and amounts due for exchanges of State
goods and services with other governments are also reported as intergovernmental receivables. Additional details on the
intergovernmental receivable balance can be found in NOTE 5.

I. Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost. Principal inventory cost methods applied include first-in/first-out, average cost, moving-
average, and retail.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the State recognizes the costs of material inventories as expenditures when
purchased. Inventories do not reflect current appropriable resources in the governmental fund financial statements, and
therefore, the State reserves an equivalent portion of fund balance.

J. Restricted Assets
The primary government reports assets restricted for the payment of deferred lottery prize awards, revenue bonds, and tuition
benefits in the enterprise funds.

Generally, the component unit funds hold assets in trust under bond covenants or other financing arrangements that legally
restrict the use of these assets.

K. Capital Assets

Primary Government

The State reports capital assets purchased with governmental fund resources in the government-wide financial statements at
historical cost, or at estimated historical cost when no historical records exist. Donated capital assets are valued at their
estimated fair value on the donation date. The State does not report capital assets purchased with governmental fund
resources in the fund financial statements. Governmental capital assets are reported net of accumulated depreciation, except
for land, construction-in-progress, transportation infrastructure assets, and individual works of art and historical treasures,
including historical land improvements and buildings. Transportation infrastructure assets are reported using the “modified
approach,” as discussed below, and therefore are not depreciable. Individual works of art and historical treasures, including
historical land improvements and buildings, are considered to be inexhaustible, and therefore, are not depreciable.

The State reports capital assets purchased with enterprise fund resources and fiduciary fund resources in the government-
wide and the fund financial statements at historical cost, or at estimated historical cost when no historical records exist.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the donation date. Capital assets, except for land and
construction-in-progress, are reported net of accumulated depreciation.

The State has elected to capitalize its transportation infrastructure assets, defined as bridges, general highways, and priority
highways, using the modified approach. Under this approach, the infrastructure assets are not depreciated because the State
has committed itself to maintaining the assets at a condition level that the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) has
determined to be adequate to meet the needs of the citizenry. Costs of maintaining the bridge and highway infrastructure are
not capitalized. New construction that represents additional lane-miles of highway or additional square-footage of bridge deck
area and improvements that add to the capacity or efficiency of an asset are capitalized.

ODOT maintains an inventory of its transportation infrastructure capital assets, and conducts annual condition assessments to
establish that the condition level that the State has committed itself to maintaining is, in fact, being achieved. ODOT also
estimates the amount that must be spent annually to maintain the assets at the desired condition level.

For its other types of capital assets, the State does not capitalize the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add
to an asset’s value or materially extend its useful life. Costs of major improvements are capitalized. Interest costs associated
with the acquisition of capital assets purchased using governmental fund resources are not capitalized, while those associated
with acquisitions purchased using enterprise and fiduciary fund resources are capitalized.
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The State does not capitalize collections of works of art or historical treasures that can be found at the Governor’s residence,
Malabar Farm (i.e., Louis Bromfield estate), which the Ohio Department of Natural Resources operates, the Ohio Arts Council,
the State Library of Ohio, and the Capitol Square Review and Advisory Board for the following reasons:

e The collection is held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service rather than for financial
gain.

e The collection is protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved.

e The collection is subject to an organizational policy that requires the proceeds from sales of collection items to be used to
acquire other items for collections.

The State has established the following capitalization thresholds:

BUildings .....coveieieiieiieee e $15,000
Building Improvements ............. 100,000
Land, including easements All, regardless of cost
Land Improvements .................. 15,000
Machinery and Equipment 15,000
Vehicles.......oooveeeeiieeieeeeeeee 15,000
Infrastructure:

Highway Network ............cccoccvenne. 500,000

Bridge Network..........ccccceevnvnennne 500,000

Park and Natural

Resources Network....................... All, regardless of cost

For depreciable assets, the State applies the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

BUildings ....ooveviveieieieeieneie 20-45 Years
Land Improvements 10-30 Years
Machinery and Equipment ............... 3-15 Years
VehiCIES.......ocoveveiiieeiecieecieee e 5-15 Years
Park and Natural Resources

Infrastructure Network .................. 10-50 Years

NOTE 8 contains additional disclosures about the primary government’s capital assets.

Discretely Presented Component Unit Funds

The discretely presented component unit funds value all capital assets at cost and donated fixed assets at estimated fair value
on the donation date. They apply the straight-line method to depreciable capital assets. Additional disclosures about the
discretely presented component unit funds’ capital assets can be found in NOTE 8.

L. Medicaid Claims Payable
The Medicaid claims liability, which has an average maturity of one year or less, includes an estimate for incurred, but not
reported claims.

M. Noncurrent Liabilities

Government-wide Financial Statements — Liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one year are reported in two
components — the amount due in one year and the amount due in more than one year. Additional disclosures as to the
specific liabilities included in noncurrent liabilities can be found in NOTES 10 through 15.

Fund Financial Statements — Governmental funds recognize noncurrent liabilities to the extent they have matured or will be
liquidated with expendable, available financial resources.

The proprietary funds and component unit funds report noncurrent liabilities expected to be financed from their operations.

N. Compensated Absences

Employees of the State’s primary government earn vacation leave, sick leave, and personal leave at various rates within limits
specified under collective bargaining agreements or under law. Generally, employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of 3.1
hours every two weeks for the first five years of employment, up to a maximum rate of 9.2 hours every two weeks after 25
years of employment. Employees may accrue a maximum of three years vacation leave credit. At termination or retirement,
the State pays employees, at their full rate, 100 percent of unused vacation leave, personal leave, and, in certain cases,
compensatory time and 50 to 55 percent of unused sick leave.
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Such leave is liquidated in cash, under certain restrictions, either annually in December, or at the time of termination from
employment.

For the governmental funds, the State reports the compensated absences liability as a fund liability (included in the “Accrued
Liabilities” account as a component of wages payable) to the extent it will be liquidated with expendable, available financial
resources. For the primary government’s proprietary funds and its discretely presented component unit funds, the State
reports the compensated absences liability as a fund liability included in the “Refund and Other Liabilities” account.

The State’s primary government accrues vacation, compensatory time, and personal leaves as liabilities when an employee’s
right to receive compensation is attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employee will be
compensated through paid time off or some other means, such as at termination or retirement.

Sick leave time that has been earned, but is unavailable for use as paid time off or as some other form of compensation
because an employee has not met a minimum service time requirement, is accrued to the extent that it is considered to be
probable that the conditions for compensation will be met in the future.

The State’s primary government accrues sick leave using the vesting method. Under this method, the liability is recorded on
the basis of leave accumulated by employees who are eligible to receive termination payments, as of the balance sheet date,
and on leave balances accumulated by other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such
payments.

Included in the compensated absences liability is an amount accrued for salary-related payments directly and incrementally
associated with the payment of compensated absences upon termination. Such payments include the primary government’s
share of Medicare taxes.

For the colleges and universities, vacation and sick leave policies vary by institution.

O. Fund Balance
Fund balance reported in the governmental fund financial statements is classified as follows:

Reserved
Reservations represent balances that are not appropriable or are legally restricted for a specific purpose. Additional details on
“Reserved for Other” balances are disclosed in NOTE 17.

Unreserved/Designated
Designations represent balances available for tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Unreserved/Undesignated
Unreserved/undesignated fund balances are available for appropriation for the general purpose of the fund.

P. Risk Management

The State’s primary government is self-insured for claims under its traditional healthcare plans and for vehicle liability while it
has placed public official fidelity bonding with a private insurer. The State self-funds tort liability and most property losses on a
pay-as-you-go basis; however, selected state agencies have acquired private insurance for their property losses. While not
the predominant participants, the State’s primary government and its discretely presented component units participate in a
public entity risk pool, which is accounted for in the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund, for the financing of their
respective workers’ compensation liabilities. These liabilities are reported in the governmental funds under the “Interfund
Payable” account. (See NOTE 7).

Q. Interfund Balances and Activities

Interfund transactions and balances have been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements to the extent that
they occur within either the governmental or business-type activities. Balances between governmental and business-type
activities are presented as internal balances and are eliminated in the total column. Revenues and expenses associated with
reciprocal transactions within governmental or within business-type activities have not been eliminated.

In the fund financial statements, interfund activity within and among the three fund categories (governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary) is classified and reported as follows:

Reciprocal interfund activity is the internal counterpart to exchange and exchange-like transactions. This activity includes:
Interfund Loans — Amounts provided with a requirement for repayment, which are reported as interfund receivables in lender

funds and interfund payables in borrower funds. When interfund loan repayments are not expected within a reasonable time,
the interfund balances are reduced and the amount that is not expected to be repaid is reported as a transfer from the fund
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that made the loan to the fund that received the loan.

Interfund Services Provided and Used — Sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for a price approximating
their external exchange value. Interfund services provided and used are reported as revenues in seller funds and as
expenditures or expenses in purchaser funds. Unpaid amounts are reported as interfund receivables and payables in the fund
balance sheets or fund statements of net assets.

Nonreciprocal interfund activity is the internal counterpart to nonexchange transactions. This activity includes:

Interfund Transfers — Flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a requirement for repayment. In
governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing
sources in the funds receiving transfers.

Interfund Reimbursements — Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the funds that
initially paid for them. Reimbursements are not displayed in the financial statements.

Details on interfund balances and transfers are disclosed in NOTE 7.

R. Intra-Entity Balances and Activities

Balances due between the primary government and its discretely presented component units are reported as receivables from
component units or primary government and payables to component units or primary government. For each major component
unit, the nature and amount of significant transactions with the primary government are disclosed in NOTE 7.

Resource flows between the primary government and its discretely presented component units are reported like external
transactions (i.e., revenues and expenses).

S. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 2 RESTATEMENTS AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND STANDARDS

A. Restatements
Restatements of net assets, as of June 30, 2007, for the primary government and component units that resulted from prior
period adjustments for corrections of errors are presented in the following tables (dollars in thousands).

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Buzinszz-Typs Total Primary

Activitisz Government Component Unitz

Met Azzetz, a2 of Juns 30, 2007, A= Previously Reported. o 53,126,531 E22 656 085 E14 125 356
Corrections that IncregzedfDecreszed) Net Azzets:

Moncurrent Ligbiltiss. ..o 1,382} (1,382} -

O Capital FUM. ..o - - (=221}

Total Corrections, Het e (1,382} (1,352} (o221}

Met Asestz, July 1, 2007, Az Reatated ..o 53,125,148 522855803 514120 435

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements:
Inweztment
Trust

Met Aszzetz, az of Juns 30, 2007, A2 Previously Repori e, e e 3,918 623

Changes i R Or i B ettt e me e et s e e e e e e et e s e mmneen (57,138}

R et N T U e 1t T - U 53,852 405
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Discretely Presented Component Units Fund Financial Statements:

Monmajor Total Componsnt
Cormponent Unitz Unitz
Met Azzetz, a2 of Juns 30, 2007, A2 Previoushy Reported e 26,412 830 214125 556
Correcifons that Incregzed{Decreszed) Wetl Azzslz:
MO CAPT] UM ..o e e e e e e e e (5,421} (5,421}
= Ty (2,221} (=221}
Met Aseets, July 1, 2007, A2 RERIAISH e e e e e 25,407, 508 14120 435

B. Implementation of Recently Issued
Accounting Pronouncements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the State implemented the provisions of

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future
Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures - an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27.

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.

. Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 56, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in the AICPA Statements on Auditing Standards.

GASB 45 establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB expenses/expenditures and related
liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and if applicable, required supplementary information (RSI) in the financial reports of state
and local governmental employers.

GASB 48 establishes the criteria for reporting transactions as revenue or as a liability, whereby an interest in the government’s
expected cash flows from collecting specific receivables or specific revenues are exchanged for immediate cash payments,
generally a single lump sum. This Statement also includes guidance to be used for recognizing other assets and liabilities
arising from a sale of specific receivables or future revenues, including residual interests and recourse provisions.

GASB 50 establishes and modifies requirements related to financial reporting by pension plans and by employers that provide
defined benefit and defined contribution pensions. It amends note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI)
standards of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined
Contribution Plans, and No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, to conform with
applicable changes adopted in Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension
Plans, and No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

GASB 55 incorporates the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments into
GASB authoritative literature. The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles used in the preparation of
financial statements of state and local governmental entities that are presented in conformity with GAAP, and the framework
for selecting those principles.

GASB 56 incorporates into the GASB authoritative literature, certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statements on Auditing Standards. This Statement addressed three
issues not included in the authoritative literature that establishes accounting principles - related party transactions, going
concern considerations, and subsequent events. The Statement does not establish new accounting standards but rather
incorporates the existing guidance into the GASB standards to the extent appropriate in a governmental environment.
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GASB Technical Bulletin No. 2008-1 clarifies the requirements of Statements 27 and 45 for calculating the annual required
contribution (ARC) adjustment. Specifically, this Technical Bulletin applies to situations in which the actuarial valuation
separately identifies the actual amount that is included in the ARC related to the amortization of past employer contribution
deficiencies or excess contributions to a pension or other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan (the known amount).

C. Recently Issued GASB Pronouncements

In November 2006, the GASB issued Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations. The requirements of GASB 49 are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15,
2007. This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting standards for pollution remediation obligations, which are
obligations to address the current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation
activities such as site assessments and cleanups.

In June 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets. The
requirements of GASB 51 are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. The objective of this
Statement is to establish accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets to reduce inconsistencies
among state and local governments, thereby enhancing the comparability of the accounting and financial reporting of such
assets among state and local governments.

In November 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments.
The provisions of GASB 52 are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2008. This Statement
establishes consistent standards for the reporting of land and other real estate held as investments by similar entities. It
requires endowments to report their land and other real estate investments at fair value. Additionally, governments are
required to report the changes in fair value as investment income and to disclose the methods and significant assumptions
employed to determine fair value, and other information that they currently present for their investments reported at fair value.

In June 2008, the GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. The
requirements of GASB 53 are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. This Statement addresses the recognition,
measurement, and disclosure of information regarding derivatives instruments entered into by state and local governments.
This Statement describes the methods of evaluating effectiveness such as consistent critical terms method and more
quantitative methods such as synthetic instrument method, dollar-offset method, and regression analysis method. A key
provision of this Statement is that derivative instruments covered in its scope, with the exception of synthetic guaranteed
investment contracts that are fully benefit-responsive, are reported at fair value.

In February 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The
provisions of GASB 54 are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2010. The objective of this
Statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can
be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. This Statement establishes fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe
constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

Management has not yet determined the impact that the new GASB pronouncements will have on the State’s financial
statements.

NOTE 3 GAAP versus NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS

In the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP
Budgetary Basis) — General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds, actual revenues, transfers-in, expenditures,
encumbrances, and transfers-out reported on the non-GAAP budgetary basis do not equal those reported on the GAAP basis
in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Major Governmental Funds.

This inequality results primarily from basis differences in the recognition of accruals, deferred revenue, interfund transactions,
and loan transactions, and from timing differences in the budgetary basis of accounting for encumbrances. On the non-GAAP
budgetary basis, the State recognizes encumbrances as expenditures in the year encumbered, while on the modified accrual
basis, the State recognizes expenditures when goods or services are received regardless of the year encumbered.

Original budget amounts in the accompanying budgetary statements have been taken from the first complete appropriated
budget for fiscal year 2008. An appropriated budget is the expenditure authority created by appropriation bills that are signed
into law and related estimated revenues. The original budget also includes actual appropriation amounts automatically carried
over from prior years by law, including the automatic rolling forward of appropriations to cover prior-year encumbrances.
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Final Budget amounts represent original appropriations modified by authorized transfers, supplemental and amended
appropriations, and other legally authorized legislative and executive changes applicable to fiscal year 2008, whenever signed
into law or otherwise legally authorized.

For fiscal year 2008, no excess expenditures over appropriations were reported in individual funds.

A reconciliation of the fund balances reported under the GAAP basis and budgetary basis for the General Fund and the major
special revenue funds is presented on the following page.
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Primary Government

Reconciliation of GAAP Basis Fund Balances to Non-GAAP Bucdgetary Basis Fund Balances
For the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds

As of June 30, 2008
(dallarz in thouzandzs)

Total Fund Balances - GAAPBaziz e
Le=s: Reserved Fund Balances .o
Le=s: Designatsd Fund Balances e
Unrezerved/Undezignated Fund Balances —
GAAP BagI® e
BASIS DIFFERENCES
Revenues Accrualzffdivztments:
Cazh Equity with Treazursr .
Taxes Beceivable e
Interaovernmental Receivable .
Loans Receivable, MNst ...
Interfund Receivable .
Other Receivables e
Deferred Revenue ...
Unsarned REVENUS e
Total Revenue AccrualslAdjustmemts e

Expenditure Accrualz/Adjustmenta:
Cazh Equity with TrEaSuUrsr e
IMYEMONES e
Other fesets
Accountz Pavable o
Accrusd Ligbilfiss e
liedicaid Claimz Payable ...
Intergovernmental Pavabls .o
Interfund Pavable o
Pavable to Campensnt Unitz
Refund and Other Liabiltiss ..o
Ligkilitw for Ezcheat Property o
Total Expenditure AccrualzrAdjustments ...
Other Adjuztmentz:
Fund Balance Reclazsifications:
Fram Unrezervsd (Mon-GAAP Budastary Basiz)
to Reserved for:
Moncurrent Portion of Loans Receivabls
INWEMTONIES e
Stats and Local Highway Construction ...
Federal Programs
DT e
Fram Undszignated (Non-GAAP
Budaostary Basiz) to Designated ...
Cazh and Investmentz Held
Cutzide of State Treasuny o
O e
Total Other Adjustments

Total Baziz DNIFTErences e
TIMING DIFFERENCES
Encumbrances ...
Budastarny Fund Balances (Deficitz) —
Mon-GAAP BaSi® e

ldajor Special Revenus Funds

Job, Family, and

Oth=r Human Highweay Revenus

General SEryvices Education Cperating Diztribution
2,60 372 140,044 115,088 51,003,610 (545,350}
T44 371 1,063,787 3T 62T 1,551,540 118,012
1.012.285 - - - -
B4 T13 023, 743) 77472 (G4T D30 (163,362)
(60,565} 7024y (18,192} (7,540} (12 428}
(1,112,605} - - (65,421} (500,636)
(545,305) (345,8952) {111,411} (100,213} -
(254 317) - (250} (102,855) -
5,615} (B4} (B85} 1,181} (116,432}
(166,635) (185,782} Z20} (5,385) -
434 175 177,211 T A5d 8,855 F2ITT
- 232,080 45,622 - 7082
(1,712,150} (131,471} 77,032} (274,788} (805,827}
(5,124} (S,108) (752} (12,6831} -
(26,205) - - (2D 664) -
(17,525} (2,158} (8,185} (3,270} -
154 455 &3,3158 20,315 143,551 -
167,715 22277 238 28,842 -
205,170 1,014 - - -
487 150 178,802 L4 BEY 1,584 G24 B0
715117 15,144 2,871 83815 1,106
12,814 1,420 1,108 330 -
783,148 534y - - A7 603
7375 - - - -
2804 o141 207,058 T4.238 27358 &13,508
240 71T - 250 100,888 -
25,285 - - 20 664 -
- - - - 118,011
- 2782 7877 11,085 -
&1,687 2010 Gdg 7787 -
1,012,285 - - - -
(511,304} (11,150} (2,700} (745} (11,270}
- 2 4 [} Z
756,583 20,735 5775 148 667 106,734
2,041 444 186,322 2,080 05,256 371,705
(656,616) (176,278} (20,580} (136,305) -
o2 770 5d (2513650} 258772 (Z557 865} S205.343
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A. Legal Requirements

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasurer of State and the State Board of Deposit are governed by the Uniform
Depository Act, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, which requires state moneys to be maintained in one of the following three
classifications:

Active Deposits — Moneys required to be kept in cash or near cash status to meet current demands. Such moneys must be
maintained either as cash in the State’s treasury or in any of the following: a commercial account that is payable or about the
be withdrawn, in whole or in part, on demand, a negotiable order of withdrawal account, a money market deposit account or a
designated warrant clearance account.

Inactive Deposits — Those moneys not required for use within the current two year period of designation of depositories.
Inactive moneys may be deposited or invested only in certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current
period of designation of depositories.

Interim Deposits — Those moneys not required for immediate use, but needed before the end of the current period of
designation of depositories. Interim deposits may be deposited or invested in the following instruments:

e US Treasury Bills, notes, bonds or other obligation or securities issued by or guaranteed as to principal and interest
by the United States;

e Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any federal government agency or
instrumentality;

e Bonds and other direct obligations of the State of Ohio issued by the Treasurer of State and of the Ohio Public
Facilities Commission, the Ohio Building Authority, and the Ohio Housing Finance Agency;

e Commercial paper issued by any corporation that is incorporated under the laws of the United States or a state, and
rated at the time of purchase in the two highest rating categories by two nationally recognized rating agencies;

o Written repurchase agreements with any eligible Ohio financial institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve
System or Federal Home Loan Bank, or any recognized U.S. government securities dealer in the securities
enumerated above;

e No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of securities and repurchase agreements enumerated
above;

e Securities lending agreements with any eligible financial institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System
or Federal Home Loan Bank, or any recognized U.S. government securities dealer;

e Bankers’ acceptances maturing in 270 days or less;

e Certificates of deposit in the eligible institutions applying for interim moneys, including linked deposits, as authorized
under Sections 135.61 to 135.67, Ohio Revised Code, agricultural linked deposits, as authorized under Sections
135.71 to 135.76, Ohio Revised Code, and housing linked deposits, as authorized under Sections 135.81 to 135.87,
Ohio Revised Code;

e The Treasurer of State’s investment pool, as authorized under section 135.45, Ohio Revised Code;

e Debt interest, other than commercial paper as enumerated above, of corporations incorporated under the laws of the
United States or a state, of foreign nations diplomatically recognized by the United States, or any instrument based
on, derived from, or related to such interests that are rated at the time of purchase in the three highest categories by
two nationally recognized rating agencies, and denominated and payable in U.S. funds; and

e Obligations of a board of education, as authorized under Section 133.10, Ohio Revised Code.

The reporting entity’s deposits must be held in insured depositories approved by the State Board of Deposit and must be fully
collateralized. However, in the case of foundations and other component units of the colleges and universities, deposits of
these entities are not subject to the legal requirements for deposits of governmental entities.

Deposits and investment policies of certain individual funds and component units are established by Ohio Revised Code
provisions other than the Uniform Depository Act and by bond trust agreements. In accordance with applicable statutory
authority, the State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, the Tuition Trust Authority Enterprise Fund, the
Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund, the Retirement Systems Agency fund, and the higher education institutions may also
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invest in common and preferred stocks, domestic and foreign corporate and government bonds and notes, mortgage loans,
limited partnerships, venture capital, real estate and other investments.

B. State-Sponsored Investment Pool

The Treasurer of State is the investment advisor and administrator of the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio),
a statewide external investment pool authorized under Section 135.45, Ohio Revised Code. STAR Ohio issues a stand-alone
financial report, copies of which may be obtained by making a written request to: Director of Investments, Treasurer of State,
30 East Broad Street, 9" Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215, by calling (614) 466-2160, or by accessing the Treasurer of State’s
website at www.ohiotreasurer.org.

C. Deposit and Investment Risks

Although exposure to risks is minimized by complying with the legal requirements explained above and internal policies
adopted by the Treasurer of State and the investment departments at the various state agencies, the State’s deposits and
investments are exposed to risks that may lead to losses of value.

The following risk disclosures report investments by type. The “U.S. Agency Obligations” category includes securities issued
by federal government agencies and instrumentalities, including government sponsored enterprises.

1. Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits exists when a government is unable to recover deposits or recover collateral securities that
are in the possession of an outside party in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution.

Deposits of the primary government and its component units are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by
depository insurance, and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the
depositor-government’s name.

In Ohio, legal requirements for depositor-governments are met when deposits are collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution, or by the pledging institution’s trust department or agent but not in the government’s name. The
State’s reporting entity has not established specific policies for managing custodial credit risk exposure for deposits.

The table below reports the carrying amount of deposits, as of June 30, 2008, held by the primary government, including
fiduciary activities, and its component units and the extent of exposure to custodial credit risk.

Custodial credit risk for investments exists when a government is unable to recover the value of investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party in the event of a failure of a counterparty to a transaction.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the
government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department but not in the government’s name.

The State’s reporting entity has not established specific policies for managing custodial credit risk exposure for investments.

Primary Govermment (inclucding Fiduciarny Activities) and Component Units
Deposits—Custodial Crecht Risk
As of June 30, 2008
(dellarz in thouzandz}

Uninzured Portion of Reported Bank Balance

Collatsralized with
Securities Held by
the Plsdaging
Inztitution'z Truzt  Collateralized

Departmesnt or with
Laent but not in Securities
the Depositor- Held by the
Carnsing Bank Government's Pledaing
Anrmount Balance Uncollateraliz=d Hams In=titution
Primary Government ..o Z045 Ddg 013,747 310,741 260,775 Ly
Component Unite oo &56,108 §o4.818 25,300 813,383 88,808
Total Deposits — Reporting Entity . 51.814.054 51 008885 230.04 21.074.135 200.083
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The following tables report the fair value, as of June 30, 2008, of investments by type for the primary government, including
fiduciary activities, and its component units, and the extent of exposure to custodial credit risk (dollars in thousands).

Primary Government (including Fiduciary Acfivifies) and Component Units
Ihvestments—Custodial Credit Risk
As of June 30,2008 Uningursd,
(dollar in thousands) Unregiztersd, and
Held by the
Countsrpary’s Trust
Departmentor Agsnt

[nvestments for the Primary Governiment but not in the Stat="s
(ineluding Fiduciary Acfivities), as of June 30, 2008 Total Fair Valus Hams
Investmentz Subjsct o Cuszlodis! Credit Rizk Expozurs:
.2, Government Obloations e 511,051,815 21855186
1.5, Government Cbligatione—Stnips e 821,582 -
.5, Agency Obligations ... 18,111,050 -
U.E. Anency Obligatione—Strips ... 301,398 -
Commen and Preferred Stock ... 98,273,647 -
Corporate Bondz and Motes e 17 840,733 -
Corporate Bondzs and Motee—Stripe e 304 -
unicipal Obligations...ooooee 225,004 -
Commercial Papsr ... 8,724 485
Repurchaze Aarsements ... 18,467 250
Mortgags and Asset-Backed Securbies oo 13,448,703 -
Internaticnal Inveztmentz:
Rl =TT T i L U 35,508,508 -
FOrsion Bonaa e nnen 3,031,215 -
High-*"igld and Emsrging Marketz Foced INCOMS e 1,417,563 -
Securities Lending Collateral:
L 1 L T 225843 -
Repurchaze AOrsemente e 1,555,000 -
lortgags and Azzst-Backsd Securitiss 2,013 -
Variable Rate Motes 1,824 178 -
lMazter Motes ... 202,000 -
.5, Agency Obligations....... 172,528 -
COrporats BOME ..o e 16,022 -
Bond Mutual FUGE .o &7 4,550 -
Megotiable Certificates of DEpOEt e 175,244 -
185775
Inveztmentz Not Subfsct o Custodis! Credit Rizk Expozurs:
Investments Held by Broker-Dealers under Securities Loans with Cazh Collateral:
.S, Gowernment Oblioations o TEF 250
LS. Agency Obloations e 35977813
1.2, Agency Obligations—Strips e o144
Common and Preferred Stock e 85,925
International Inveztmentz:
T T L 4255
International Investmentz-Comminaled Equity Funds .o 1,175,674
Equiby M a ] PN e e 9533402
Bond Kutual Funds ... 7,811,423
Bl B RS oot e e s e e e 15,171,047
Wenturs Capital oo 6,067 485
Partnerzhipz and Hedos FUnde e 138,500
I EtmnE Nt oM A O S e 5,545
Deposit with FEOSral GOVEMIMENT v e e e e e rees £27 580
Component Unitz” Equity in State Treazurers Cazh and Inveztment Pool ... (4,750 624)
Component Unit2’ Equity in the State Treazury Azset Reserve of Ohio ... (530,544)
Total Inveztments — Primany Government ... 5223685370

(Continued)
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Investments Tor Component Units, as of June 30, 2008

Uninzured. Unregigtersd. and Held by the

Total Fair Valus

Counterparty's
Trust
Department of
Aoent but not in
the Component
Unit'z Mams

Countsrparty
but not in the
Component
Unit'z Mams

Investmenis Subfect o Custodial Credit Rizk Exposurs:

.S, Government Obligations o 2300,081 175,085 288,741
U.E. Government Obligatione—Stripe e 5676 3,715 -
1.5, Agency Obligations b5 242 445 Bl 157,665
Common and Preferrsd STOcK e eeee e eee e e 1,158,225 227,15 288,701
Corporate Bondz and Motes o 283 528 155,536 745625
(T = e =TT U 24 245 7,325 -
REpUrchas e RO mMEME e e 175,855 39,416 115,358
Mortgages and Azsst-Backsd Securitiss ... 693 508 201 -
Megotiable Certificatss of Deposit ... 1,781 - -
Runmicipal OBHGETIONE ..o s 136,088 &0,017 £2,5T1
Int=rnational Inv=ztmentz:
Forgign Stocks 288,103 ga7 -
Forsign Bonds ... T - -
Other Inveztmentz 3,785 - -
21138415 S065.857
Investmeniz Mot Subfsct o Custodisl Credit Rizsk Exposurs:
Equity MUtUa] FUMEE e e 2171,735
Bond MUUA] FUMOE e e e me e By 415
L Tl U 187 374
Life INEUrancs ............ 16,678
[ NT=E = T 31 L SO 238,314
Charitable REmMaiMdEr TIUEEE e eeeeee 282 758
Partnerzhips and Hedos FUNGE e 445,512
Investment in State Treaszursr's Cash and Investment Pool e 4750524
Investment in the State Treasury Azzet Rezerve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) ... 30,544
Total Invezstments — Componsnt UntE e 13,343,644
Total Inveztments — Reporting Eny e 237,028,014
Reconciliation of Deposits and [hvestments Disclosures with Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2008
(dollarz in thousandz)
Government-Wide Statement of et Asseis Fiduciary Funds
Governmental Businszs-Tvps Statement of
Activities Activitiss Compaonesnt Unit Mst As=zets Total
Cash Equity with Treasursr ..o 58,121,388 S125,650 53,652 040 274 850 12,174 828
Cazh and Cazh Equivalentz . 124 533 304 328 1,087,015 27D 120 1,804 003
Imvestments 1,015,478 16,970 450 6,575,242 180,631,122 21520131
Collateral on Lent Securities ... 3,304,352 40,072 1,088,521 180 659 £ 5483 604
Depozit with Fedsral Government ... - 227 588 - - 227 58D
Restricted Azscta:
Cazh Equity with Treasursr .. - 105 7155 - 7,280
Cazh and Cazh Equivalents ... 141,787 1,218 480 441 - §23 454
Investments 352,040 1,487,705 1,285 425 - 3,188,171
Collatsral on Lent Securities ... - 307, 74D - - 207 7410
Total Reporting Entity oo £13.080.560 SM0773 872 14211753 £191.384 751 S230.460 D45
Total Carnying Amount of Depositz and Investmentz per Financial Statementz S235,460 D45
Cutztanding YWarrantz and Other Reconciling temz 380280
Differences Rezulting from Component Unitz with December 31 Year-Endz 17,137}

Total Carrving Amount of Depozitz and Investrmentz Dizclezed in Note £

£235.643.068
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The total carrying amount of deposits and investments, as of June 30, 2008, reported for the primary government and its
component units is (dollars in thousands) $238,469,945. The total of the carrying amounts of both deposits in the amount of
$1,814,054 and investments in the amount of $237,029,014 that has been categorized and disclosed in this note is
$238,843,068. A reconciliation of the difference is presented in the table on the previous page.

2. Credit Risk
The risk that an investment’s issuer or counterparty will not satisfy its obligation is called credit risk. The exposure to this risk
has been minimized through the laws and policies adopted by the State.

For investments that are included in the treasury’s cash and investment pool and reported as “Cash Equity with Treasurer” and
other investment securities managed by the Treasurer of State’s Office, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, requires such
investments to carry certain credit ratings at the time of purchase as follows:

e Commercial paper must carry ratings in the two highest categories by two nationally recognized rating agencies;

e Debt interests (other than commercial paper) must carry ratings in one of the three highest categories by two
nationally recognized rating agencies. This requirement is met when either the debt interest or the issuer of the debt
interest carries this rating.

Investment policies of the Treasurer of State’s Office further define required credit ratings as follows:

e Commercial paper must have a short term debt rating of at least “A1” or equivalent by all agencies that rate the
issuer, with at least two agencies rating the issuer;

e Banker acceptances must carry a minimum of “AA” for long-term debt (“AAA” for foreign issuers) by a majority of the
agencies rating the issuer. For the short-term debt, the rating must be “A1” or equivalent by all agencies that rate the
issuer, with at least two agencies rating the issuer;

e Corporate notes must be rated at a minimum of “Aa” by Moody’s Investors Service and a minimum of “AA” by
Standard & Poor’s for long-term debt;

e Foreign debt must be guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States or be rated in one of the three
highest categories by at least two rating agencies; and

e For Registered Investment Companies (Mutual Funds), no-load money market mutual funds must carry a rating of
“AAmM”, “AAm-G”, or better by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent rating of another agency.

Investment policies regarding credit risk that are in addition to Ohio Revised Code requirements and are specific to the
following significant entities reported in the State’s reporting entity are as follows:

Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund
The Fund requires an average credit quality no lower than an “A” rating for fixed income securities.

State Highway Patrol Retirement
System Pension Trust Fund
When purchased, bond investments must be rated within the four highest classifications of at least two rating agencies.

STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund
Investment policies governing the STAR Ohio external investment pool require that all securities must be rated the equivalent
of “A-1” or higher, and at least 50 percent of the total average portfolio must be rated “A-1+” or better.

Retirement Systems Agency Fund

For the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, non-investment grade securities are limited to 15 percent of the total
Global Bond portfolio assets. Under the Cash Management Policy, issues rated in the A2/P2 category are limited to five
percent of portfolio and one percent per issuer. Those rated in the A3/P3 category are limited to two percent of the portfolio
(one-half percent per issuer) with a final maturity of the next business day.

For the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund,
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e Securities in the core fixed income portfolio shall be rated “BBB-" or better by two standard rating agencies at the time
of the purchase;

e Securities in the high yield fixed income portfolio are high yield bonds issued by U.S. corporations with a minimum
rating of “CCC” or equivalent;

¢ Investment managers may purchase securities that are “Not Rated” as long as they deem these securities to be at
least equivalent to the minimum ratings; and

e Commercial paper must be rated within the two highest classifications established by two standard rating agencies.

Ohio Water Development Authority Component Unit Fund

The Authority’s policy authorizes the acquisition of repurchase agreements from financial institutions with a Moody’s or
Standard & Poor’s rating of “A” and the entering into investment agreements with financial institutions rated in the highest
short-term categories or one of the top three long-term categories by Moody’s and/or Standard and Poor’s.

University of Cincinnati Component Unit Fund

The policy governing the university’s temporary investment pool permits investments in securities rated “A” or higher at the
time of purchase. Endowment investment-grade bonds are limited to those in the first four grades of any rating system. Below-
investment grade, high-yield bond investments and certain unrated investments having strategic value to the university are
permitted.
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Primary Government (including Fiduciary Activifies)

Ivestment Credit Ratings
As of June 30, 2008

(dollarzs in thouzandz}

Credit Rating
Inwvestment Tvps AAASARS AASAS AR BBB/Bas BB/Ba B

U.%. Agency Obligations ..o 20,012 404 59,555 3ghod 3 - 5 - 5 -
U5, Agency Obligatione—Strips e 310,542 - - - - -
Corporate Bondz and Motes 2518,683 2,707 853 & 856,387 4 BOG 505 E20 404 755,180
Corporate Bondz and Notee—Stripe . 304 - - - - -
Runmicipal Bondz. ..o 05,585 103815 13,088 13,434 - -
Commsrcial Papsr £ 303,445 1,364,350 3,023,420 - - -
Repurchaze Aagresmentz 15,764 2454 - - - -
lortaage and Azset-Backed Securitisz ... 12,857 854 302,819 &r. 0y 78,072 1,231 4000
Forgion Bomds ..o 251,580 180,082 TE1,145 1,004 552 281,756 100,873
High-Yigld & Emerging WMarkstz Fixsd Incoms ... 14,413 3282 41,583 113,133 301,788 550,503
Bond Mutual Funds oo 7,191,072 104 035 4030 33,805 5805 50,686
Inveztment Contracts - - - - - -
Securitiez Lending Collateral:

Commsrcial PAPST e - 3,853 3,583 - - -

Repurchaze farsementz .. - 300,000 1,255,000 - - -

Mortgags and Azzet-Backed Securitiss ... - 2,013 - - - -

“Wariable Rate Notez 74,935 &01,857 837,818 108 4565 - -

Master Motss ... - 202,000 - - - -

Corporate Bond=..... - - - - - -

WE. Government A0sncy e 172928 - - - - -

Bond Mutual Funds TR

Megotiable Certificates of Deposit . - 75,000 100,244 - - -

Total Primary Government .o

=480.084 472 35333.028 S12.051.520 56.240 300

51144 128

=1.480.341

Credit Rating
Investment Typs CCCICas CCiCa C 0 Unrated Total
U.E. Agency Oblioations 4 - E - & - E - & - E20,088,353
U.=. Agency Obligatione—Strips e - - - - - 310,542
Corporate Bondz and Motes . 216,231 158 - - a7 231 17,240,733
Corporate Bonds and Motez—Strips .. - - - - - 384
funicipal Bonds. ..o - - - - - 225,004
Commercial Papsr ... - - - - 13,210 &, 724 455
Repurchazs Agrsements ... - - - - 250 18,287
[lortgaogs and Azzst-Backsd Securitisz . 5,085 - 170 - 112,425 13,445 703
Forsion Bomds e 4 476 - - 7013 471,320 3,031,916
High-Y'igld & Emesrging arkstz Ficed Incoms ... 122275 - - 7,803 253623 1,817,583
Bond Mutual Funds ..o - - - - 286,543 7,811,423
Inveztment Contractz - - - - 5,065 5,556
Securitiez Lending Collateral:
Commercial PADST e - - - - 14,857 22043
Repurchaze Aarsemsms .o - - - - - 1,255,000
lortgaos and Azzet-Backsd Securitiss ... - - - - - 2,013
ariable Rate Motss - - - - - 1,524 176
lazter Motez - - - - - 202,000
Corporats Bonda..ooeeeeeeeee - - - - 16,022 18,022
5. Gowvernment Agency . - - - - - 172,525
Bond Mutual Funds o - - - - - a74 850
Megotiable Cerificates of Deposit e - - - - - 175,244
Total Primary Government ..o, 2350.028 2150 170 24016 81272075 E77.070.248
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Component Units
[Ivestment Credit Ratings
As of June 30, 2008
(dollarz in thouzandz)

Credit Rating
Investment Typs AbAIAAR AASAA AfA BEB/Baa BE/Ba B

.5, Agency Oblioations ..o E7E4 74D 415 B - 5 - E - & -
Corporats Bondz and Motes ... 76,872 G4 GED 115,385 15,614 21456 3832
Commercial PApSr .o - - 24 245 - - -
Repurchazs Agrsements 137,038 - - - - -
[dortgags and Azsst-Backsd Securitisz ... 1,787 - - - - -
MNegotiable Certificates of Depozit ... - - - - - -
fdunicipal Obligations ..o 114,382 21,072 35é - - -
Bond Mutual Funds ... S06,222 286,855 41,075 2275 3224 2077
Forsign Bondz - - - - - -
Inweztment Contracts - - - - - -
Other Investments - - - - - -

Total Componsnt Units o 21.623.050 2354015 2131.101 Z38.780 Z5.370 Z5.600

Credit Rating
Investment Typs CCC/Caa CCiCa Unratsd Total

.5, Agency Oblioations ..o L - 5 - B134,075 £019,2432
Corporate Bondz and Notes 717 126 3,657 283028
Commercial PAPST e - - - 24 246
Repurchazs Agrsements - - 308,416 178,455
[dortgags and Azsst-Backsd Securitisz ... - - 67,780 50 585
MNegotiable Certificates of Deposit o - - 1,781 1,781
fdunicipal Obligations ..o - - Z2E0 138,085
Bond Mutual Funds ... 1,002 - 100,081 D47 415
Forsign Bondz - - T 7
Investment Contracts - - 230314 230314
Other Investments - - 2,388 2388

Total Componsnt Units oo 2.7158 228 SSED.7ED 52 000443

All investments, as categorized by credit ratings in the tables above and on the previous page, meet the requirements of the
State’s laws and policies, when applicable.

Descriptions of the investment credit ratings shown in the tables are as follows:

Rating General Description of Credit Rating
AASIAAa Extremsly strong
SAIAS Very strong
AlA Strong
BBB/Baa Adequats
BB/Ba Le== vulnsrakbls
B ldore vulnerabls
CCCiCas Currently vulnerable to nonpavmsnt
CCICa Currently highly wulnsrabls to
nonpaymsnt
0 Currently highly vulnerakbls to
nonpayment for failure to pay by dus
dats

3. Concentration of Credit Risk
The potential for loss of value increases when investments are not diversified. The State has imposed limits on the types of
authorized investments to prevent this type of loss.
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For investments that are included in the treasury’s cash and investment pool, and reported as “Cash Equity with Treasurer’
and other investment securities managed by the Treasurer of State’s Office, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, requires the
following:

e Investments in commercial paper may not exceed 25 percent of the State’s total average portfolio;

e Bankers acceptances cannot exceed 10 percent of the State’s total average portfolio;

e Debt interests cannot exceed 25 percent of the State’s total average portfolio;

e Debt interests in foreign nations may not exceed one percent of the State’s total average portfolio; and,

o Debt interests of a single issuer may not exceed one-half of one percent of the State’s total average portfolio.

Investment policies of the Treasurer of State further restrict concentrations of investments. Maximum concentrations are as
follows:

ldaxirnum %
of Total
Average
Inwvestment Tvpes Portfolio
S, TrEARUNY e 100
Fedsral Agency (fixed rate) e 100
Federal Agency (callable} .. 55
Federal Agency (varigble rate) ... 10
Repurchaze Aarsements ... 25
Banksre® Acceptances ... e enn——— 10
Commercial Papsr ........... e enaeen 25
Corporate Motes o L)
Forsign Motes oo 1
Cerificates of Deposit ... 20
lunicipal Okligations ... 10
ETAR Ohio o 25
lutual Funds 25

The investment policies of the Treasurer of State’s Office also specify that commercial paper is limited to no more than five
percent of the issuing corporation’s total outstanding commercial paper, and investments in a single issuer are further limited
to no more than two percent of the total average portfolio except for the U.S. government obligations, limited at 100 percent;
repurchases agreement counterparties, limited at the lesser of five percent of $250 million; bankers’ acceptances, limited at
five percent; corporate notes and foreign debt, limited at one-half of one percent; and mutual funds, limited at 10 percent.

For the U.S. Equity Portfolio of the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund, no single holding is to be more than five percent
of the entire portfolio at market, or five percent of the outstanding equity securities of any one corporation.

For the Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund, no more than two percent of the total average portfolio may be invested in the
securities of any single issuer with the following exceptions: U.S. government obligations, 100 percent maximum; repurchase
agreements, limited at the lesser or five percent or $250 million; and mutual funds, 10 percent maximum.

The State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund’s policy prohibits the investment of more than 10 percent of
its fixed income portfolio in securities of any one issuer with the exception of U.S. government securities, or the investment of
more than five percent of the Fund’s total investments in any one issuer with the exception of U.S. government securities.

For the STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund, investments in a single issuer are further limited to no more than two percent of the
total average portfolio except for U.S. Treasury obligations, limited at 100 percent; U.S. Agency obligations, limited at 33
percent; repurchase agreement counterparties, limited at the lesser of 10 percent of $500 million; and mutual funds, limited at
10 percent.

As of June 30, 2008, all investments meet the requirements of the State’s law and policies, when applicable. However,
investments in certain issuers are at least five percent of investment balances, as follows (dollars in thousands):
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Percentaos
of Inweztment
lz=usr Armount Balance
Fovernmentzt and Suzinezz-Type
Activitizz:
Federal Mational
lortgags As=sociation ... 23,885,558 13%
Federal Home Loan Bank ... 1,134,230 4%
Federal Homs Loan
Mortgage Corporation .............. 2,053,520 T%
STAR Onio lnvsztment Trust
Fund:
Federal Mational
Mortgags Azszociation ... 1,500,651 23%
Federal Home Loan Bank ........... 1,885,244 22%
Federal Home Loan
Mortgages Corporation ... 1,270,300 19%
School Facilitizz Commizsion
Componsnt Unit Fund:
Federal Mational
Mortgags Azsociation ... 1,302 602 20%
Federal Home Loan Bank ... £51,338 9%
Federal Homs Loan
llortgage Corporation ... 718,225 15%
Onio Vistsr Development
Awthority Componsnt Unit Fund
{(F23107):
AIGHFT e 104 720 15%
FRIR LA e 05,311 7%
FHLB e 108,815 &%

4. Interest Rate Risk
Certain of the State’s investments are exposed to interest rate risk. This risk exists when changes to interest rates will
negatively impact the fair value of an investment. The State has adopted policies to mitigate this risk.

Investment policies governing the treasury’s cash and investment pool, which is reported as “Cash Equity with the Treasurer”
and is managed by the Treasurer of State’s Office, limit maturities of short term investments to no more than 18 months with a
weighted average maturity not to exceed 90 days. For long term investments, maturities are limited to five years or less,
except for those that are matched to a specific obligation or debt of the State. A duration target of three years or less has been
established for long term investments.
Variable rate notes are permitted if they meet the following criteria:

e the note has an ultimate maturity of less than three years;

e the rate resets frequently to follow money market rates;

e the note is indexed to a money market rate that correlates (by at least 95 percent) with overall money market rate
changes, even during wide swings in interest rates, e.g., federal funds, 3-month treasury bill, LIBOR; and

e any cap on the interest rate is at least 15 percent (1500 basis points) higher than the coupon at purchase.

The Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund’s investments are required to have maturities of 30 years or less. In no case may the
maturity of an investment exceed the expected date of disbursement of those funds.

For the State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, investment policies require that the Fund’s fixed income
portfolio has an average maturity of 10 years or less.
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Investment policies governing the STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund limit maturities of investments to a final stated maturity of
397 days or less. The weighted average maturity of each portfolio is limited to 60 days or less.

Investments purchased under the Cash Management Policy of the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System are limited to a
weighted average maturity of 90 days. Fixed rate notes are required to have an average maturity of 14 months. Floating rate
notes, with a rating of AA or higher, are limited to an average maturity of three years. All other issues are limited to a two-year
average maturity.

All investments of the Ohio Water Development Authority Component Unit Fund must mature within five years unless the
investment is matched to a specific obligation or debt of the Authority.

The policy of the University of Cincinnati Component Unit Fund stipulates that the weighted average maturity in the Temporary
Investment Pool shall be no longer than five years. The weighted average of the fixed income maturities in the university’s
endowment portfolio shall not exceed 20 years.

As of June 30, 2008, several investments reported as “Cash Equity with Treasurer” have terms that make their fair values
highly sensitive to the interest rate changes. The U.S. agency obligations investment type includes $6.8 million of investments
with call dates during fiscal years 2009 and 2011. These investments have maturities between fiscal year 2010 and 2014 and
are reported in the table on the following page as maturing in one to five years.

Several investments reported as “Collateral on Lent Securities” have terms that make them highly sensitive to interest rate
changes as of June 30, 2008. Master Notes of $187 million, variable rate notes of $716 million, and U.S. agency obligations of
$148 million have daily reset dates. Mortgage and asset-backed securities of $2 million, variable rate notes of $556 million,
and negotiable certificates of deposit of $75 million have monthly reset dates. Variable rate notes of $528 million and
negotiable certificates of deposit of $100 million have quarterly reset dates.

The Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund has collateral on lent securities with reset dates. Master notes and variable rate
notes with reset dates are reported as collateral on lent securities. Master notes of $15 million, and U.S. agency obligations of
$25 million have daily reset dates. Variable rate notes of $57 million, $45 million, and $20 million, respectively, have daily,
monthly, and quarterly reset dates.

Also during fiscal year 2008, the Treasurer of State acted as the custodian of the Retirement System Agency Fund’s
investments. These investments contain terms that make their fair values highly sensitive to interest rate changes. Specific
information on the nature of the investments and their terms can be found in each respective system’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

The following tables list the investment maturities of the State’s investments. All investments at June 30, 2008, meet the
requirements of the State’s laws and policies, when applicable.
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Primary Government (inclucing Fiduciary Activities)
Investments Subject to Inferest Rate Risk
As of June 30, 2008
(dollarz in thouzandz}
Investment Maturities (in vears)

Invsstment Typs Less than 1 1-5 810 ldore than 10 Total
.5, Government Obligations ... 71723 52,200 371 51,720,023 27Y, 053,751 811,780 273
.5, Government Oblioations—CStripe .. 23,071 20,554 o5 277 T22 680 021 582
.5, Agency Obligations ... 72185975 7785750 1,111,312 3872515 20,085,863
1.5, Agency Obligatione—Strips oo 11,440 81,255 106,775 101,071 0,542
Corporate Bondz and Motes o 1,573,801 4 635 680 3,404 351 7,835,850 17,040,733
Corporate Bondzs and Notez—CStrips - - - 30 304
fumicipal Bondz. ... - - 3,707 232 20T 238,00
CommsrSial PARST e 8,724 455 - - - &, 724 455
Repurchaze Agresmentz . 18,457 - - - 18,4587
lortaage and Azset-Backsd Securitiss ... 16,367 233,300 EE4 514 12,644 323 13,445,703
Forgion Bomds ..o 155 467 456,780 755,741 1,663,909 3,031,915
High-Yigld & Emsrging Marksts Fixed Incoms ... 214 187 231,588 G70,885 300,838 1,417,563
Bond Mutual Funds ... e 3180185 1,267 467 2300722 1,053,035 7811423
Investment Contractz - 5, 0a5 - - 5, 0a5
Securitiez Lending Collateral:
Commsrzial PARST e 22543 - - - 225843
Repurchaze Agresmsntz 1,555,000 - - - 1,555,000
lMortgages and Azset-Backsd Securities ... 2,03 - - - 2,013
ariable Rate Motes o 15824178 - - - 18241758
laztsr MHotes 202,000 - - - 202,000
Corporate Bond=..... 16,022 - - - 16,022
U.E. Agency Obligations. . 1725928 - - - 172928
Bond Mutual Funds o are oal - - - aré gl
MNegotiable Certificates of Deposit .o 175,244 - - - 175,248
Total Primary Government ..o 527 208769 27087018 210,822 A1 235572018 200501108

Component Units
Investments Subject fo Inferest Rate Risk
As of June 30, 2008
(dollarzs in thouzandz}
Investment Maturitiss (in vears)

Investment Typs Lezs than 1 1-5 G610 ldore than 10 Total
.5, Government Obligations ... £83,871 167 183 531m2 817,085 £300,061
.5, Government Obligations—Stripe a0 £ 020 355 380 5,675

.S, Agency OBIgations .o 382271 20,755 100,955 &g,220 919242
Corporats Bonds and Motes 105,588 78,085 30,241 70,023 283,528
Commercial PARST e 24 245 - - - 24 245
Repurchaze Agreements o 178,455 - - - 178,455
lortgags and Azsst-Backsd Securitiss ... 3,203 & 227 311 58,545 69 585
Megotiable Certificates of Deposit . 733 1,045 - - 1,781
fdunicipal Obligations ..o 75,181 5632 S5 83,725 136,083
Bond RMutual Fundz 308256 313,555 253554 70,937 LdT 415
Fargian Bonds . e s - T - - T
Inweztment Contracts . 180,828 - - 55,485 238314
Other Investmentz .. 387 1,538 153 - 2388

Total Component Unitz 51.353.161 S005.352 SaZd 212 SE73.£20 £3.106.185

5. Foreign Currency Risk

Investments in stocks and bonds denominated in foreign currencies are affected by foreign currency risk which arises from
changes in currency exchange rates. That State’s law and investment policies include provisions to limit the exposure to this
type of risk.
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According to Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, investments managed by the Treasurer of State’s Office, and reported as
“Cash Equity with Treasurer”, are limited to the debt of nations diplomatically recognized by the United States and that are
backed by full faith and credit of that foreign nation.

Investment policies of the Treasurer of State’s Office further limit the types of authorized investments. These requirements
include maturity limitations of five years at the date of purchase and denomination of principal and interest in U.S. dollars.
Other limitations are noted in the previous sections of this note that discuss credit risk and concentration of credit risk.

Investment policies regarding foreign currency risk have also been adopted for the following significant entities reported in the
primary government and are specific to those entities:

Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund
The Fund'’s investment policy requires that:

e equity securities of any one international company shall not exceed five percent of the total value of all the
investments in international equity securities, and

e  equity securities of any one international company shall not exceed five percent of the company’s outstanding equity
securities.

Retirement Systems Agency Fund
For the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, non-U.S. dollar-based securities are limited to five percent of the total
Global Bond portfolio. Additionally, no more than 25 percent of the Global Bond portfolio assets may be from non-U.S. issuers.

The State Teachers Retirement System international investments include forward contracts and equity swaps with negative
fair values. Negative investment values, as applicable, are included by currency for Fiduciary Activities in the table on the
following page.

As of June, 30, 2008, investments denominated in the currency of foreign nations, as detailed in the tables appearing on the

next two pages for the primary government and its discretely presented component units, meet the requirements of the State’s
laws and policies, when applicable.
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Primary Govermment (including Fiduciary Activities)
International Investments—Foreign Currency Risk

As of June 30, 2008
(dellarz in thouzandz)

Fiduciary Activities

High-vi=ld &

Emeraging
ldarkst= Fooed
Currsncy Stocks Bonds Incoms Total
Araentinean Peso e E515 £3.005 4 - S 420
Australian Dollar T2Z2 703 - - T22 783
Braziliam Real oo 45T 044 55,518 18,040 542 803
Britizh Pound ..o 2,531,211 130,433 - 2,661,644
Bulgarian Lev ... 2652 - - 2,602
Canadian Dolar ... ba1 748 7o 1oy - 1,021,545
CHISAN PEE0. e 17,801 17,850 - 35,251
Chingze Y uan ... 11,413 - - 11,413
Colormbian Pezo .. 3,661 - 6,013 be74
Czech Koruna ... TEETT - - TEeTT
DamiEh BIONE e 184 222 - - 168 222
Eqwptian Pound oo 53,276 2616 287 55,120
Eura 4 B51 405 238 450 (683} E 118,271
Hond Kond DolAT .o 065,034 - - 065,034
Hunaarian Forint ..o 38,573 3,455 - 40,371
Indian Rupse ... 128 337 - - 128,337
Indonezian Rupish ...... 110,074 12,270 330 122674
lzrasli Shekesl ... 125,418 ZATS - 127 857
JAPANSEE YWBM e 2485813 - 28 2,805,842
Jordanian Dollar .. 1 - - 1
alayzian Rinaoit 133,110 D273 6,305 148,685
REMICAN PERO (e 167 664 14 855 4 053 187,285
Mewr Zealand Dollar e (=112} - - 2,112}
Morwegian Krons ... 330,722 - - 330,722
Pakiztani BUPEE e oB8xr - - o527
Philippings PE20 oo 15,452 - - 18,462
Polizh Zloty oo S 55,034 24158 - 57,453
Romanian Leu ... s 2,052 - - 2,052
Russian BUBlE e 46,212 - - 46,212
SinQapors DolaT .. 260 224 - - 260 224
South ATrican Band ..o 300,262 4167 - 304,428
South Korsan Won TEL 8138 472 - 780,340
Srilankan RURBES e 5,763 - - 5,763
Swvedizh Krona oo 278 5E0 36,939 - 316919
Swizs Franc 217,184 - - a17,184
Taiwan Dolar 540674 - - 540 674
Thailand Baht ... 158,775 - - 158,775
TUTKIZE LIF8 oo 186,471 21,811 1,033 208315
Ukraing Hoywana. e 2,345 - - 2,345
Uruguyuan Pezo ... - G365 543 7,011
Zimbabwwrean Dollar 1,325 - - 1,325
Inveztmentz Held in Forsion Currency e 217.815.054 2843 952 =37 .8960 515.486.006
Forsign Investments Held in LS. Dollars . m e et 25,641,320
Total Forzign Investmentz-Primany Government, including Fiduciary Activities o Zd4£ 138,316
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Comyponent Units
[nternational Investments—Foreign Currency Risk
As of June 30, 2008
(dollarz in thousandzs)

The Ohio State Universihe Included in the
Balance Reporisd For
Common &
Preferrsd
Currency Stock Total

Anztralian Dollar e 24 345 24345
Brazilian BEal e 5,610 5,610
Britizh Pound ........ 78,363 258,363
Canadian Dollar ... 8,055 9,058
Danizh Krons ... 1,580 1,580
BILITEY e e e e 62,775 62,775
Homd Kong DollAT ..o 10,180 10,180
Hunaarian Forint 451 451
Indonesian Bupiah . SE0 8E0
I2rasli SRERE e 175 179
Japansze Yen ... 36,807 36,867
falayvzian Rim@ait ..o 1,185 1,188
REcan PERO e 2,580 2,500
MNew Zealand Dollar . sy 2
Morwregian Krone ... 6,674 6,674
Polizh Zloty ........... 37 37T
Zingapore Dollar .o 1,717 1,717
South ATrican Rand ..o 7,030 7,030
South Korean Won 11,258 11,259
A [ I A T - U 3,882 3,042
SNIEE FTAMIC e 5430 5,430
Taivean Dollar ... 5,330 5,330
Thailand Baht .... 2345 2345
TUIKIZR LM e 3585 355
Total Investmentz Held in Forsign Currency-Chic State University 210,035 210,038
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Monimigior Compoient Linits:

Includsd in the
Balance Reportsd for
Cormon & Preferred

Currency Stock

Awstralian Dolar o 23,250
Brazilidn REal e 2085
Britizh POUND e o087
Canadian Dollar £ Bod
[y T | T 207
o 1 o 10,087
Hong Kang Dollar 2872
MM RS e e s e s e s e s e eae s 3
Indonszian Bupiah 204
lzrasl Shekel ... 139
N o 1 12,155
FIEMITAN PES0 (e et e e e s s 2858
Metherlands Antilles Guildsr..oe 513
Mew Zealand Dollar .o 40
R T Ly 0 T 2,755
Ruzsian Rubls........ 85
Singapors Dolar o 454
South African Rand 3,257
South Kersan Won 1,885
SWETIZN KIOME oo e e e 385
e - Lo o562
Taiwan Dollar 100
Thailand Baht 12
TUMKIZR LIFE e et e e s st 287
Investmentz Held in Forsion CUrmSmEyY e 25,030
Forgign Inveztmentz Held in U5, DOIEME e 1,035

Total Monmajor Component Units .o 258,085

D. Securities Lending Transactions

The Treasurer of State and the State Highway Patrol Retirement System (SHPRS) participate in the securities lending
programs for securities included in the “Cash Equity with Treasurer” and “Investments” accounts. Each lending program is
administered by a custodial agent bank, whereby certain securities are transferred to an independent broker-dealer (borrower)
in exchange for collateral.

At the time of the loan, the Treasurer of State requires its custodial agents to ensure that the State’s lent securities are
collateralized at no less than 102 percent fair value. At no point in time can the value of the collateral be less than 100 percent
of the underlying securities.

The SHPRS also requires custodial agents to ensure that lent securities are collateralized at 102 percent of fair value. SHPRS
requires its custodial agents to provide additional collateral when the fair value of the collateral held falls below 102 percent of
the fair value of securities lent.

Consequently, as of June 30, 2008, the State had no credit exposure since the amount the State owed to the borrowers at
least equaled or exceeded that amount borrowers owed to the State.

For loan contracts the Treasurer executes for the State’s cash and investment pool, which is reported in the financial
statements as “Cash Equity with Treasurer”, and for the Ohio Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund’'s Structured Investment
Portfolio, which is reported as “Restricted Investments”, the lending agent may not lend more than 75 percent of the total
average portfolio.

The State invests cash collateral in short-term obligations, which have a weighted average maturity of 11 days or less while
the weighted average maturity of securities loans is 11 days or less.

The State cannot sell securities received as collateral unless the borrower defaults. Consequently, these amounts are not
reflected in the financial statements.
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According to the lending contracts the Treasurer of State executes for the State’s cash and investment pool and for the Ohio
Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund, the securities lending agent is to indemnify the Treasurer of State for any losses
resulting from either the default of a borrower or any violations of the security lending policy.

During fiscal year 2008, the State had not experienced any losses due to credit or market risk on securities lending activities.

In fiscal year 2008, the Treasurer lent U.S. government and agency obligations in exchange for cash collateral while the
SHPRS lent equity securities in exchange for cash collateral.

NOTES RECEIVABLES

A. Taxes Receivable — Primary Government

Current taxes receivable are expected to be collected in the next fiscal year while noncurrent taxes receivable are not
expected to be collected until more than one year from the balance sheet date. As of June 30, 2008, approximately $386.1
million of the net taxes receivable balance is also reported as deferred revenue on the governmental funds’ balance sheet, of
which $363.3 million is reported in the General Fund and $22.8 million is reported in the Revenue Distribution Special
Revenue Fund.

Refund liabilities for income and corporation franchise taxes, totaling approximately $809.2 million, are reported for
governmental activities as “Refunds and Other Liabilities” on the Statement of Net Assets, of which $761.6 million is reported
in the General Fund and $47.6 million is reported in the Revenue Distribution Special Revenue Fund on the governmental
funds’ balance sheet.

The following table summarizes taxes receivable for the primary government (dollars in thousands):

Governmental Activities

ldajor Governmental Fundz

Monmajor
Highway Revenus Governmental Total Primary
General Cperating Diztribution Activitez CGovernmesnt
Current-Due Within One Year:
IMCOME TAXEE oo e So5E2.040 5 - 33,817 1659 817,035
SAlES TERES oo 385,561 - 24 200 430 410,800
otor Vehicle Fusl Taxes o - 65,421 oE 111 5532 170,054
Commercial Activity Taxes - - 318,713 - 318,713
Public Uility TaXss .o 70,547 - 32,126 - 103,075
CEVETANCE TAXES e - - - 2713 2713
1,038,857 65,421 05,060 8,043 1,620,180
Moncurrent-Due in kors Than One Year:
INCEME TAXEE e 72,838 - &,587 - 77,205
Taxss Receivable, Met 21.112.605 S56.421 Z500.635 ZB.843 21.607.505
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B. Intergovernmental Receivable — Primary Government
The intergovernmental receivable balance reported for the primary government, all of which is expected to be collected within
the next fiscal year, consists of the following, as of June 30, 2008 (dollars in thousands):

Fram Mensxchangs Programz Fraom Zales of Goodz and Services

Federal Local Other Stats Lcal Total Primary
Gowernment Government Governmsntz Govrernment Gowernment
Governmental Activities:
ajor Governmental Funds:
GENSTAl e S502,075 S3B208 5 - 1T 5545355
Job, Family and Other Human Services . 280 575 55,008 - - 345 882
EAucation ..o 38,405 72015 - - 111,411
Highway Operating ..o 100,213 - - - 100,213
Monmajor Governmental Funds ... 238,028 37,985 - 18,2470 280,484
Total Governmental Activitiss ... 1,164,720 206,112 - 22 587 1,303,488
Buzineze-Tvps Activitiss:
ldajor Propristany Fundzs:
Unemplovment Compsnaation ... - - 137 - 137
Monmajor Propristary Fund=s ... 20 - - 7116 7,135
Total Buzinsze-Tvpe Activities . 20 - 137 7,115 7273
Intergovernmental Receivable ... =1.154.608 2208.112 2137 228703 =1.200.761

C. Loans Receivable
Loans receivable for the primary government and its discretely presented major component units, as of June 30, 2008, are
detailed in the following tables (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government - Loans Receivable

Governmental Activities

lajor Governmesntal Fundz

Monmajor
Highway Governmental Total Primary
Loan Program General Education Cipsrating Funds Government
HOUSING FINANCE .o e eee e s eene s sesemee s SEETBIF 3 - = - = - SZ2T B33
School Diztrict Solvency Azsiztance .. 19,057 - - - 19,087
Wawne Trace Local School Diztrict ... 3,065 - - - 3,065
State Workforce Development o665 - - - o5
Office of Kinority Financial Incentives ... cel - - - ael
Profezzional Development o 1,043 - - - 1,043
Colurmbiana County Economic Stabilization ... 177 - - - 177
Small Government Fire Departmentz 822 - - - 822
Murzes Education A2SEENCE e - 250 - - 250
Highweay, Transit,
& Avigtion Infrastructure Bank. e - - 102,885 - 102,885
Economic Development
Ofice of Financial Incesmtives e - - - 340,788 340,788
Rail Development - - - 3,580 3,580
Brovenfisld Revolving Loan e - - - 3,070 3,070
Local Infraztructures Improvements o - - - 330,041 330,041
Matural BESauUrcss e - - - 2 2
Loans Receivabls, Gross 254 454 250 102,885 585,851 1,044 250
Eztimated Uncollectible {137} - - - (137}
Loans Receivable, Met o S254 317 S2a0 2102685 S555.551 &1.044 325
Current-Dues Within One Year .o E50,306 5125 814 ADT E73 355 5143373
Mancurrent-Dus in KMors Than One Year ... 203,821 125 55,385 508,508 800,850
Loans Receivable, Met o S254 317 S2a0 2102685 S555.551 &1.044 325
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Major Component Units - Loans Receivable

Chio Vater
Developmsnt
Luthority Chio State Univerzity of
Loan Program (12831107 Univerzity Cincinnati
Water and Wastswatsr Treatment (including restricted portion .. £3070033 & - £ -
Student ... eereeeeereeeeeeeeeeeere——————er——————roe - 58,855 41 445
BT et e e e e e s s e e e e e e e e een e s s e - - TEG
Loans Receivabls, Broma. e 3,528 033 85,865 42183
Eatimated UnCollsctiBls. ... .o - {16700} (5.545)
Loane Recsivable, Bat. e e 23520033 72166 235.545
Current-Die Within One Y S ar e 21,885 511,350 53,2565
Mancurrent-0us in Mors Than One Y Sar e 3027148 50,818 33282
Loane Recsivable, Bat. e e 23520033 72166 235.545

D. Other Receivables

The other receivables balances reported for the primary government and its discretely presented major component units

reporting significant balances, as of June 30, 2008, consist of the following (dollars in thousands).

Primary Government - Other Receivables

Covernmental A ctivities

dajor Governmental Fundz

Bucksve
Jobk, Famiby Tobacco
& Other Settlemsnt Monmajor
Human Highweay Financing Govsrn-

Types of Receivables Zeneral Servicez  Education  Operating Autherity  mental Funds Total
anufactursre’ REbatss e 255,521 80,730 3 - 5 - = - 12,054 161,305
Tobacco Settlement . - - - - 205,455 75,485 281,834
Health Facility Bed EME e - £8.015 - - - - 55015
IMEEMERT e 37,720 - - 3233 285 500 &2 121
ACCOUME (e e e e e 58,847 F3,355 158 1,722 - 5281 or 32y
Environmental Legal S=ttlements . - - - - - 7,540 7,540
RMIZCEIANE0UE e 13.547 3770 &1 430 - 1111 15,928

Other Receivables, Met- o 165635 5186762 2220 25385 _ S205.T37 103311 S565.070

Current-Dus Within One Year e E166635  B186,782 5220 &L 385 5268 526 846 £386,136

Mancurrent-Dus in KMors Than One Yesar........ - - - - 205,450 78,4585 261,834
Other Receivables, et 165635 5186762 2220 25385 _ S205.T37 103311 S565.070

Buzinszs-Typs Activitiss
ldajor Propristary Funds
TnEmploy-
Workesrz' mesnt Monmajor
Compen- Lottery Compen- Propristary
Type of Recsivable zation Commizzion =ation Funds Total

o w11 U E1057 33 B - ZB0,280 B0d5 EB1,148 510
Interszt and Dividendz (including restricted portion}..oeee 2004814 £ 300 - 7,120 211,843
Lotteny Sales AQEnE e - &8 745 - - &4 745
lizcelansous. - - - 45 40

Other Receivables, BroSE. e 1,267 727 40 045 20,280 8,124 1,405,155

Eatimated UncollectiBls. ... (&B2, 730} (314} (65,401} - (851,535}

Other Receivables, Met-Dus Within One Y Sar oo 354,087 45,731 211,788 6124 SE53.621

Total Primary GovernmEnt.. .. e eee e eeeee e 21,121,881
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Major Component Units - Other Receivables

Crhio Stats

Univerzity of

Tvpes of Receivablss University Cincinnati
B CTOUNER e e e e e e e e e s e e s 870,23 S25,088
IMEEFERE. oo e e 18,805 401
Inveztment Trade Receivable (Stock Procesdz).. - T
Dividends Recsivabls. e - 7,280
RIS EEE e e e e e e e e &2 075 72,582
Unbilled Charges. e - 40,044
Other Receivables, Gross e 1,031,203 146,603
Eztimated Uncollectibls. ..o (553,434) (5,471}
Cther ReceivabIss, MEt. . e ee s e =467, 782 S138,222
Current-Due Within One Y sar . 2458 385 282,335
Maencurrent-Dus Within Mors Than One Y ear .o 0384 5L BET
Other Receivables, Met e S467, 769 S136,.232

The “Other Receivables” balance reported in the fiduciary funds as of June 30, 2008, is comprised of interest due of

approximately $3.3 million, investment trade receivable of $13.9 million, and miscellaneous receivables of $2.5 million.

NOTE 6 PAYABLES

A. Accrued Liabilities

Details on accrued liabilities for the primary government and its discretely presented major component units reporting
significant balances, as of June 30, 2008, follow (dollars in thousands).

Primary Government - Accrued Liahilities

Wagez and
Emploves Accured Total Accrusd
Bensfitz Interest Other Ligkilitis=
Eovernmental Activities:
ldajor Governmental Funds:
BENETAL oo e e 287 T8 B - & - 5167 716
Jaob, Family and Other HUman Semvices. e 23T - - 23T
Education. .. 23159 - - 2319
Highway Operatimg . e 26,622 - - 26,622
Monmajor Governmental Funds. .. 50,115 - 25 50,144
281,260 - 25 281,285
Reconciliation of balance in fund financial 2tatementz to government-
wide financial statements dus to basiz diffsrences...... - 147,441 147,441
Total Governmental Activitiss. . 281,250 147 441 25 428,736
Buzineze-Tvpe Activitiss:
Monmajor Propristany FUnge. .. 5,082 - - 5,082
Total Primary Government...... 2287 AM 2147 44 225 S434 505
Management
Wagss and and
Emploves Health Bensft  Administrative  Total Accrusd
Bensfitz Claimz Expenzssz Expenzssz
Fiduciary Activitisz:
Ctate Highway Patrol Retirement Swvetem
Penzion Truzt (1203 2007 b e 31,241 3218 3 - 31,459
“ariable Colleas Savings Plan
Private-Purpoze Trust - - G,081 G,081
Total Fiduciary Activities . oo 51,244 £213 25,001 E71.55
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Major Component Units - Accrued Liahilifies

Wages and
Emploves Zeli- Accrusd Total Accrued
Benefitz Inzurance Intersst Other Ligkilitis=
Cthio State Universiy. .o 171,806 130,084 4,057 332253 D347 402
Univeraity of Cincinnatio o 26,508 - 253 37 524 71,328

B. Intergovernmental Payable
The intergovernmental payable balances for the primary government, as of June 30, 2008, are comprised of the following
(dollars in thousands).

Primary Government - Intergovernmental Payvahle
Local Government

Sharsd
Revesnus and
Local
Permizzive Subszidies Federal Other
Taxed and Other Government Ciates Total
Governmental Activitiss:
ajor Governmental Funds:
BENETAD e G267 590 157,202 321,580 5 - S467 150
Job, Family and Other Human Servicss . - 178,802 - - 178,802
Bducation e - 54 5G4 3 - L4 55T
Highweay Operating ..o - 1,584 - - 1,584
Revenue Diztribution ... 822 61 - - 2,305 G24 GO
Monmajor Governmsntal Funds - 178,151 - - 178,181
Total Governmental Activitiss 1,110,540 570,303 21,983 2,308 1,705,143
Buzineze-Tvpes Activitiss:
llajor Propristany Fundzs:
Unemployment Compensation ..o - 153 358 - L08
Monmajor Propristany Fundz 215 - - - 415
Total Buzinezz-Tvps Activitiss 415 153 355 - oz24
Total Primany GOVEMMMENT ... 21,110,854 E570,455 522330 52,305 21,706,067
Fiduciany Activitiss:
Holding and Diztribution Aosncy Fund ... 5 - 5 - 52,788 33,715 Z  G.E0&
Pavroll Withhalding
and Frings Beneftz Agency Fund ..o - 35 - - s
Other Sosncy Fund o 135,835 2885 - - 138,323
Total Fiduciary Activities ... 5135836 &3.000 52,788 23715 5145142

As of June 30, 2008, the School Facilities Commission Component Unit Fund reported an intergovernmental payable balance
totaling approximately $1.72 billion for long-term funding contracts the Commission has with local school districts. In the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets, the intergovernmental payable balance for the Commission is included with “Other
Noncurrent Liabilities.”

The contracts commit the State to cover the costs of construction of facilities of the school districts once the districts have met
certain eligibility requirements.

C. Refund and Other Liabilities

Refund and other liabilities for the primary government and its discretely presented major component units reporting significant
balances, as of June 30, 2008, consist of the balances reported on the tables presented on the following page (dollars in
thousands).
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Primary Government - Refund and Ofher Liabilfies

Eztimated Tax Refund Claimz

Corporation Total Tax Interszt on
Perzonal Franchizs Refund Laveyers" Trust
Incoms Tax Tax Liakilitisz Accountz Other Total
Governmental Activitiss:
ldajor Governmental Fundsz:
GENETA] oo £520 0432 B132 517 Erg1,550 5 - &1,587 E763,148
Job, Family and
Other Human Servicss e - - - 2072 3275 o347
Revenue Distribution ... 35205 8,308 47 603 - - 47 503
Monmajer Governmental Funds ... - - - - 1,918 1,218
G858,.337 140,825 &08 162 2,072 8775 818,012
Reconciliation of balances includsd in
the “Other Honcurrent Liabiltisz®
balancs in the government-
financial statementz .o - - - - (1,330} (1,339}
Total Governmental Activities ... SH65.337 2140625 2608152 2072 S5.438 SB16.673
Rezerve for
Compenza- Refund and
tion Security Compenzated
Adjustment Depozitz Abzences Capital Leazez Other Total
Buzingza-Type Activitiss:
ldajor Propristary Funds:
Workers® Compenzation ..., 51,834,853 8508 E2e0z2 B - 203,825 52,040,538
Lottery CommizsSion ..o - 35 857 3,038 - 2132 45,027
Unemplovment Compenzation ... - 4708 - - - 4708
Monmajor Propristary Funds ... - 2615 50,850 12 1,455 13,852
1,834,583 141,085 35,708 12 &7 413 2108225
Reconcilistion of balances includsd in
the “Other Moncurrent Liabiltisz®
balance in the government-
financial etatememz....o e (1.53£,853}) (B5,218} (35,537} 12} (55,851} (2,018,121}
Total Buzineze-Type Activities s - S52 180 =iz = - Z40 752 203 104
Total Primary Governmsnt 2800777
Refund and Retiremsnt
Child Support Security Pavrall Syzetems
Collsctions Depositz Withholdings Azestz Other Total
Fiduciary Activitiss:
State Highwway Patrol Retirement
Syetem Pension Trust (12/31/2007)...... 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 5700 5700
Varigble Colleas Savings Plan
Private-Purposs Trust..oooo - - - - 13289 13,289
STAR Ohin Investment Trust - - - - 1,564 1,264
Agency Funds:
Holding and Distribwbion ..o - 18,451 - - - 18,451
Centralized Child Support Collsctions.... 7514 - - - - 7514
Retirsment Syatemz - - - 179,523,881 - 179,623,881
Pavroll Withholding and
Frings BENSE oo, - - 168,378 - - 168,378
Uth L= B é1 1 IBSE B éEITET 15TIED5 E1E|5Du
Total Fiduciary Activities. ... 277514 2430280 2168.376 Z17DE70.645 2MT734AYT  B180.520.304
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Major Component Units - Refund and Other Liahilities

Obligationz
Refund and Undsr Annuity
Security Compenzatsd Capital Life
Depositz Absences Leazez Laresmentz Other Total
Chie State University. .o £4T 532 £07 030 223,010 L4G BOG 530,670 S24T 155
Univerzity of Cincinnati.........cooooooeeeeee 30217 G2 854 153,725 - &,011 252817

NOTE 7 INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS AND SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH

COMPONENT UNITS

A. Interfund Balances
Interfund balances, as of June 30, 2008, consist of the following (in thousands):

Dus To
Governmental Activitiss
Bucksve
Tobacco
Job, Settlement
Farnily and Financing
Mher Authority Monmajor
Hurnan Highweay Revsnus Bevenue CEowsrnmental
Due from Eensral  Servicez  Education  Opsrating  Diztribution Bands Funds Total
llajor Governmental Fundsz:
GENErAl o L - & - E - & - E18406 & - £3.327 21158,733
Fevenue Diztribution ..o - - - T2 - - 304 1,108
Monmajor Governmesntal Funds ... - - - - - 815,531 135 815,887
Total Governmental Activitiss ... - - - 712 116,408 015531 3857 1,035,508
Buzineze-Type Activitiss:
lilajor Propristary Fundz:
Lottery Commizzion........ccoooeeee.. 3,730 24 85 4559 26 - 838 5312
Menmajor Propristary Funds ... 2,605 - - - - - 112 2,500
Total Businszs-Typs Activitiss ... 8,815 &4 85 458 Z5 - 1,082 G311
Total Primary Governiment ... Z5.615 Zo4d 255 2113 2116432  EDM5.53 4000 E1.044 17
Business-Type Activities
Fiduciary
Kajor Propristary Fund Fund
Warkesrz®  Monmajor Total
Compenza  Propristary Primary
Due from tion Fundz Total Logency  Government
lajor Governmental Fundz:
EBEMETAD oo e e e e e e Z585,003 0381 5505384 S - ET15,117
Jobk, Family, Other HUMAN SEMVICEE e eee e ese e m e een 15,144 - 15,144 - 15,144
EUCEHOM e e 287 - 287 - 287
Highway Cperating ... 03615 - 835615 - 03615
Fevenus Diztribution ... - - - - 1,106
Monmajor Gowvsrnmsntal Funds ... 117,812 1 117,813 - 1,033,580
Total Governmental Activities 815,545 5382 824 527 - 1,861,433
Buzineze-Type Activitiss:
llajor Propristary Fundz:
= O T ] 2807 - Z.207 3é 7,883
Manmajor Propristany FUMDE e e e e e 89,315 - 2318 - 12317
Total Businezz-Typs Activitiss 11,815 - 11,815 34 20,180
Total Primarny GOVerfiMEnE v s s s ZBZT7 360 D352 _ SB36.T742 234 _51.881.503
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Interfund balances result from the time lag between dates that 1.) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable
expenditures/expenses occur, 2.) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and 3.) payments between funds are
made.

The nonmajor governmental funds include an internal balance for bond proceeds transferred from the Buckeye Tobacco
Settlement Financing Authority to fund capital projects at state-supported institutions of higher education. This assistance is
included in the nonmajor funds as a due to/from other fund of $915.5 million and is being amortized over the projected
payment period of the future tobacco settlement receipts.

The State’s primary government is permitted to pay its workers’ compensation liability on a terminal-funding (pay-as-you-go)
basis. As a result, the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund recognized $827.4 million as an interfund receivable for the
unbilled premium due for the primary government’s share of the Bureau’s actuarially determined liability for compensation. In
the Statement of Net Assets, the State includes the liability totaling $815.5 million in the internal balance reported for

governmental activities.

B. Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers, for the fiscal year ended of June 30, 2008, consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

Tranzferrsd to

Governmental Activitiss

lajor Governmsntal Fundz

Jobk, Familby Monmajor
and Other Govern-
Human Highwray Revenus mental

Transferred from General Servicss Education Operating  Diztribution Funds Total
ajor Governmental Fundsz:

GENSTAl e 3 - 35,153 5482 5 - 0307 31,355977 51,380,850

Job, Family and Other Human Ssrvicss .. 33 - 1,201 - - 28 1,583

Education ..o 22702 - - - - 401 23,183

Highway Operating ... 400 - - - 180,562 26,601 217,563

Revenue Diztribution 216,428 - 15,222 481,553 - 260,936 Gr4. 139

Bucksve Tobacco Settlemsnt Financing

Authority Revenus Bonds.... - - - - - 25,073 25,073

Menmajor Governmental Fundzs 22,118 - - - - 25,348 107,466

Total Governmental Activities 321,551 8,153 25215 481,553 200,858 1,584,455 2,728,955
llajor Propristany Fundzs:

Workesrz" Compenzation ... 7522 - - - - - 7522

Lotteny Commizsion e 335 - 672184 - - - 672519

Unemplovment Compensation ... - 22 808 - - - - 22808
Menmajor Propristary Funds ... 167,000 - - - - G3,.225 230,225

Total Buzineze-Type Activitiez 174,857 22,808 672,184 - - 63,225 033,074

Total Primary Govermment v S406.530 £28.0Mm S507.300 S481.553 S200.860 _ 51757680 _ 53.6563.030
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Buzinszs-Typs Activities

liajor
Propristary
Fund
Monmajor Total
Unemployment  Prapristary Primary
Transferred from Compsnzation Fundz Total Government
ajor Governmental Fundz:
GENSTAl e b - 43, 713F 343713 1,824 672
Jok, Family and Other Human Ssrvicss ... 3,518 - 3518 5082
Education ..o - - - 23,183
Highway Operating ... - - - 217,563
Rewenue Diztribution - - - o7& 138
Bucksve Tobacco Settlement Financing
Authority Revenus Bonds.... - - - 25,073
Menmajor Governmental Funds ... - - - 107 465
Total Governmental Activities ... 3,518 43,713 47232 2777188
liajor Propristary Fundz:
Warkers® Compenzation - - - 7522
Lotteny Commizsion . - - - 672,519
Unemployment Compsnaation ... - - - 22,808
Monmajor Propristary Fund=s ... - - - 230,225
Total Buzinsze-Type Activities ... - - - 033,074
Total Primary Government ... 23,518 243713 547232 E3.710.262

Transfers are used to 1.) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them, to the fund that statute
or budget requires to expend them, 2.) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts, to the
debt service fund as the debt service payments become due, and 3.) utilize unrestricted revenues collected in one fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budget authorizations.

C. Component Units
For fiscal year 2008, the component units reported $2.14 billion in state assistance revenue from the primary government in
the Statement of Activities.

Included in “Primary, Secondary, and Other Education” expenses reported for the governmental activities, is the funding that
the primary government provided to the School Facilities Commission for capital construction at local school districts and the
eTech Ohio Commission for the acquisition of computers to benefit local schools.

Additionally, the primary government provided financial support to the colleges and universities in the form of state
appropriations for instructional and non-instructional purposes and capital appropriations for construction. This assistance is
included in “Higher Education Support” expenses reported for governmental activities.

The primary government also transferred bond proceeds to the School Facilities Commission to pay the State’s share of the
cost of rebuilding elementary and secondary school facilities across the State. This assistance is included as a receivable of
the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority for $4.01 billion and is being amortized over the projected payment
period of the future tobacco settlement receipts.

Details of balances and activity reported in government-wide financial statements between the primary government and its
discretely presented component units are summarized below.
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Primary Government
(dollarz in thouzands}

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS AND SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH

Program Expenzes for State Assiztance to
Component Unitz

Primary, Total Stats
Receivakble Payakls to Secondary, Higher Azziztance
from the the and Other Education to the
Corponent Corponent Educaticn Support Cormponent
Unitz Unitz Function Function Unitz
ajor Governmental Fundsz:
GENETAD oo L - 312,815 120,840 31, 78£ 338 51914578
Job, Family and Othsr Human Servicss .. - 1,820 - - -
BUcation .o - 1,108 - - -
Highway Operating e - 330 - - -
Bucksve Tobacco Settlement Financing
Authority Revenus Bonds...oooeee £ 014 830 - - - -
Monmajor Governmental Funds . - 24 4758 - 222188 222188
Total Governmental Activities..oo 4 014630 40151 120.640 2018437 2137.077
llajor Propristany Fundzs:
Lottery CommiSsion. ... - 215 - - -
Total Buzineze-Tvpe Activities - 215 - - -
Total Primary Governiment =4.014.830 =40 366 120,640 22018437 S2AST.07T
Component Units
(dollarz in thouzandz)
Total Stats
Receivakls Azziztantcs
from the Payakls to from the
Primary the Primary Primary
CGovernmsnt  Government  Government
ldajor Component Unitz:
School Facilties CommiZBSion e 2200 24 014830 207 370
Crhio State University 5,972 - 555,308
University of CiINCINNEL e e &z - 238,105
Monmajor Componsnt Units 34,072 - 1,244 215
40338 4 014830 2 137.097
“ariance Dus to Year-End Diffsrences
(Juns 30 versus DecsmBEr F1F e 30 - -
Total Component UNifs oo e s 240.3585 4. M4A630 22137077
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A. Primary Government
Capital asset activity, for the year ended June 30, 2008, reported for the primary government was as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Primary Government

Balance Balance
Juby 1, 2007 Increazes Decreazes  Juns 30, 2008

Govermmental Activifies:
Capital As=sts Mot Being Depreciated:

(I 13 1 U E1,817 502 571,201 (53,568} E1,885,135
Building=z &0,080 - (152} 58005
Land Improvemesntz 1,202 - - 1,202
Conatruction-in-Proaress e 1,757,523 A58 208 (357,040% 1,625,601
Infrastructure:

Highway Network:

General Subzyetem ... 8,363,606 35,604 (15227} 8,367,073

Priority Subsyatem ... 7320525 152,533 (4,004} 7,450 454

Bridos Metwrork .o 2405 030 55 B35 10.904% 2.541.870
Total Capital Az=etz Mot Being Depreciated..oooee 21.816.457 7Ta 851 (220.985) 22170333

Other Capital Azzets:

B O e 332 M4 257,248 (F3,141% 3,508,310
Land Improvemsntz 38 T2 40,879 {1,700} 385,551
achinery and Equipment ..o 612,606 71,805 (41 &34} 643 165
R T 265,779 23,125 (19,680 270215
Infrastructure:

Parkz, Recreation and Matural Rezources Metwork... 40,016 G6.207 1.204}) 54300
Total Other Capital Az==tz at Hiztorical Cost. ... 45610417 388,453 (137,158} 4872702
Less Accumulatsd Depreciation for:

BIIEIOR oo e 1,457,001 218125 (44 515} 1,530,511
Land Improvements .o 165,260 35,880 (1,172} 200,657
achinsry and Equipment &17 725 §8,988 (&0 D45} £43 787
WENITISE e e e s 123,078 21,830 (13,588} 131,320

Infraztructure:

Parkz, Recreation and Matural Rezources Metwork...... 4 02 2125 (131} 5,916
Total Accumulated Depreciation .o 2,168,585 345,128 (100,452) 2,813,271
Other Capital AEEEtE, MEE oo 248481,822 54,335 (38,718} 2,458,431
Governmental Activitiss-

Capital Azaete, Met e S24 35R2T0 SE20BE _ (E4SY 7MY 524 52D THL

For fiscal year 2008, the State charged depreciation expense to the following governmental functions:

Govermnmental Activities: {in 000s)
Primary, Secondary and Other EQUCation ... 1,010
Public Assiztancs and MediCaid. ... e e s s en e s e e e e e s £ 755
Healh and HUman Semiiomm. e e eeeee 20,735
Juztice and Public Protection....oe &1,486
Environmental Protection and Matural Rezources.... 137 267
TraNEPOREtIOM e e e 27,220
GeEneral BowerMIMENT. e e e eeeens 125,311
Community and Economic DeVelapmMENT. ..o e 5487
Total Depreciation Expenzes for Govenmental Activities 203,315
Gains (Loss=ss) on Capital Asst Dizposalz Included in Depreciation... e (25,187}
Fizcal Year 2008 Increazss to Accumulated Depreciation......oo e R

As of June 30, 2008, the State considered the following governmental capital asset balances as being temporarily or
permanently impaired and removed from service.
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Govermmental Activifies: {irr 0O0s)
Temporariby Impairsed Azzetz Removed from Senvice:
o a1 U 213,503
Land Improvsmsntz ... 225
T et et e e e et e e e enn s 513,728
Permanenthy Impaired Azsstz Removed from Senvice:
o S 31,228
Land IMprowemente .t 10
[ - 1 U B1,435

Primary Government (Confinued)

Balance Balance
Juby 1, 2007 Increazez Decreazsz June 30, 2005

Business-Tye Activifies:
Capital Az==t= Mot Being Depreciated:

- 1 U 51004 5 - L - 511,804
Construction-In Progress. e - - - -
Total Capital Azsstz Mot Being Depreciated...oe 11,854 - - 11,854
Other Capital Az=stz:
BIUIEIGE oo e 22074 440 - 223,423
Land Improvements e a5 - - a5
achineny and EQUIpMSNE ..o 144 755 12,038 (232321} 133,473
WERICIER L 5,035 oov 1,251} 46
Total Other Capital Azzetz at Hiztorical Cost...o 372,833 13.304 (24 572} 351,655
Lezs Accumulated Depreciation for:
BIUIINGE oo 122825 73583 - 130,308
Land Improvemsnts ... e anenn 52 1 - 53
achinery and EQUipmMEnt ..o 128,503 7276 (22 779} 113,000

WERICIERE Lo 2255 785 [1.008) 2,045
Total Accumulated Depreciation .o 253,735 15,458 (23787} 245,208
Other Capital Azsetz, Met 118,083 (2,084} (785} 116,240
Buzinez-Tvpe Activities - Capital Azsste Net. . 2131.082 [E2.064% [E735} 2128243

For fiscal year 2008, the State charged depreciation expense to the following business-type functions:

Business-Type Activifies {irr Q00s)
Warkera" Compenaation. e 511,798
[ = L I T T o U oog
Tuition Truzst Authority ... 26
Liguor Control......ocooeee T80
Und=rground Parking Garags. et e nnaen 525
Office af Auditor of State e 1,531
Total Depreciation Expenze for Businsss-Tvpe ACtivities. e 15,731
Gainze (Lozsss) on Capital Assst Dizpozalz Includsd in Depreciation... (273}
Fizcal wear 2008 Increaze to Accumulated Deprecigtion. ... " 5154E5g

B. Major Component Units
Capital asset activity, for the year ended June 30, 2008, reported for discretely presented major component unit funds with
significant capital asset balance was as follows (dollars in thousands):
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Major Component Units

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Increazes Decreazes June 30, 2008
Ohio State University:
Capital Az==tz Mot Being Depreciated:
[ 13 o O 552,053 53,650 (5G,826) 548 877
Construction-in-Progress e 2816575 12,054 - 293,629
Total Capital Az=sts Mot Being Depreciated.. ... 333,628 15704 (5,3206) 342 500G
Other Capital Az=st=:
BTN oo e 3,247 838 204,841 (4,258) 3,448 422
Land Improvements 257,017 18,863 (6,073) 269,802
Machinsny, Equipmsnt and Wehicles ... 820,958 90,933 (GG,61G) 345 285
Library Books and Publications ..o 1G3. 767 3,666 (2,890) 164,543
Total Other Capital Azsstz at Historical Cost. ... 4489 591 318,303 79,842) 4 728,052
Other Capital Azssts:
BILIIIIS oo m s e 1,170,291 115,380 (385} 1,285,286
Land Improwvements ... 139,878 10,677 1,538) 149 017
KMachinery, Equipment and Vehicles ... 542 853 823406 (59,647} 565552
Library Boaks and Publications ..o 144 3G9 5191 [2,890) 146,670
Total Accumulated Deprecigtion ..o 1,997,281 213,504 (G4, 4G0) 2146525
Other Capital Asssts, MEt .o 2482 200 104,709 (15,382) 2581527
Total Capital Azsets, MEt e 32825828 5120413 [522,208) 52,024 033
University of Cincinnati:
Capital Az==t= Mot Being Depreciated:
[0 o O 521,923 5 - 3 - 521,923
Construction-in-Progress e 176,665 71,839 (25,250) 223,254
Colections of Works of Art and Hiztorical Treasurss. 4 364 - - 4 364
Total Capital Az=etz Mot Being Depreciated ... 202952 71.829 (25,250} 249 541
Other Capital Azzets:
BT oo e e 1,597,898 13,653 - 1,611,551
Land Improvemsnts e 21,6249 4773 - aG,402
Machinery, Equipment and Wehicles ... 205,033 q.761 (171,307} 203,437
Library Boaks and Publications ..o 140,741 q.1585 (549) 148 347
IMFrEEtTUCIUNE e 05,353 3801 - 100,244
Total Other Capital Az=stz at Historical Cost..... 21271 554 41,233 (11.856) 2.151.031
Lezz Accumulatsd Depreciation for:
BUIEIMEE oo e e BT741G7 57.521 - 331,638
Land IMprovements e 14,628 4121 - 18,808
lachinsry, Equipmsnt and Wehicles ... 123,480 15,804 (10,191 129,083
Library Books and Publications ... 01,959 6,005 (386} a3 478
IMFraEtrUctUre e 48 340 35840 - 52,038
Total Accumulated Depreciagtion ..o 252 543 88.040 (10,577 9301006
Other Capital Asssts, MEt .o 1.269.0711 [4G.807 [1,279) 1,220.825
Total Capital Azsets, Met _ 31471953 525 032 526.529) 51470 466

For fiscal year 2008, Ohio State University and the University of Cincinnati reported approximately $213.6 million and $88
million in depreciation expense, respectively.

NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

All part-time and full-time employees and elected officials of the State, including component units, are eligible to be covered by
one of the following retirement plans:

e  Ohio Public Employees Retirement System

e State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio

e State Highway Patrol Retirement System

e Alternative Retirement Plan
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A. Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS)

Pension Benefits

OPERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement system that administers three separate pension plans
— a defined benefit plan, a defined contribution plan, and a combined plan with features of both the defined benefit plan and
the defined contribution plan.

As established under Chapter 145, Ohio Revised Code, OPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-
living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries enrolled in the defined benefit and combined plans.

Most employees who are members of OPERS and who have fewer than five total years of service credit as of December 31,
2002, and new employees hired on or after January 1, 2003, are eligible to select one of the OPERS retirement plans, as
listed above, in which they wish to participate. Members not eligible to select a plan include law enforcement officers, (who
must participate in the defined benefit plan), college and university employees who choose to participate in one of the
university’s alternative retirement plans (see NOTE 9D), and re-employed OPERS retirees. Participants may change their
selection once prior to attaining five years of service credit, once after attaining five years of service credit and prior to attaining
ten years of service credit, and once after attaining ten years of service credit.

Regular employees who participate in the defined benefit plan or the combined plan may retire after 30 years of credited
service regardless of age, or at or after age 55 with 25 years of credited service, or at or after age 60 with five years or 60
contributing months of credited service. Regular employees retiring before age 65 with less than 30 years of service credit
receive a percentage reduction in benefit amounts. Law enforcement employees may retire at age 48 with 25 or more years of
credited service.

The retirement allowance for the defined benefit plan is based on years of credited service and the final average salary, which
is the average of the member’s three highest salary years. The annual allowance for regular employees is determined by
multiplying the final average salary by 2.2 percent for each year of Ohio contributing service up to 30 years and by 2.5 percent
for all other years in excess of 30 years of credited service. The annual allowance for law enforcement employees is
determined by multiplying the final average salary by 2.5 percent for the first 25 years of Ohio contributing service, and by 2.1
percent for each year of service over 25 years. Retirement benefits increase three percent annually of the original base
amount regardless of changes in the Consumer Price Index.

The retirement allowance for the defined benefit portion of the combined plan is based on years of credited service and the
final average salary, which is the average of the member’s three highest salary years. The annual allowance for regular
employees is determined by multiplying the final average salary by one percent for each year of Ohio contributing service up to
30 years and by 1.25 percent for all other years in excess of 30 years of credited service. Retirement benefits for the defined
benefit portion of the plan increase three percent annually of the original base amount regardless of changes in the Consumer
Price Index. Additionally, retirees receive the proceeds of their individual retirement plans in a manner similar to retirees in the
defined contribution plan, as discussed below.

Regular employees who participate in the defined contribution plan may retire after they reach the age of 55. The retirement
allowance for the defined contribution plan is based entirely on the total member and vested employer contributions to the
plan, plus or minus any investment gains or losses. Employer contributions vest at a rate of 20 percent per year over a five-
year vesting period. Retirees may choose from various payment options including monthly annuities, partial lump-sum
payments, payments for a guaranteed period, or various combinations of these options. Participants direct the investment of
their accounts by selecting from six professionally managed investment options.

Retirees covered under any one of the three OPERS plan options may also choose to take part of their retirement benefit in a
Partial Lump-Sum Option Plan (PLOP). Under this option, the amount of the monthly pension benefit paid to the retiree is
actuarially reduced to offset the amount received initially under the PLOP. The amount payable under the PLOP is limited to a
minimum of six months and maximum of 36 months worth of the original unreduced monthly pension benefit, and is capped at
no more than 50 percent of the retirement benefit amount.

Employer and employee required contributions to OPERS are established under the Ohio Revised Code and are based on
percentages of covered employees’ gross salaries, which are calculated annually by the retirement system’s actuaries.
Contribution rates for fiscal year 2008, which are the same for the defined benefit, defined contribution, and combined plans,
were as follows:
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Reqular Emplovess:

Juby 1, 2007 through Decembsr 31, 2007
January 1, 2008 through Junes 30, 2008

Lawe Enforcemsnt Emplovsss:

Juby 1, 2007 through Decembsr 31, 2007
January 1, 2008 through Junes 30, 2008

Contribution Rates

Emploves Emplover
Shars Shars

DRI 137T7%
10.00%  14.00%

10.10%  17.17%
10.10%  17.40%

The Ohio Revised Code currently limits the employer contribution to a rate not to exceed 14 percent of covered payroll for
regular employees and 18.1 percent of covered payroll for law enforcement employees. The maximum employer contribution
rate for regular employees has been reached. The employer rate for law enforcement employees is scheduled to increase to
17.63 percent, beginning January 1, 2009, and incrementally thereafter, until reaching 18.1 percent on January 1, 2011.

In the combined plan, the employer’s share finances the defined benefit portion of the plan, while the employee’s share

finances the defined contribution portion of the plan. In the defined contribution plan, both the employee and employer share
of the costs are used to finance the plan.

Employer contributions required and made for the last three years for the defined benefit plan and the defined benefit part of
the combined plan were as follows (dollars in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Primary Govemment
Regqular Emplovess ... 3217003 SZ258 577 Z253. 25D
Law Enforcemsnt

Emplovess ... 3718 4112 3,085

Total o L 220721  E250080  E3SY 247
Mzior Componsnt Units:
School Faciltiss

COommigzion e S265 3T S207
Crhio Water

Developmesnt Autharity..... T2 & B2
Crhio State University......... §3,104 70385 82108
Univerzity of Cincinnati....... 11672 14182 13285

Employer and employee contributions required and made for the last three fiscal years for the defined contribution plan and
the defined contribution part of the combined plan were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Frimary Govermnmeant

Emplover Contributions ...

Employee Contributions ..

Mzjor Componeznt Units:
Cthio State Univerzity:

Emplovsr Contributions ...

Employee Contributions ..

Univerzity of Cincinnati:
Emplover Contributions ...
Emplovse Contributions ..

2008 2007 2008
%4407 53455 52,508
8721 7718 5828
1,888 1,818 1,185
4425 3536 2404
300 202 235
40 595 450

OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report, copies of which may be obtained by making a written request to: Ohio Public
Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling (614) 222-5601 or (800)

222-7377.
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Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

OPERS maintains a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan, which includes a
medical plan, prescription drug program and Medicare Part B premium reimbursement, to qualifying members of both the
defined benefit and combined plans. Members of the defined contribution plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits, including
post-employment health care coverage.

In order to qualify for post-employment health care coverage, age-and-service retirees under the defined benefit and combined
plans must have ten or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability benefit recipients and
qualified survivor benefit recipients is available. The health care coverage provided by OPERS meets the definition of an
OPEB as described in GASB Statement 45.

The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not mandate, OPERS to provide OPEB benefits to its members and beneficiaries.
Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided in Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund post retirement health care through
their contributions to OPERS. A portion of each employer's contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of post
retirement health care benefits.

OPERS’ Post Employment Health Care plan was established under, and is administrated in accordance with, Internal
Revenue Code 401(h). Each year, the OPERS Retirement Board determines the portion of the employer contribution rate that
will be set aside for funding of post employment health care benefits. The contributions rates for regular and law enforcement
employees were as follows:

Emplover
Share
July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007~ ©.00%
January 1, 2008 through Juns 30, 2008 T.00%

Active members do not make contributions to the OPEB Plan. The OPERS Retirement Board is also authorized to establish
rules for the payment of a portion of the health care benefits provided by the retiree or their surviving beneficiaries. Payment
amounts vary depending on the number of covered dependents and the coverage selected.

Employer contributions required and made for the last three fiscal years for the defined benefit plan and the defined benefit
portion of the combined plan were as follows (dollars in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Frimary Govermmeant
Regular Emplovess ... S 19058583 S 1355888 5117204
Laws Enforcemsnt

Emplovees.. ... 2,238 1,580 1,340

Total oo S 183201 B 137557 5118543
Mzior Componsnt Units:
School Facilties

COmmiZZion e S236 160 2137
Crhio Watsr

Development Authority.... Gd A7 35
Crhio State Universiy ... EE 452 37523 2B752
Univerzity of Cincinnati.......... 10,282 o 8,151

Members of the defined contribution plan may access a Retiree Medical Account upon retirement. During fiscal year 2008,
employers paid 4.5 percent of their share into members’ accounts for the period covering July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008.
An employee’s interest in the medical account for qualifying healthcare expenses vests on the basis of length of service, with
100 percent vesting attained after ten years of service credit. Employers make no further contributions to a member’'s medical
account after retirement, nor do employers have any further obligation to provide postemployment healthcare benefits.
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Employer contributions required and made for the last three fiscal years for the defined contribution plan were as follows
(dollars in thousands):

2005 2007 2008

Priimary Foverimst . ... 32272 51,805 51,423
Mzfjor Comporent Units:
Ohio State Univerzity...... frioed T85 G20
Univerzity of Cincinnati..... 144 144 125

The number of active contributing participants for the primary government was 57,809, as of June 30, 2008.

The Health Care Preservation Plan adopted by the OPERS Retirement Board on September 9, 2004, became effective on
January 1, 2007. Member and employer contribution rates increased as of January 1, 2006, January 1, 2007 and January 1,
2008 which will allow additional funds to be allocated to the health care plan.

Early Retirement Incentives (ERI)

State agencies, or departments within agencies, may offer voluntary ERI under Section 145.297, Ohio Revised Code.
Through the ERI Program, the State can offer to purchase up to a maximum of five years worth of service credit from OPERS
on behalf of employees who would then meet the age and service requirements to qualify for retirement. Qualifying
employees must have at least one year to decide whether to accept the offer.

State agencies are also required under Section 145.298, Ohio Revised Code, to offer a generally similar ERI when terminating
a number of employees that equals or exceeds the lesser of 50 employees or ten percent of the agency’s workforce, as a
result of a closure of the agency or a lay-off within a six-month period. Under these circumstances, qualifying employees must
decide whether to accept the offer in the time between the announcement of the layoffs and the effective date, and the amount
of service credit offered must be at least two years and not more than five years.

The ERI agreements establish an obligation to pay specific amounts on fixed dates. State agencies that implement an ERI
must pay their obligation to OPERS within a maximum of two years after the agreement is finalized, so the State does not
discount the amount of the liability incurred under the agreement.

As of June 30, 2008, the State had no significant liability balances relative to existing ERI agreements with State employees
covered by OPERS. During fiscal year 2008, the State incurred expenditures/expenses totaling $14.4 million for 339
employees who entered into ERI agreements with the State.

B. State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS)

Pension Benefits

STRS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement system that administers three separate pension plans —
a defined benefit plan, a defined contribution plan, and a combined plan with features of both the defined benefit plan and the
defined contribution plan. STRS benefits are established under Chapter 3307, Ohio Revised Code.

STRS also provides death, survivors’, disability, healthcare, and supplemental benefits to members in the defined benefit and
combined plans.

Participants in the defined benefit plan may retire after 30 years of credited service regardless of age, or at or after age 55 with
25 years of credited service, or at or after age 60 with five years of credited service. Members retiring before age 65 with less
than 30 years of service credit receive a percentage reduction in benefit amounts. Retirees are entitled to a maximum annual
retirement benefit, payable in monthly installments for life, equal to the greater of the “formula benefit” calculation or the
“money-purchase benefit” calculation.

Under the “formula benefit” calculation, the retirement allowance is based on years of credited service and the final average
salary, which is the average of the member’s three highest salary years. The annual allowance is determined by multiplying
the final average salary by 2.2 percent for the first 30 years of credited service. Each year over 30 years is incrementally
increased by .1 percent, starting at 2.5 percent for the 31 year of contributing service up to a maximum allowance of 100
percent of final average salary. Upon reaching 35 years of Ohio service, the first 31 years of Ohio contributing service are
mLﬂ]I(}ipIied by 2.5 percent, and each year over 31 years is incrementally increased by .1 percent starting at 2.6 percent for the
32" year.

Under the “money-purchase benefit” calculation, a member’s lifetime contributions, plus interest at specified rates, are
matched by an equal amount from contributed employer funds. This total is then divided by an actuarially determined annuity
factor to determine the maximum annual retirement allowance. Benefits are increased annually by three percent of the original
base amount.
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Retirees can also choose a “partial lump-sum” option plan. Under this option, retirees may take a lump-sum payment that
equals from six to 36 times their monthly service retirement benefit. Subsequent monthly benefits are reduced proportionally.

Employees hired after July 1, 2001, and those with less than five years of service credit at that date, may choose to participate
in the combined plan or the defined contribution plan, in lieu of participation in the defined benefit plan.

Participants in the defined contribution plan are eligible to retire at age 50. Employee and employer contributions are placed
into individual member accounts, and members direct the investment of their accounts by selecting from various professionally
managed investment options. Retirees may choose to receive either a lump-sum distribution or a monthly annuity for life.
Employer contributions become vested after one year of service, while employee contributions vest immediately.

Participants in the combined plan may start to collect the defined benefit portion of the plan at age 60. The annual allowance
is determined by multiplying the final average salary by one percent for each year of Ohio contributing service credit.
Participants in the combined plan may also participate in the partial lump-sum option plan, as described previously, for the
portion of their retirement benefit that is provided through the defined benefit portion of the plan. The defined contribution
portion of the plan may be taken as a lump sum or as a lifetime monthly annuity at age 50.

A retiree of STRS or any other Ohio public retirement system is eligible for re-employment as a teacher after two months from
the date of retirement. Members and the employer make contributions during the period of re-employment. Upon termination
or the retiree reaches the age of 65, whichever comes later, the retiree is eligible for a money-purchase benefit or a lump-sum
payment in addition to the original retirement allowance. Alternatively, the retiree may receive a refund of member
contributions with interest before age 65, once employment is terminated.

Employer and employee required contributions to STRS are established by the Board and limited under the Ohio Revised
Code to employer and employee rates of 14 percent and ten percent, respectively, and are based on percentages of covered
employees’ gross salaries, which are calculated annually by the retirement system’s actuary.

Contribution rates for fiscal year 2008 were 14 percent for employers and ten percent for employees for the defined benefit,
defined contribution, and combined plans. For the defined benefit and combined plans, 13 percent of the employer rate is
used to fund pension obligations. For the defined contribution plan, 10.5 percent of the employer’s share is deposited into
individual employee accounts, while 3.5 percent is paid to the defined benefit plan.

Employer contributions required and made for the last three fiscal years for the defined benefit and the defined benefit portion
of the combined plans were as follows (dollars in thousands):
2008 2007 2008

Frimmary Govermment ... 57 535 57 4T BV 162
Mzfor Component Units:
Ohio State University............ 35,831 35323 34,035
Univerzity of Cincinnati......... 14487 14385 14188

Employer and employee contributions required and made for the last three fiscal years for the defined contribution plan and
the defined contribution part of the combined plan follow (dollars in thousands):

2008 2007 2008

Frimary Govermnmeant
Emplover Contributions .. 105 ] 21
Employves Contributions ... 170 148 166

Mzfor Component Units:
Chio State Univerzsity:

Employer Contributions ... 2707 2103 1,438

Emploves Contributions .. 3140 2475 1,710
Univerzity of Cincinnati:

Employer Contributions ... 2813 788 TE0

Emploves Contributions .. 1,038 o973 o470
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STRS issues a stand-alone financial report, copies of which may be obtained by making a written request to: State Teachers
Retirement System of Ohio, Attention: Chief Financial Officer, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771, or by
calling (614) 227-4090 or (888) 227-7877.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

The STRS plan provides comprehensive healthcare benefits to retirees and their dependents that are enrolled in the defined
benefit and combined plans. Benefits include hospitalization, physician’s fees, prescription drugs and reimbursement of
monthly Medicare Part B premiums.

Retirees are required to make healthcare premium payments at amounts that vary according to each retiree’s years of credited
service and choice of healthcare provider. Retirees must pay additional premiums for covered spouses and dependents.
Chapter 3307, Ohio Revised Code, gives the STRS board discretionary authority over how much, if any, of associated
healthcare costs are absorbed by the plan. Currently, employer contributions equal to one percent of covered payroll are
allocated to pay for healthcare benefits. Retirees enrolled in the defined contribution plan receive no post-employment
healthcare benefits.

The employer contribution is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of June 30, 2008, net assets available for future
healthcare benefits were $3.66 billion. Employer contributions required and made for the last three fiscal years for the defined
benefit and the defined benefit portion of the combined plans were as follows (dollars in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Primary Government . Lty EETS 551
Mzfor Component Units:
Ohio State Univeraity......... 2518 2733 2818
Univerzity of Cincinnati....... 1,114 1,107 1,081

The number of eligible benefit recipients for STRS as a whole was 166,273, as of June 30, 2008; a breakout of the number of
eligible recipients for the primary government and its component units, as of June 30, 2008, is unavailable.

C. State Highway Patrol Retirement System (SHPRS)
SHPRS, a component unit of the State, was established in 1944 by the General Assembly as a single-employer, defined
benefit pension plan and is administered by the State.

The plan issues a stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information, and
the State reports the plan as a pension trust fund. Copies of the financial report may be obtained by writing to the Ohio State
Highway Patrol Retirement System, 6161 Busch Blvd., Suite 119, Columbus, Ohio 43229-2553, or by calling (614) 431-0781
or (800) 860-2268.

SHPRS is authorized under Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, to provide retirement and disability benefits to retired
members and survivor benefits to qualified dependents of deceased members of the Ohio State Highway Patrol. In addition to
providing pension benefits, SHPRS is authorized by Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, to pay health insurance claims on
behalf of all persons receiving a monthly pension or survivor benefit and Part B basic premiums for those eligible benefit
recipients upon proof of coverage.

Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, requires contributions by active members and the Ohio State Highway Patrol. The
employee contribution rate is established by the General Assembly, and any change in the rate requires legislative action. The
SHPRS Retirement Board establishes and certifies the employer contribution rate to the State of Ohio every two years. By law,
the employer rate may not exceed three times the employee contribution rate, nor be less than the employee contribution rate.

SHPRS'’ financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, under which expenses are recorded when
the liability is incurred and revenues are recorded when they are earned and become measureable.

All investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is, “the amount that the plan can reasonably expect to receive for an
investment in a current sale, between a willing buyer and a willing seller — that is, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.”

Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at the current exchange rate. The fair
value of real estate and private equity investments are based on independent appraisals. For actuarial purposes, assets are
valued with a method that amortizes the difference between actual and assumed return over a closed, four-year period.

Employees are eligible for pension and healthcare benefits upon reaching both an age and service requirement. Employees
with at least 15 years of service credit, but less than 20 years of service credit, may retire at age 55. Employees with at least
20 years of service credit, but less than 25 years of service credit may retire at age 48 with reduced benefits or age 52 with full
benefits. Employees with more than 25 years of service may retire at age 48.
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The pension benefit is a percentage of the member’s final average salary, which is the average of the member’s three highest
salary years. For members with at least 15 years of service credit, but less than 20 years of service credit, the percentage is
determined by multiplying 1.5 percent times the number of years of service credit. For members with 20 or more years of
service credit, the percentage is determined by multiplying 2.5 percent for the first 20 years of service, plus 2.25 percent for
the next five years of service, plus two percent for each year in excess of 25 years of service. A member’s pension may not
exceed 79.25 percent of the final average salary.

Pension Benefits
The employer and employee contribution rates, as of December 31, 2007, were 25.5 percent and ten percent, respectively.

During calendar year 2007, all of the employees’ contributions funded pension benefits while 22 percent of the employer’s
contributions funded pension benefits from January 1, 2007 through June 30, 2007 and 21 percent from July 1, 2007 through
December 31, 2007. The difference in the total employer rates charged and the employer rates applicable to the funding of
pension benefits is applied to the funding of postemployment healthcare benefits.

The employer contributions for calendar year 2007 were approximately $19.9 million. The employer's annual required
contribution (ARC) for the last three calendar years were as follows (dollars in thousands):

For the Year Percentaos of Emplovers
Endesd Primary Annual Pengion Cost
December 31, Government Contributed
2007 521,666 o2 1%
2005 19 557 85.5%
2005 15,455 100.0%

For years ending 2007 and 2006 contributions made by employers did not meet the ARC, but they did meet the statutory
requirements.

SHPRS used the entry-age, normal actuarial cost method for the Schedule of Funding Progress for the actuarial valuation,
dated December 31, 2007. Assumptions used in preparing the Schedule of Funding Progress and in determining the annual
required contribution include: an eight-percent rate of return on investments; projected salary increase of four percent
attributable to inflation and additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.3 percent to ten percent attributable to
seniority and merit; price inflation was assumed to be at least four percent a year; and postretirement increases each year
equal to three percent after the retiree reaches age 53. Maximum contribution rates were not considered in the projection of
actuarially accrued liabilities for pension benefits.

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the level-percentage of projected payroll method over a
closed period of 27 years.

The Schedule of Funding Progress for Pension Benefits for the last three years is presented in the following table. Amounts
reported do not include assets or liabilities for postemployment healthcare benefits.

SHPRS Scherdule of Funcding Progress Last Three Calendar Years-Pension
(dottars in thowzands)

(A} (B} (Ch (O} (E} (F} (=}
Unfunded
Actuarial ALl s
Lctuarial Accrusd Ratio of Percentags of
Accrusd Liakility Azzetz to Active Active Member
Liakility “aluation (UASLY AAL ldembsr Pavroll
“aluation Year [AAL) Azestz (B-(C} (CH(B) Pavrall (DWF}
2007 865,255 S700,851 3165,354 &0.9% 83,753 175.4%
2008 807,781 853,483 154 265 &0.9% B5,075 178.5%
2005 (a} 773,856 501 o2z 181,034 768.5% &3,408 218.1%
2005 786 T41 501,022 174,815 T7.2% 53,408 208.5%

(a} Azzumption or msthod charas
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Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

During calendar year 2007, 3.5 percent of the employer’s contributions funded healthcare benefits from January 1, 2007
through June 30, 2007 and 4.5 percent from July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007. Active members do not make
contributions to the OPEB plan.

The employer contributions for calendar year 2007 were approximately $4.6 million. The employer’s annual required
contribution (ARC) for the last two calendar years were as follows (dollars in thousands):

For the Year Percentags of
Endesd Primary Emploverz ARC
December 31, Govsrnmsnt Contributed
2007 16,303 25.0%
20035 15,852 21.2%

Data for 2005 is not available, so only two years is shown.

For years ending 2007 and 2006 contributions made by employers did not meet the ARC, but they did meet the statutory
requirements.

The cost of retiree healthcare benefits is recognized as claims incurred and premiums paid. The calendar year 2007 expense
was $11.3 million. The number of active contributing plan participants, as of December 31, 2007, was 1,597.

Healthcare benefits are advance funded by the employer using the entry-age, normal actuarial cost method for the Schedule
of Funding Progress for the actuarial valuation, dated December 31, 2007, for OPEB. Assumptions used in preparing the
Schedule of Funding Progress and in determining the annual required contribution include: a 6.5 percent rate of return on
investments; projected salary increase of four percent attributable to inflation and additional projected salary increases ranging
from 0.3 percent to 10 percent a year attributable to seniority and merit; and price inflation was assumed to be at least four
percent a year. Maximum contribution rates were not considered in the projection of actuarially accrued liabilities for OPEB
benefits.

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the level-percentage of projected payroll method over a
closed period of 30 years.

Premiums are assumed to increase annually by four percent, plus an additional percentage ranging from 0.5 percent to five
percent through 2018. Net assets available for benefits allocated to healthcare costs at December 31, 2007 were $111.2
million, and included investments carried at fair value, as previously described.

As of December 31, 2007, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability for healthcare benefits, the portion of the present value of
plan promises to pay benefits in the future that are not covered by future normal cost contributions, was $224.1 million, the
actuarial accrued liability for healthcare benefits at that date was $335.2 million.

The Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB for the last three years is presented below.

SHPRS Schedule of Funding Progress Last Three Calencdlar Years — OPEB
(dotzrs in thowzandz)

(A} (B} ([} (D) (Ed (F} ()
Unfundsd
Actuarial UAasL as
Actuarial Accrusd Ratio of Percentags of
Accrusd Liability Azzets to Active Active Member
Liakility “aluation (uasLl) AAL dember Pavroll
“aluation Year [AALY Agzactz (B-(C} [CH(B) Pavrall (DWF}
2007 5335232 E111,180 E224 052 332% 503,753 230.0%
2008 204 079 104,857 1808222 35.7% 85,875 Z20.3%
2005 261,084 5,880 185,205 34.1% &3,405 222 0%

D. Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP)

Pension Benefits

The ARP is a defined contribution retirement plan that is authorized under Section 3305.02, Ohio Revised Code. The ARP
provides at least three or more alternative retirement plans for academic and administrative employees of Ohio’s institutions of
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higher education, who otherwise would be covered by OPERS or STRS. Classified civil service employees hired on or after
August 1, 2005 are also eligible to participate in the ARP.

The Board of Trustees of each public institution of higher education enters into contracts with each approved retirement plan
provider. Once established, full-time faculty and unclassified employees who are hired subsequent to the establishment of the
ARP, or who had less than five years of service credit under the existing retirement plans, may choose to enroll in the ARP.
The choice is irrevocable for as long as the employee remains continuously employed in a position for which the ARP is
available. For those employees that choose to join the ARP, any prior employee contributions that had been made to OPERS
or STRS would be transferred to the ARP. The Ohio Department of Insurance has designated the companies that are eligible
to serve as plan providers for the ARP.

Ohio law requires that employee contributions be made to the ARP in an amount equal to those that would otherwise have
been required by the retirement system that applies to the employee’s position. Employees may also voluntarily make
additional contributions to the ARP.

For the year ended June 30, 2008, employers were required to contribute 0.54 percent for the period August 1, 2007 through
December 31, 2007 and 0.77 percent for the period January 1, 2008 through June 30, 2008 of a participating employee’s
salary to OPERS in cases when the employee would have otherwise been enrolled in OPERS.

Ohio law also requires each public institution of higher education to contribute 3.5 percent of a participating employee’s gross
salary, for the year ended June 30, 2008, to STRS in cases when the employee would have otherwise been enrolled in STRS.

The employer contribution amount is subject to actuarial review every third year to determine if the rate needs to be adjusted
to mitigate any negative financial impact that the loss of contributions may have on OPERS and STRS. The Board of Trustees
of each public institution of higher education may also make additional payments to the ARP based on the gross salaries of
employees multiplied by a percentage the respective Board of Trustees approves.

The ARP provides full and immediate vesting of all contributions made on behalf of participants. The contributions are
directed to one of the investment management companies as chosen by the participants. The ARP does not provide disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, postretirement health care benefits, or death benefits. Benefits are entirely
dependent on the sum of the contributions and related investment income generated by each participant's choice of
investment options.

For the State’s discretely presented major component units, employer and employee contributions required and made for the
year ended June 30, 2008, for the ARP follow (dollars in thousands):

OPERS STRE
Major Componsnt Units:
Ohio Stats University:
Emplover Contributions ... E10 020 12,850
Emplovee Contributions ... 14,738 14,143
Univerzity of Cincinnati:
Emplover Contributions . 7588 G142
Emplovee Contributions ... 5,220 & 367

NOTE 10 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

At various times since 1921, Ohio voters, by 18 constitutional amendments (the last adopted November 2005 for local
government infrastructure improvements, high-tech business research and development support, and business site
development enhancements), have authorized the incurrence of general obligation debt for the construction and improvement
of common school and higher education facilities, highways, local infrastructure improvements, research and development of
coal technology, natural resources, research and development support for high-tech business, and business site development.
Issuances for highway capital improvements, natural resources, and conservation are, in part, used for acquisition,
construction or improvement of capital assets. In practice, general obligation bonds are retired over periods of 10 to 25 years.

A 1999 constitutional amendment provided for the issuance of Common School Capital Facilities Bonds and Higher Education
Capital Facilities Bonds. As of June 30, 2008, the General Assembly had authorized the issuance of $3.35 billion in Common
Schools Capital Facilities Bonds, of which $3.29 billion has been issued. As of June 30, 2008, the General Assembly has also
authorized the issuance of $2.61 billion in Higher Education Capital Facilities Bonds, of which $2 billion has been issued.
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Through the approval of the November 1995 amendment, voters authorized the issuance of Highway Capital Improvements
Bonds in amounts up to $220 million in any fiscal year (plus any prior fiscal years’ principal amounts not issued under the new
authorization), with no more than $1.2 billion outstanding at any time. As of June 30, 2008, the General Assembly has
authorized the issuance of approximately $2.42 billion in Highway Capital Improvements Bonds, of which $1.95 billion has
been issued.

Constitutional amendments in 1995 and 2005 allowed for the issuance of $3.75 billion of general obligation bonds for
infrastructure improvements (Infrastructure Bonds). Issuances are limited to $120 million in any fiscal year through fiscal year
2013, with an increase in the annual issuance amount to $150 million for fiscal years 2014 through 2018. As of June 30, 2008,
the General Assembly had authorized $2.88 billion of these bonds to be sold (excluding any amounts for unaccreted discount
on capital appreciation bonds at issuance), of which $2.40 billion had been issued (net of $214 million in unaccreted discounts
at issuance).

Coal Research and Development Bonds and Parks, Recreation, and Natural Resources Bonds may be issued as long as the
outstanding principal amounts do not exceed $100 and $200 million, respectively. As of June 30, 2008, the General Assembly
had authorized the issuance of $231 million in Coal Research and Development Bonds, of which $158 million had been
issued.

Legislative authorizations for the issuance of Natural Resources Capital Facilities Bonds totaled $350 million, as of June 30,
2008, of which $295 million had been issued.

A 2000 constitutional amendment allowed for outstanding Conservation Projects Bonds up to $200 million. No more than $50
million may be issued during a fiscal year. As of June 30, 2008, the General Assembly had authorized the issuance of
approximately $240 million in Conservation Projects Bonds of which $200 million had been issued.

Through approval of the November 2005 amendment, voters authorized the issuance of $500 million of Third Frontier
Research and Development Bonds. Not more than $100 million may be issued in each of the first three years and not more
than $50 million may be issued in any of the subsequent fiscal years. As of June 30, 2008, the General Assembly had
authorized the issuance of $350 million in Third Frontier Research and Development Bonds, of which $80.7 million had been
issued as of June 30, 2008.

The issuance of $150 million of Site Development Bonds was also authorized through the approval of the November 2005
amendment. Not more than $30 million may be issued in each of the first three years and not more than $15 million may be
issued in any of the subsequent fiscal years. The General Assembly had authorized the issuance of $120 million in Site
Development Bonds as of June 30, 2008, of which $30 million had been issued.

General obligation bonds outstanding and future general obligation debt service requirements, as of June 30, 2008, are
presented in the table below. For the variable-rate bonds, using the assumption that current interest rates remain the same
over their term, the interest and net swap payment amounts are based on rates as of June 30, 2008. As rates vary, variable-
rate bond interest payments and net swap payments vary.

Primary Government-Governmental Activities
Summary of General Obligation Bonds
ancl Future Funding Requirements
As of June 30, 2008
(doltarz in thouzandz)

ldaturing
Fizcal Years Through Fizcal Cutztanding Authorized But
lzzusd Intere=t Rates Year Balance Unizzusd

Comman Schoolz Capital Facilties ..o 2000-07 2.5%-5.50% 2027 820853173 EEE, 000
Higher Education Capital Facilties ..o 2000-07 2.5%-5.40% 2027 1,652,103 513,000
Highweay Capital Improvemsmnts .o 1880-05 Z.£%-5.86% 2015 o67, 149 £75,000
Infrastructurs Improvementz 1850-05 2.6%-7.8% 2025 1,475,081 450,01
Coal Rezearch and Development ... 2000-0& 2.0%-5.0% 218 32615 73,000
Matural Rezources Capital Faciltiss ... 1800-07 3.0%-5.0% 2020 160,501 5E,000
Conzervation Projects 2002-07 2.3%-5.3% 2023 171,381 40,000
Third Frontisr Resesarch and Devslopment ... 2007 £ 0%-5.5% 207 82,755 2659 2a0
Site DevelopmEnt e 2007 3.4%-53% 2018 24 637 40,000
Total General OB ligation Boma e e e eeenn 27.310.376 £2.150.284
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Future Funcing of Current Interest and Capital Appreciation Bonds:
Interszt Rats

Year Ending Jung 30, Principal Intersst Swaps, Mst Total

2005 e 353,820 285274 (S104} 5525,880

E24 010 272279 (53} To7 136

E01,830 240174 - T51,004

480 835 22T 530 - T27 365

A57 440 206,078 - 703,516

20142015 1,801 875 723,017 - 2615702

2019-2023 1,524 530 312,254 - 1,836,784

20242028 456,645 356.632 - 405,777

Total Currsnt Intsrsst

and Capital Appreciation Bondz ... 25,428,885 52325136 (2157} 25.753.854

Future Funcing of Variable-Rate Bonds:

Intersst Rats

%ear Ending Jung 30, Principal Interszt Sweaps, Mst Total
2009 17235 210,881 B0 &30 537 854
200 e 10,345 10,604 5,665 35,704
20 e 21,125 10,383 G230 37745
2012 e 18,230 10,085 G117 35,433
B e T 18,125 L 5005 33,000
Z0ME20M8 . 284 400 38,885 28,208 340 471

20182023 o 240 B35 17, a2 13,255 280,805

20242028 oeeeeeeeerenen 78,585 2,050 1,287 &2.342

Total Variable-Rate Bondz oo S708.£20 2110380 o7 ALY LB05.266
Total General Obligation Bonds ..o 7,137,305
Unamortized Premiumf({Dizcount}, Net.. 217 887
Deferred Refunding Loes o (44516}
Total Carning Amouwnt ..o 27310378

For the year ended June 30, 2008, NOTE 15 summarizes changes in general obligation bonds.

Interest Rate Swaps

As of June 30, 2008, approximately $718.9 million of issued Infrastructure Improvement Bonds and Common Schools Bonds
include associated interest-rate swaps. Terms of the swap agreements are provided in the tables on pages 112 and114. Fair
value has been determined using the zero-coupon method.

Each swap counterparty is required to post collateral to a third party when their respective credit rating, as determined by
specified nationally recognized credit rating agencies, falls below the trigger level defined in the swap agreement. This
arrangement protects the State by mitigating the credit risk, and therefore termination risk, inherent in the swap. Collateral on
all swaps must be in the form of cash or U.S. government securities held by a third-party custodian. Net payments are made
on the same date, as specified in the agreements.

The State retains the right to terminate any swap agreement at the market value prior to maturity. The State has termination
risk under the contracts, particularly upon the occurrence of an additional termination event (ATE), as defined in the swap
agreements. An ATE occurs if either the credit rating of the bonds associated with a specific swap or the credit rating of the
swap counterparty falls below a threshold defined in each swap agreement. If the swap was terminated, the variable-rate
bonds would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of the termination the swap has a negative fair value,
the State would be liable to the counterparty for a payment at the swap’s fair value. Other termination events include failure to
pay, bankruptcy, merger without assumption, and illegality. No such credit events have occurred.

Interest rate risk, rollover risk, basis risk, and credit risk vary for each interest rate swap. Discussion of these risks has also
been included by swap, when applicable.
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Primary Government-Governmental Activifies
Interest Rate Swaps—Infrastruciure Improvements
As of June 30, 2008

(dollzrz in thowzands)

Criginal Counterparty's State’s Swap Termination
Type of Motational Underlving  Swap Rate at Rats at Effective (faturity}
lzzus Sweap Armount Indsx 0GL3042003 0G302008 Dats Dats Fair Valus
Infraztructurs fluating to
Improvements, Fieed knock- 563,800 SIFA Indsx 1.55% £.63% 1122001 B8ME2021 (52,213}
Series 20018 out

Credit Quality Ratings of Countsrparty:
Infraztructurs

0% Aaalfsss Bear Stearns Financial Products;, S0% A14A+ Morgan Stanlsy Capital Ssrvicss

Improvements, Floating to Actual Bond

4 g o5 RIZ 2 o
Refunding Series Ficed 2104315 Rate 1.55%% 2.058% 242612003 BMI2008 (2110}
20038
Credit Quality Ratings of Counterparty: L1fA= Morgan Stanlsy Capital Ssrvices
Infrastructurs
Improvemsnts, Flaating to Actual Bond

et g & 2042 i atl
Refunding Series Fieed 355,085 Rate 1.55% 3.04% HHEZ003 ZMIZ0M0 [ZSET)
20030
Credit Quality Ratings of Countsrparty: A1fA+ Morgan Stanlsy Capital Ssrvices
Infraztructurs Fixed to
g ZIFA Inds: ] g 2 2 c

Improvements, Floating 230,115 SIFMA Indsx 2540 1.55% 124402003 ZMIZ00 227
Series 2003F
Credit Quality Ratings of Counterparty: Aaars s JP Morgan Chaze
Infraztructurs Flaating to
Improvements, Fixed 358,725 LIBOR (See 1.80% 3.51% 2004 2023 51,762
Refunding Seriss Enhanced Rt terms below) : ; <HHE <5 (31,762}
20044 LIBOR

Credit Quality Ratings of Countsrparty: A1fA+ Morgan Stanlsy Capital Ssrvices
Termz: §8% of LIBOR (1-month LIBOR = 5.0%) or §3% of LIBOR + 25 basiz pointz (1-month LIBOR < 5.0%)

Infrastructure Improvements-Series 2001B

The State entered into an interest rate swap to convert the Series 2001B variable-rate bonds into a synthetic fixed rate to
minimize interest expense. The combination of the variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap creates a low-cost, long-
term synthetic fixed-rate debt that protects the State from rising interest rates.

The State was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair value at June 30, 2008. However, should
interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the State would be exposed to credit risk in the amount
of the derivative’s fair value.

In addition, the swap has a knock-out option. In the event the 180-day average of the SIFMA index rate exceeds seven
percent, the counterparty can knock-out (cancel) the swap. If the counterparty exercises its option to cancel, the State would
be exposed to higher floating rates.

The swap exposes the State to basis risk or a mismatch (shortfall) between the floating rate received on the swap and the
variable rate paid on the underlying variable-rate bonds. A mismatch (shortfall) would effectively raise the fixed rate that the
State pays on the swap. The SIFMA municipal swap index has proven to be a good proxy for the State’s variable-rate debt
and substantially mitigates basis risk.
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Infrastructure Improvements-Refunding Series 2003B

The State entered into an interest rate swap to convert the Series 2003B variable-rate refunding bonds into a synthetic fixed
rate through the escrow period of the refunded bonds. The combination of variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap
creates a low-cost, synthetic fixed-rate debt during the escrow period without incurring negative arbitrage, increases the
State’s variable-rate exposure after the call date, and generates expected present value savings from the refunding.

The swap matures on August 1, 2008, and the Series 2003B variable-rate bonds mature on August 1, 2017. This mismatch in
terms allows the State to increase its variable rate exposure after August 1, 2008, which is consistent with its long-term
asset/liability management policy objective.

The State was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair value at June 30, 2008. However, should
interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the State would be exposed to credit risk in the amount
of the derivative’s fair value.

Infrastructure Improvements-Refunding Series 2003D

The State entered into an interest rate swap to convert the Series 2003D variable-rate refunding bonds into a synthetic fixed
rate through the escrow period of the refunded bonds. The combination of variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap
creates a low-cost, synthetic fixed-rate debt during the escrow period without incurring negative arbitrage, increases the
State’s variable-rate exposure after the call date, and generates expected present value savings from the refunding.

The swap matures on February 1, 2010, and the Series 2003D variable-rate bonds mature on February 1, 2019. This
mismatch in terms allows the State to increase its variable rate exposure after February 1, 2010, which is consistent with its
long-term asset/liability management policy objective.

The State was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair value at June 30, 2008. However, should
interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the State would be exposed to credit risk in the amount
of the derivative’s fair value.

Infrastructure Improvements-Series 2003F

The State entered into an interest rate swap to convert a portion of the Series 2003F fixed-rate bonds into a synthetic variable
rate. The combination of fixed-rate bonds and a fixed-to-floating swap creates synthetic variable-rate debt that is exposed to
changing interest rates. The borrowing cost is less than the traditional variable borrowing cost.

The State has credit risk exposure of $27 thousand at June 30, 2008.

Infrastructure Improvements-Refunding Series 2004A

The State entered into an interest rate swap to convert the Series 2004A variable-rate bonds into a synthetic fixed rate to
minimize interest expense. The combination of the variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap creates a low-cost, long-
term synthetic fixed-rate debt that protects the State from rising interest rates.

The State was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair value at June 30, 2008. However, should
interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the State would be exposed to credit risk in the amount
of the derivative’s fair value.

The swap exposes the State to basis risk or a mismatch (shortfall) between the floating rate received on the swap and the
variable rate paid on the underlying variable-rate bonds. A mismatch (shortfall) would effectively make the fixed rate the State
pays on the swap higher. Given that the variable swap receipt is based on a taxable index (LIBOR), the State assumes the
risk of reductions in marginal federal tax rates or elimination of the tax preference for municipal securities. Those changes
would increase the interest rates on the underlying variable-rate debt but would not impact the variable-rate swap receipt
based on the LIBOR index.
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Primary Government-Governmental Activities
Interest Rate Swaps—Comimon Schools
As of June 30, 2008
(dottars in thowzandz)

Criginal Countsrparty’s State’zs Swap Termination
Tvpe of Matational Underlving  Swap Rate at Rats at Effective (aturity}
lzzus Sweap Arnount Indsx 0GL3042008 0532008 Dats Dats Fair Valus
Common Schoolz Floating to LIBOR (=== " -
! BET 000 1.85% 3.41% or4/2007  3MS2024 SE02
Seriss 20030 Fixed LIBOR ' terms below) < - (=502}

Credit Quality Ratingz of Counterparty:  S0% Aaafss JP Korgan Chaze, S0% A1.5+ Korgan Stanlsy Capital Services
Termz: 85% of 1-month LIBOR = 25 baziz pointz

o = i zEE
Common Schools, Flaating to 100,000 LIBOR (z==

2.38% 3.75% 1MS/2008  3MS2010 (55,550
Series 20054 Fixed LIBOR termz below) < < (35350

Credit Quality Ratinaz of Countsrparty: 50% AaalssAs Bear Stzarne Financial Products;  S0% AzalsA JP Morgan Chase
Termz: 67 % of 1-month LIBOR+72.8 baziz pointz

c = i =2
Common Schoolz, Floating to 100,000 LIBOR (zs=

2.38% 3.75% 1M5/2008  3MSZ010 (85,550
Series 20058 Foced LIBOR termz below) “ < (35,550}

Credit Quality Ratingz of Counterparty:  50% AaalfA S Bear Stearns Financial Productz;  50% AaaffA JP KMorgan Chazs
Termz: 67% of 1-month LIBOR +72.6 bagiz pointz

[ = i e
Carnmon Schools, Flaating to 100,000 LIBOR (ze=

1.85% 3.20% SMEZ008  GMEE025 E4TE
Serisz 20088 Fieed LIBOR terms below} < 2005 2026

Credit Quality Ratinaz of Counterparty: 50% Aa2/25- UBS AG; S0% AsalrA- Roval Bank of Canada
Termz: §5% of 1-month LIBOR = 25 basiz pointz

o . P S 1Y
Common =chools, Floatingto ¢ oy pgg  LIBOR (=== 1.85% 3.20% 6H5/2006  G/5/2026 5475

Series 20060 Fixed LIBOR termz below)

Credit Quality Ratingz of Counterparty: S50% Aa2/25- UBS AG, S0% AsalsAs- Roval Bank of Canada
Termz: 85% of 1-month LIBOR = 25 baziz pointz

Common Schools-Series 2003D
The State entered into a floating to fixed interest rate swap to convert its Common Schools, Series 2003D variable-rate bonds
into a synthetic fixed rate through March 15, 2024. The swap allows the State to achieve variable rate exposure synthetically
at a rate equal to the LIBOR index plus 25 basis points. The synthetic variable rate created under this swap exposes the State
to the risk of rising interest rates.

The State was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair value at June 30, 2008. However, should
interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the State would be exposed to credit risk in the amount
of the derivative’s fair value.

The floating-to-fixed swap exposes the State to basis risk or a mismatch (shortfall) between the floating rate received on the
swap and the variable rate paid on the underlying variable-rate bonds. A mismatch (shortfall) would effectively make the fixed
rate the State pays on the swap higher. Given that the variable swap receipt is based on a taxable index (LIBOR), the State
assumes the risk of reductions in marginal federal tax rates or elimination of the tax preference for municipal securities. Those
changes would increase the interest rates on the underlying variable-rate debt but would not impact the variable-rate swap
receipt based on the LIBOR index.
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Common Schools-Series 2005A

The State entered into an interest rate swap to convert its Common Schools, Series 2005A variable-rate bonds into a synthetic
fixed rate. The combination of the variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap creates a low-cost, long-term synthetic
fixed-rate debt that protects the State from rising interest rates.

The State was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair value at June 30, 2008. However, should
interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the State would be exposed to credit risk in the amount
of the derivative’s fair value.

The swap exposes the State to basis risk or a mismatch (shortfall) between the floating rate received on the swap and the
variable rate paid on the underlying variable-rate bonds. A mismatch (shortfall) would effectively make the fixed rate the State
pays on the swap higher. Given that the variable swap receipt is based on a long-dated taxable index (LIBOR), the State
assumes the risk of reductions in marginal federal tax rates or elimination of the tax preference for municipal securities and the
risk of the LIBOR vyield curve being flat or inverted for extended periods of time. Any changes in federal tax rates would
increase the interest rates on the underlying variable-rate debt but would not impact the variable-rate swap receipt based on
the LIBOR index. A flat or inverted LIBOR vyield curve would likely result in a shortfall between the variable-rate swap receipt
and the payments on the associated variable-rate bonds.

Common Schools-Series 2005B

The State entered into an interest rate swap to convert its Common Schools, Series 2005B variable-rate bonds into a synthetic
fixed rate. The combination of the variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap creates a low-cost, long-term synthetic
fixed-rate debt that protects the State from rising interest rates.

The State was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair value at June 30, 2008. However, should
interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the State would be exposed to credit risk in the amount
of the derivative’s fair value.

The swap exposes the State to basis risk or a mismatch (shortfall) between the floating rate received on the swap and the
variable rate paid on the underlying variable-rate bonds. A mismatch (shortfall) would effectively make the fixed rate the State
pays on the swap higher. Given that the variable swap receipt is based on a long-dated taxable index (LIBOR), the State
assumes the risk of reductions in marginal federal tax rates or elimination of the tax preference for municipal securities and the
risk of the LIBOR yield curve being flat or inverted for extended periods of time. Any changes in federal tax rates would
increase the interest rates on the underlying variable-rate debt but would not impact the variable-rate swap receipt based on
the LIBOR index. A flat or inverted LIBOR vyield curve would likely result in a shortfall between the variable-rate swap receipt
and the payments on the associated variable-rate bonds.

Common Schools-Series 2006B

The State entered into an interest rate swap to convert its Common Schools, Series 2006B variable-rate bonds into a synthetic
fixed rate. The combination of the variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap creates a low-cost, long-term synthetic
fixed-rate debt that protects the State from rising interest rates.

The State has credit risk exposure of $475 thousand at June 30, 2008.

The swap exposes the State to basis risk or a mismatch (shortfall) between the floating rate received on the swap and the
variable rate paid on the underlying variable-rate bonds. A mismatch (shortfall) would effectively make the fixed rate the State
pays on the swap higher. Given that the variable swap receipt is based on a taxable index (LIBOR), the State assumes the
risk of reductions in marginal federal tax rates or elimination of the tax preference for municipal securities. Those changes
would increase the interest rates on the underlying variable-rate debt but would not impact the variable-rate swap receipt
based on the LIBOR index.

Common Schools-Series 2006C

The State entered into an interest rate swap to convert its Common Schools, Series 2006C variable-rate bonds into a synthetic
fixed rate. The combination of the variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap creates a low-cost, long-term synthetic
fixed rate debt that protects the State from rising interest rates.

The State has credit risk exposure of $475 thousand at June 30, 2008.

The swap exposes the State to basis risk or a mismatch (shortfall) between the floating rate received on the swap and the
variable rate paid on the underlying variable-rate bonds. A mismatch (shortfall) would effectively make the fixed rate the State
pays on the swap higher. Given that the variable swap receipt is based on a taxable index (LIBOR), the State assumes the
risk of reductions in marginal federal tax rates or elimination of the tax preference for municipal securities. Those changes
would increase the interest rates on the underlying variable-rate debt but would not impact the variable-rate swap receipt
based on the LIBOR index.
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Advance Refundings

Proceeds of the refunding (new) bonds are placed in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments of the
refunded (old) bonds. These refunded amounts are considered defeased and no longer outstanding. The various trust
accounts’ assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State’s financial statements.

The State has defeased general obligation bonds in prior years and placed the proceeds in irrevocable trusts. As of June 30,
2008, the balances in these trusts for bonds defeased in prior years were $262.8 million for Infrastructure Improvement Bonds,
$32.6 million for Natural Resources Bonds, $156.3 million for Common Schools Bonds, and $106 million for Higher Education
Bonds.

NOTE 11 REVENUE BONDS AND NOTES

The State Constitution permits state agencies and authorities to issue bonds that are not supported by the full faith and credit
of the State. These bonds pledge income derived from user fees and rentals on the acquired or constructed assets to pay the
debt service. Issuers for the primary government include the Treasurer of State for the Ohio Department of Development,
including its Office of Financial Incentives, and the Ohio Department of Transportation; the Ohio Building Authority (OBA),
which has issued revenue bonds on its own behalf and for the Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation; and the Buckeye
Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority (BTSFA). Major issuers for the State’s component units include the Ohio Water
Development Authority, the Ohio State University, and the University of Cincinnati.

A. Primary Government

Economic Development bonds, issued by the Treasurer of State for the Office of Financial Incentive’s Direct Loan Program,
provide financing for loans and loan guarantees to businesses within the State for economic development projects that create
or retain jobs in the State. The taxable bonds, payable through 2026, are backed with profits derived from the sale of spirituous
liquor by the Division of Liquor Control and pledged moneys and related investment earnings held in reserve under a trust
agreement with a financial institution.

Revitalization Project revenue bonds provide financing to enable the remediation or clean up of contaminated publicly or
privately owned lands to allow for their environmentally safe and productive development. The Revitalization Project bonds,
payable through 2023, are also backed with profits derived from the sale of spirituous liquor by the Division of Liquor Control.

Pledged net liquor revenues through the maturity of the Economic Development and Revitalization Project revenue bonds total
approximately $641.6 million. During fiscal year 2008, pledged net revenues were $204.2 million. Principal and interest
requirements for fiscal year 2008 totaled $39.6 million.

Since fiscal year 1998, the Treasurer of State has issued a total of $933 million in State Infrastructure Bank Bonds for various
transportation construction projects financed by the Department of Transportation. The State has pledged federal highway
receipts and loan repayments received under the State Infrastructure Bank Loan Program as the primary source of moneys for
meeting the principal and interest requirements on the bonds. Issuances for the State Infrastructure Bank are, in part, used for
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital assets. Total pledged federal highway receipts and loan repayments
through the maturity of the bonds in 2022 are estimated at approximately $598.1 million. For fiscal year 2008, principal and
interest payments on the revenue bonds were $128.1 million and pledged receipts were $119.1 million.

BTSFA is authorized by the Ohio General Assembly to issue and to sell obligations, the aggregate principle amount of which
shall not exceed $6 billion, exclusive of obligations issued to refund, renew, or advance refund other obligations issued or
incurred. On October 29, 2007, BTSFA successfully securitized 100 percent of the projected tobacco settlement receipts for
the next 45 years through the issuance of five series of asset-backed revenue bonds, aggregating in the amount of $5.53
billion. The future tobacco settlement receipts, including related investment earnings and net of specified operating and
enforcement expenses, have been pledged to repay the bonds, which are payable through 2052. Annual principal and interest
payments on the bonds will require 100 percent of the net tobacco settlement receipts. As of June 30, 2008, the total principal
and interest payments remaining to be paid on the bonds were $19.21 billion. Principal and interest paid and total net tobacco
settlement receipts for fiscal year 2008 were $200.5 million and $345.5 million, respectively. For fiscal year 2008, net tobacco
settlement receipts exceeded principal and interest because only one semi-annual interest payment was required to be made
on the bonds prior to year-end. In the event that the assets of BTSFA have been exhausted, no amounts will thereafter be
paid on the bonds. After the bonds and any related operating expenses have been fully paid, any remaining tobacco
settlement receipts will become payable to the State. The bonds include fixed rate serial bonds, fixed rate current interest
turbo term bonds, and capital appreciation turbo term bonds which will convert to fixed rate current interest turbo term bonds.
They were issued to fund long-lived capital projects at state-supported institutions of higher education and to pay the State’s
share of the cost of rebuilding elementary and secondary school facilities across the State. Additional information on these
bonds can be found in BTSFA’s stand-alone financial report.
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Revenue bonds accounted for in business-type activities finance the construction costs of the William Green Building, which
houses the main operations of the Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation in Columbus. The debt issuance for the William
Green Building has been used for acquisition and construction of capital assets. The bonds are collateralized by lease rental
payments pledged by BWC to OBA. The lease rental payments are based on the estimated debt service of the bonds, but are
limited to an amount appropriated by the Ohio General Assembly in the biennial budget. Total pledged payments through the
maturity of the bonds in 2014 are estimated at approximately $111 million. For fiscal year 2008, both the total lease rental
payments and the principal and interest payments on the revenue bonds were $20.4 million.

The principal and interest requirements on the OBA revenue bonds that matured during fiscal year 2008 were paid from
rentals received under long-term lease agreements. The last debt service payments on the OBA bonds were made during
fiscal year 2008.

Revenue bonds outstanding for the primary government, as of June 30, 2008, are presented below.

For the year ended June 30, 2008, NOTE 15 summarizes changes in revenue bonds.

Future bond service requirements for revenue bonds of the primary government, as of June 30, 2008, are presented below.

Primary Government
Revente Bonds
As of June 30, 2008
(dollarz in thouzandz}

ldaturing
Fizcal Years Through Cuzstanding
lz=usd Intere=t Rates Fizcal Year Balance
Governmental Activities:
Treazurer of State:
Economic Development 1857-08 & 7%-7.7% 2025 205,802
Revitalization Projsct ......... 2003-05 2.5%-5.0% 2023 136,622
State Infrastructure Bank .. 2002-0& 3.0%-5.0% 2022 518 358
Buckeve Tobacco Ssttlement Financing Authority...... 2003 £ 0%-7.5% 2082 5,455,305
Total Gowvernmental Activitiss ... 5,413,182
Business-Type Activifies:
Bursau of Waorkerz® Compengation e 2003 1.6%-4.0% 204 07 286
Total Buzinszs-Type Activities o o7 286
Total Rewsnus Bonds ... £5.510.455
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Primary Government
Future Funcing Requirements for Revenue Bonds

As of June 30, 2008
(dallarz in thouzandz)

Governmental Activitiss Buzinezs-Typs Activitiss Total
“ear Ending Juns 30, Principal Intersst Total Principal  Intersst Total Principal Intersst Total
2008 e 135,805 3328220 3465215 316,005 34606 520,611 152,000 3333,626 S485, 526
2010 e 148 835 323,075 72713 15830 3,887 18,757 185,565 26,845 452 510
200 e 130 655 3ETOE 455363 15365 3,100 18,074 155,520 BT A74 33T
202 e 133,530 308,046 447 676 15,800 2326 18,216 140 520 31,372 450,802
PLLL ) b T 117,300 302,533 418833 15915 1,543 17 455 133,215 304,078 437,201
2014-2M& ... G40 655 14155158 20858504 15200 751 15,851 G54,885 1,417 570 2,082,555
2019-2023 ... TE4 E4D 1,238,563 1,803,108 - - - 754 54D 1,238,568 1,503,108
2024-2028 ... 624 220 1,043 451 1,667,681 - - - 624 220 1,043 451 1,667,681
2028-2035............. 805,330 &r1,588 1479915 - - - 805,330 &r1,588 1479919
2034-2038............. 88,810 G24, 058 1,423,885 - - - 88610 G284 058 1,423,865
2030-2043. . 1,050,840 EE53,002 1,603,032 - - - 1,050,240 53,002 1,603,032
20442048 ... 1,355,567 3,188,504 4 Edd 161 - - - 1,355,567 3,188,504 4 Lad 161
2049-2052 ... 133.855 3263444 3417300 - - - 133.856 3253444 3417300
8,452 863 13,558 311 20452174 4805 16202 111,007 G547 888 1405513 20,583,181
M=t Unamortized
Premium/(Dizcount).... (F2,001} - (F2,001) 3,788 - 3,788 (28,213} - (28,213}
Defsrred Refunding
LoSs e 7 .680} - 7680} (1,307} - 1,307} (2,887} - (2,857}
Total oo S5.413182 513000311 E20412400 SOV 286 _BM16202 5113480 55510458 _Sq4015513 _S20.525 081

B. Component Units

Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) bonds and notes provide financing to local government authorities (LGA) in the
State of Ohio for the acquisition, construction, maintenance, repair, and operation of water development projects and solid
waste projects, including the construction of sewage and related water treatment facilities. The principal and interest
requirements on OWDA obligations are generally paid from investment earnings, federal funds and/or repayments of loan
principal and interest thereon from the LGAs.

A portion of OWDA'’s outstanding bonds has been issued for the Water Pollution Control Loan Program, which provides low-
cost financing to LGAs for the construction of wastewater treatment facilities. In the event pledged program revenues, which
consist of interest payments from the LGAs and reimbursement for construction costs, are not sufficient to meet debt service
requirements for the bonds, the General Assembly may appropriate moneys for the full replenishment of a bond reserve. As of
December 31, 2007, approximately $1.42 billion in bonds were outstanding for this program.

Future bond service requirements for the Water Pollution Control Loan Program revenue bonds, as of December 31, 2007,
were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,  Principal Intere=t Total
2008 e 270,285 57,155 137 240
&0,£20 83,527 144 347
85,180 5o oig 145 108
&0,805 EE G40 145 535
71,3580 51,405 122,785
P e e 1 I 358,080 202,521 585,581
20182022 423 635 101,332 524 05T
20232027 oo 180,860 14,374 185,134
1,368,735 816,270 1,885,005

M=t Unamortized

Premiumf{Dizcount)...... 83,852 - 83,852
Deferred Refunding Lozs. (31,056} - (31,056}
Total oo 21.421.531 26162370 22057 801

Of the outstanding revenue bonds and notes reported for the OWDA component unit fund, approximately $99.6 million in
bonds have adjustable interest rates that are reset weekly at rates determined by the remarketing agency. As of December 31,
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2007 the rate for variable-rate bonds was approximately 3.5 percent.

Generally, bonds and notes issued by the state universities and state community colleges are payable from the institutions’
available receipts, including student fees, rental income, and gifts and donations, as may be provided for in the respective
bond proceedings, for the construction of educational and student resident facilities and auxiliary facilities such as dining halls,
hospitals, parking facilities, bookstores and athletic facilities.

Except as previously discussed with respect to OWDA’s Water Pollution Control Loan Program bonds, the State is not
obligated in any manner for the debt of its component units.

Future bond service requirements for revenue bonds and notes reported for the discretely presented major component units,
as of June 30, 2008, are shown below.

Major Component Units
Future Funding Requirements for Revenue Bonds
As of June 30, 2008
(dollarz in thouzandz)

Cthio Water Development Authority Ohio State Univerzity Univerzity of Cincinnati
Year Ending (12431020071
December 31 or June 30,  Principal Interest Total Principal  Intersst Total Principal  Interest Total
202285 E113,704 5315800  ER0DO0ST  E31,347 EGR40014  EGRLRTR0 540030 5104730
164,885 103,145 255,110 33,602 25,134 56,736 32,520 £5 8580 79410

140,100 95380 235480 44205 23722 68,018 34955 45353 80,308
144 G50 88688 233,348 36320 22,1298 535440 37985 43648 81,633
148,215 81934 231,148 45788 19,123 64911 39,455 41,680 81,135

2013-2017 705,075 319,021 1024086 127355 75880 203335 227505 174518 402,023
20182022 oo 623,315 162,083 785378 122853  4B08T 168,040 235005 108881 345785
20232027 oo 281 205 34365 315,570 70211 21352 91563 173,060 52313 225373
2028-2032 .. 34605 5,639 40,244 47 64D 6,358 53898 82480 10,780 93,260
2033-2037 .. 4,845 74 5,118 10,781 140 10,921 3,055 153 3,208

2,450,280 31,004 222 E3 454502 3,048,003 271,872 51,319,885 5523600 S573,255 51,406 935
Met Unamortized

Premiumf{Discount}...... &6,580 - 80,580 - - - 8,547 - 8,547
Deferred Refunding
LOBE oo (24,182} - (54,182} - - - - - _
Total o 22,485,897 51004232 Z3488.818 51045013 271,872 31318885 S032227 S573.255 51,505,452

NOTE 12 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The Ohio Building Authority (OBA) and the Treasurer of State issue special obligation bonds reported in governmental
activities.

OBA bonds finance the capital costs of categories of facilities including correctional facilities and office buildings for state
departments and agencies and, in some cases, related facilities for local governments. These issuances are, in part, used for
acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital assets.

Under the authority of Chapter 154, Ohio Revised Code, the Treasurer of State is the issuer of special obligation bonds that
finance the cost of capital facilities for state-supported institutions of higher education, mental health and retardation
institutions, parks and recreation, and cultural and sports facilities. These issuances are, in part, used for acquisition,
construction, or improvement of capital assets.

Elementary and Secondary Education Bonds, which the Treasurer of State issued for the Department of Education, finance
the construction costs of capital facilities for local school districts. During fiscal year 2008, all debt service payments for
Elementary and Secondary Education Bonds were made and no amounts remained outstanding at the end of the fiscal year.

The State reports OBA bonds issued for capital projects that benefit state agencies as special obligation bonds, while OBA
bonds issued to finance the costs of local government facilities are reported as revenue bonds (See NOTE 11).

Pledges of lease rental payments from appropriations made to the General Fund, Highway Safety and Highway Operating
Special Revenue funds, and Underground Parking Garage Enterprise Fund, moneys held by trustees pursuant to related trust
agreements, and other receipts, as required by the respective bond documents, secure the special obligation bonds. The

119



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 12 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS (Continued)

lease rental payments are reported in the fund financial statements as interfund transfers.

Special obligation bonds outstanding and bonds authorized but unissued, as of June 30, 2008, are presented in the following
table.

Primary Government-Governmental Activifies
Special Ohligation Bondls
Az of Jung 30, 2008 (dolsrs in thouzandz)

ldaturing
Fizcal Years Throuah Fizcal Outztanding Authorized but
lz=usd Intere=t Rates Yedr Balance Unizzusd
Cthio Building Authority 1883-0& Z.0%-5.0% 2025 31,634,373 S225,600
Treasurer of Stats Chapter 152 Bondz 1857-05 3.1%-5.5% 2020 850,945 363220

52.EB5 318 2511825

Future special obligation debt service requirements, as of June 30, 2008, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

“Year Ending Jung 30, Principal Interest Total
2008 e E351,585 5115435 Z470,010
341,775 100947 447 732
313,800 Bd 455 395 065
285,270 50 885 355,168
235,000 57,053 285 083
705205 161,321 &59,525
Z0B-Z023 o 25& 585 40,575 305,161
20242028 o 33.750 2273 35,033
2537 70 8348057 372 TVT

Met Unamortized

Premiurf(Dizcount)............ o7 616 _ 97 615
Deferred Refunding Lozs.. 50,077} - 50,077
Tota] e £2. 585318 E634807 E3330.318

For the year ended June 30, 2008, NOTE 15 summarizes changes in special obligation bonds.

In prior years, the OBA and the Treasurer of State defeased certain bond issues by placing the proceeds of new bonds in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.

Accordingly, the various trust accounts’ assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State’s financial
statements. As of June 30, 2008, $360.5 million and $122.8 million of OBA and Chapter 154 special obligations bonds,
respectively, are considered defeased and no longer outstanding.

NOTE 13 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

A. Primary Government
As of June 30, 2008, approximately $187.3 million in certificate of participation (COP) obligations were reported in
governmental activities.

In fiscal year 1992, the Ohio Department of Transportation participated in the issuance of $8.7 million of COP obligations to
finance the acquisition of the Panhandle Rail Line Project. Beginning in fiscal year 2005, the Ohio Department of
Administrative Services participated in the issuance of $146.1 million of COP obligations to finance the acquisition of the Ohio
Administrative Knowledge System (OAKS), a statewide Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system. These issuances are, in
part, used for acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital assets.

In fiscal year 2008, the Ohio Department of Administrative Services participated in the issuance of $40.1 million of COP
obligations to finance the cost of acquisition of the State Taxation Accounting and Revenue Systems (STARS).

Under the COP financing arrangements, the State is required to make rental payments from the Transportation Certificates of
Participation Debt Service Fund, the OAKS Certificates of Participation Debt Service Fund, the STARS Certificates of
Participation Debt Service Fund and the General Fund (subject to biennial appropriations) that approximate the interest and
principal payments made by trustees to certificate holders.
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Obligations outstanding for the primary government under COP financing arrangements, as of June 30, 2008, are presented in
the following table.
Primary Government — Governmental Activities
Cerfificate of Parficipation Obligations
As of June 30, 2008
(dottarz in thowzandz)

ldaturing
Through Crutztanding
Fizcal Year lzzusd Intsre=t Rates  Fizcal Year Balance
Department of Transportation:
Panhandle Rail Ling Project .o 1002 6.50% 2012 23,210
Department of Administrative Services:
Chio Adminiztrative Knowlsdos Syetem (OAKSY o Z005-2008 3.1%-525% ZMe 143275
State Taxation Accounting and Revenus System (STARS)... 2005 3.0%-5.0% Zme 40,851
Total Certificates of Participation ..o 167,338

As of June 30, 2008, the primary government’s future commitments under the COP financing arrangements were as follows
(dollars in thousands):

*ear Ending Principal Interest Total
2008 EBE10 E7 488 517,280
14,725 7,535 22251
15,405 4,550 F2 373
18,230 6,123 24 353
17 555 5,258 22 824
20142018 . 81,625 13,088 104,713
20M8-2023... 13,200 280 13,480
180,550 45,853 237 213

M=t Unamortized

Premium........ g,778 - 8,778
Total S187.338 £45.853 £233.880

For the year ended June 30, 2008, NOTE 15 summarizes changes in COP obligations.

B. Component Units
For the State’s component units, approximately $5.1 million in COP obligations are reported in the component unit funds. The
obligations finance building construction costs at The Ohio State University.

During fiscal year 2008 debt service payments for the outstanding obligations at the University of Cincinnati and University of
Akron were made. No outstanding amounts remain for obligations at these universities as of June 30, 2008.

As of June 30, 2008, future commitments under the COP financing arrangements for the State’s component units are detailed
in the table below.

Component Units
Future Funding Requirements for Cerfificate of
Participation Obligations
As of June 30, 2008
o Stale Univarsity

“ear Ending Juns Principal Interest Total
2008 e, 2405 5242 2547
£25 232 G4y
445 202 G4y
455 180 545
480 156 645
2845 31 3.158
25075 £1.313 £5.388
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As of June 30, 2008, in addition to bonds and certificates of participation obligations discussed in NOTES 10 through 13, the
State reports the following noncurrent liabilities in its financial statements (dollars in thousands):

Mon-Current Liahilities
Govermmental Activities:

Compenzsated Abzences S305, 045
Capital Leazes Payabls .. 504
Litigation Liabilities ... 4603
Eztimated Claims Pavable ..o 0 857
Liakility for Escheat Property e 256,017
Total Governmental Activitiss ... 26881232
Busimess-Type Activities:
Compenzated Abzences 35537
Capital Leazes Pavable e 12
Warkerz® Compenzation:
Benesfitz Pavakls ... 17,800,345
CHRET e 1,880,572
Deferred Prize Awards Pavable ... TE0, 188
Tuition Bensfitz Pavable o 785800
Total Buzineze-Tvpe Activities ... 21.156.454
Total Primary Governmsnt ... =21.837 678

For the year ended June 30, 2008, NOTE 15 summarizes the changes in other noncurrent liabilities. Explanations of certain
significant noncurrent liability balances reported in the financial statements follow.

A. Compensated Absences
For the primary government, the compensated absences liability, as of June 30, 2008, was $434.3 million, of which $398.8
million is allocable to governmental activities and $35.5 million is allocable to business-type activities.

As of June 30, 2008, discretely presented major component units reported a total of $160.8 million in compensated absences
liabilities, as detailed by major component unit in NOTE 15.

B. Lease Agreements

The State’s primary government leases office buildings and office and computer equipment. Although the lease terms vary,
most leases are renewable subject to biennial appropriations by the General Assembly. If the likelihood of the exercise of a
fiscal funding clause in the lease agreement is, in the management’s judgment, remote, then the lease is considered
noncancelable for financial reporting purposes and is reported as a fund expenditure/expense for operating leases or as a
liability for capital leases.

Assets acquired through capital leasing are valued at the lower of fair value or the present value of the future minimum lease
payments at the lease’s inception. Capital leases are used for the acquisition of capital assets.

Operating leases (leases on assets not recorded in the Statement of Net Assets) contain various renewable options as well as
some purchase options.

Any escalation clauses, sublease rentals, and contingent rents are considered immaterial to the future minimum lease
payments and current rental expenditures. Operating lease payments are recorded as expenditures or expenses of the related
funds when paid or incurred.

The primary government’s total operating lease expenditures/expenses for fiscal year 2008 were approximately $87.5 million.

Future minimum lease commitments for operating leases and capital leases judged to be noncancelable, as of June 30, 2008,
were as follows (dollars in thousands):
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Primary Governiment

COperating

ear Ending Juns 30, Legzez
ZO05. e 54233
163
&0
14

Capital Leases

Buzinszs-
Year Ending Governmesntal Tvpe
Jungz 30, Activities Activities Total
2008 g2203 ) 52,302
1,877 3 1,880
1,740 - 1,740
1,656 - 1,656
1478 - 1478
2330 - 2330
11,383 12 11,385
Armount for
Intsrest............. (1,575} - (1,575}
Prezent Valus of
Met Minirmum
Leaze Payments... 20804 12 20.818

As of June 30, 2008, the primary government had the following capital assets under capital leases (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government

Buzinsz=s-
Eovernmental Type
Activities Activitisz Total
Equipment ... 521,763 k) 21,782
Wehicles o 431 - 481
Total o £22 244 518 E22 253

Amortization expense for the proprietary funds within the Statement of Activities is included with depreciation expense.
Capital leases are reported under the “Refund and Other Liabilities” account in the proprietary and component unit funds.

Future minimum lease commitments for capital leases judged to be noncancelable and capital assets under capital leases for
the discretely presented major component unit funds, as of June 30, 2008, are presented in the table on the following page.
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Kajor Component Units

Capital Leasss
COhio State Univerzity

ear Ending June 30, Univerzity  of Cincinnati
ZODD e EBATD 815,285
2010..... 6,380 15,159
2011.... 4 185 14,140
EEHE ..... 2 855 13,711
el 1y b 2351 12,580
Z01E2018 e T35 81,251
ZOVE-20E3 e _ 5E 347
20282028 <o _ 37,690
20202033 e _ 17.308
Total KMinimum Leaze Payments. .. 24778 242 BB
LAmount forintersst . (1,767} [B8,556}
Prezent Valus of Met Kinimum

Leaze Payments.....ccveeeennens 23,008 153,725
Equipment & Wehiclss 553,082 3 -
Buildings ..o - 162,966
Total o S53 047 S1&2.556

C. Litigation Liabilities

In instances when the unfavorable outcome of a pending litigation has been assessed to be probable, liabilities are recorded in
the financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, $4.7 million in liabilities ultimately payable from various governmental funds has
been recorded for this purpose. For information on the State’s loss contingencies arising from pending litigation, see NOTE 19.

D. Estimated Claims Payable

For governmental activities, the State recognized $6.6 million in estimated claims liabilities, as of June 30, 2008, for damaged
state vehicles covered under the State’s self-insured program, which was established in the General Fund for this purpose at
the Department of Administrative Services.

Additionally, the State reported $3.3 million in estimated claims for defaulted loans under the Ohio Enterprise Bond Programs
at the Department of Development, as of June 30, 2008. The program is included in governmental activities and is accounted
for in the Community and Economic Development Special Revenue Fund.

E. Liability for Escheat Property
The State records liability for escheat property to the extent that it is probable that the escheat property will be reclaimed and
paid to claimants. As of June 30, 2008, the liability totaled approximately $258 million.

F. Worker's Compensation

Benefits Payable

As discussed in NOTE 20, the Worker's Compensation Enterprise Fund provides benefits to employees for losses sustained
from job-related injury, disease, or death. The Bureau has computed a reserve for compensation, as of June 30, 2008, in the
amount of approximately $17.60 billion. The reserve, which includes estimates for reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported, is included in the “Benefits Payable” balance reported for the enterprise fund.

G. Deferred Prize Awards Payable

Future installment payments for the deferred prize awards payable are reported at present value based upon interest rates
that the Treasurer of State provides to the Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund. The interest rates, ranging from 3.8 to 7.8
percent, represent the expected long-term rate of return on the assets restricted for the payment of deferred prize awards.
Once established for a particular deferred prize award, the interest rate does not fluctuate with changes in the expected long-
term rate of return. The difference between the present value and gross amount of the obligations is amortized into income
over the terms of the obligations using the interest method. As of June 30, 2008, this payable totals $740.2 million.
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Future payments of prize awards, stated at present value, as of June 30, 2008, follow (dollars in thousands)

Year Ending Jung 30,

ZODE e 205,025
PO e 77,736
2O e 75,016
1 U 74,030
203 T4 TE5
ZOEZ2MMB . 350127
OB . 185,163
ZO2EZ028 e 74,345
2028203 e AF 780
ZOEE 20 . 1,087
1,068,025
Unamortized Dizcount ..o (325,837}
M=t Prize Liability oo _ ET4D1EE

The State reduces prize liabilities by an estimate of the amount of the prize that will ultimately be unclaimed.

H. Tuition Benefits Payable

The actuarial present value of future tuition benefits payable from the Tuition Trust Authority Enterprise Fund was
approximately $799.8 million, as of June 30, 2008. The valuation method reflects the present value of estimated tuition
benefits that will be paid in future years and is adjusted for the effects of projected tuition increases in state universities and
state community colleges and termination of participant contracts under the plan.

The following assumptions were used in the actuarial determination of tuition benefits payable: 6.5 percent rate of return,
compounded annually, on the investment of current and future assets; a projected annual tuition increase of six percent for
2009 and 2010, and nine percent thereafter, as well as a 2.5 percent Consumer Price Index inflation rate. The effect of
changes due to experience and actuarial assumption changes follow (dollars in millions):

Actuarial Rezerve, az of Juns 30, 2007 . 2285
ALdjustment to Beginning of Years

AEEEIR e 1.9}
Intsre=st on the Defict at 7 Percent ... 1.8
Inweztment Lozs .o (B7.7)

Lower-Than-Azzumed Tuition Increaze . G.1

Change in Azsumption for Futurs

[

Tuition Grovth.. . 31.4
Interezt Gain on Lats Tuition Payouts ... 07
Change in the inveztment

return azsumption. ... [23.3)
L0011 1= OO U USRS UR U ORR 4.1
Actuarial Deficit, a2 of Juns 30, 2008 (2402}

As of June 30, 2008, the market value of actuarial net assets available for the payment of the tuition benefits payable was
$759.6 million.

I. Other Liabilities

The Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund reports approximately $1.98 billion in other noncurrent liabilities, as of June 30,
2008, of which 1.) $1.83 billion is comprised of the compensation adjustment expenses liability for estimated future expenses
to be incurred in the settlement of claims, as discussed further in NOTE 20, 2.) $88.9 million represents premium payment
security deposits collected in advance from private employers to reduce credit risk for premiums collected in subsequent
periods, and 3.) $56.7 million consists of other miscellaneous liabilities.
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A. Primary Government
Changes in noncurrent liabilities, for the year ended June 30, 2008, are presented for the primary government in the following
table.

Primary Government
Changes in Noncurrent Liahilities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(dotlarz in thouzandz)

Amount Dus

Balance Balance Within Cing
Govermmental Activities: Junes 30, 2007 Additions Reductions Juns 30, 2008 Year
Bondzs and Motes Pavable:
Zeneral Obligation Bondz (MOTE A0} ... E7 583,266 5208 836 EBEED. 726 57,310,376 BEE0ATO
Revenue Bondz (MOTE 11} oo &11,810 £,820, 750 ZIBATE 5,413,182 137,045
Special Obligation Bendz (NOTE12) ... 25855105 85.671 &7T 45T 2565318 356,475
Total Bonds and Motes Payabls ... 11,361,281 8,223,257 1,275,881 18,305,877 1,043,580
Certificates of Participation (MOTE 13} ... 122182 75073 10,819 187,336 0,253
Other Moencurrent Liakilities (MOTE 1£):
Compenzated Absences o 250 288 332570 365,412 385,546 L T
Capital Leazss PAYabls e 18,737 1,533 10,455 8804 1,857
Litigation Liabilties ..o 4 608 - - 4 608 -
Eztimated Claimz Payable ... &7 4 DE5 2,085 oa57 2313
Liakility for Ezcheat Property .o 307 245 - 40,775 258017 &1.573
Total Other Mencurrent Liakiltiss ................. TR 744 340,548 448,071 §51,.222 141,017
Total Moncurrent Liakilties ... 13 373 207 £5.630.770 £1.735 851 ST ATT 435 S1.184 B0
Business-Type Activifies:
Bondz and Motes Pavable:
Revenue Bondz (MOTE 11} e 2115740 E5FT 218,031 Z07 286 216,005
Other Mencurrent Liakilties (MOTE 1£):
Compenzated Abzences 40,2389 24 685 20 567 35,537 3,810
Capital Leases Pavable .o 22 - 10 12 9
Warkerz’ Compenzation:
Benefitz Pavable oo 17,412,655 2058 088 2770408 17,600,345 1,802 226
Other:
Adjustment Expensss Liability ... 1,858,528 - 23,535 1,834,583 451,030
Premium Payment S=curity Deposite .. 87 803 4 007 2,857 25,513 -
MiZCelansows e Z2A87 07 o4 53,430 55,661 &5 661
Deferred Prize Awards Pavable ... Gel Sed 162,883 103,588 T40, 188 2873
Tuition Benefitz Pavable ..o &r1,000 - 71,200 788 200 T4 400
Warkerz’ Compenzation Claimz-
Auditar of State’s Offics 120 - 120 - -
Total Other Mencurrent Liabilitiss ... 20,873,754 3,247 557 3.064.857 21,155,454 2562800
Total Moncurrent Liabilties ..o Z21.080 404 £3.245.134 23.083.285 Z21.253.740 L2 570814

The State makes payments on bonds and notes payable and certificate of participation obligations that pertain to its
governmental activities from the debt service funds. The General Fund and the major special revenue funds will primarily
liquidate the other noncurrent liabilities balance attributable to governmental activities.

For fiscal year 2008, the State’s primary government included interest expense on its debt issues in the following
governmental functions rather than reporting it separately as interest expense. The related borrowings are essential to the
creation or continuing existence of the programs they finance. The various state subsidy programs supported by the
borrowings provide direct state assistance to local governments for their respective capital and construction or research
projects. None of the financing provided under these programs benefits the general operations of the primary government, and
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accordingly, such expense is not reported separately on the Statement of Activities under the expense category for interest on
long-term debt.

{in 000z)

Goverminental Activifies:
Primary, Sgcondary and Other Education ....... 402 e
Higher Education Support ..o 142 075
Health and Human Services. . 520
Environmental Protection

and Matural RE2oUrcss e 1,033
Comrmunity and Economic Deveslopment......... 104,537

Total Intersst Expenss.

Chargsd to Governmental Functions ... 28524083

B. Component Units
Changes in noncurrent liabilities, for the year ended June 30, 2008 (December 31, 2007 for the Ohio Water Development
Authority), are presented in the following table for the State’s discretely presented major component units.

Major Component Units
Changes in Honcurrent Liahilifies
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{dollarz in thouzandz)

Armount Dus

Balance Balance Within One
Juby 1, 2007 Additionz Reductionzs Junes 30, 2005 Year
Schoo! Facilitizs Commizsion:
Intsrgovernmental Payvable ... 22,110,318 5517343 033,365 51,694 255 1,051,808
739 537 &7 705 105
&2.111.055 2517 880 033 957 21.685.0M1 £1.051.814
Ofio Viaisr Developmsant Authority:
Revenus Bonds & MNotsz Pavabls (MOTE A1) ... 52,566 950 £4D 550 5130,803 52 485 607 B201,875
Compenzated AbEenCes™ e 181 Py 3 180 -
= = S S 2587111 248,572 £130.808 &2 £B5.8TT 2201875
Ofip Stete Univarzinye
Compenzated AbEENCESE® e 21,275 212,283 25,5923 207 035 28,521
Capital Leasss Pavabls® .o 24 44 5,088 8233 23,008 T AT
Other Ligbiltiss® oo 108,857 12,873 o 085 110,685 4011
Revenugs Bondz & Motsz Pavable (MOTE 11} ... 1,088,482 10,428 50,505 1,048,013 S08,0585
Certificates of Participation (MOTE 13} oo 5,465 - 380 5,075 405
TOED e £1.316.426 240.880 E73.508 21.283.200 B527.002
Univerzity of Cincinnati:
Compsnaatsd ABESENCSE™ e 26e 205 1,827 22,571 a2, 0ad 333,526
Capital Leazes Payabls* ... 150 515 - E700 153,725 7505
Other Ligbiltiss® oo 45,108 65,920 76,500 36,228 1,780
Revenus Bonds & Motss Pavable (MOTE 11} ... 490G, 289 275,289 251,351 932 227 55,6808
Certificates of Participation (MOTE 13} oo an - a0 - -
= = S S &1.178.500 S343.845 £337.1M £1.185.044 £88.431

*Liakility iz reported under the "Refund and Other Liakilitis=™ account.
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The State of Ohio, by action of the General Assembly, created various financing authorities for the expressed purpose of
making available to non-profit and, in some cases, for profit private entities lower cost sources of capital financing for facilities
and projects found to be for a public purpose. Fees are assessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred.

The authorities’ debt instruments represent a limited obligation payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities.
Most of the bonds are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of acquired property
transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. This debt is not deemed to constitute debt of the State or a pledge of the
faith and credit of the State. Accordingly, these bonds are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

As of June 30, 2008 (December 31, 2007 for component units), revenue bonds and notes outstanding that represent “no
commitment” debt for the State were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Cutztanding

Lrmount
Primary Govermnant:
Crhio Department of Development:
Cthio Enterprize Bond Program ... 2164 820
Hozpital Faciltiss Bonds o 7,320
Crhio Department of Transportation:
Akron-Canten Airport Projsct Bonds........... G220
Total Primany Government ... S175.460
Component Units (T2:37/07):
Crhio Water Development Authority ..., Z2.284 405
Crhio Air Quality Development Authoriby .. 1,500,000
Total Component Unitz ... Z23.604 205

NOTE 17 FUND DEFICITS, “OTHER” RESERVES AND DESGINATIONS

A. Fund Deficits
The following individual funds reported deficits that are reflected in the State’s basic financial statements, as of June 30, 2008
(dollars in thousands):

Primarny Govermnant:
lajor Government Fundsz:

Revenus Distribution. ..o (245350}
Monmajor Governmental Fundz:

Higher Education Improvementz

Special Revenus Fund....oee (185, 71£)
Menmajer Propristary Funds:

Tuition Trust Autheriby... (31,207}

Total Governmeantal Fundz: (5243 2711}

Component Unifs:

liajor Componsnt Units:

School Faciltie: Cormmizzion Fund ... (22,107 570}
Monmajor Component Unitz:

Cthin Capital Fund. ..o 14,117}
Total Componesnt Unitz: (52,121,687}

B. “Other” Fund Balance Reserves and Designations
Details on the “Reserved for Other” account reported in the governmental funds, as of June 30, 2008, are presented in the
table on the following page.

The unreserved fund balance for the General Fund, as of June 30, 2008, has been designated for budget stabilization in the
amount of $1.01 billion.
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Primary Governiment
Governmental Funds — Reserved for Other
As of June 30, 2008
(dottarz in thowzands)

Job, Family,
and Other Manmajor Total
Hurnan Highway Governmental Gowernmental
Eeneral Fund SEMVIicES Education Operating Fundz Fundz
Compenzated Ab2ences o £25 544 £3,270 5342 E4 505 £8,033 £42 5OT
Prepaidz (includsd in “Other Az=stz™) ... 17,803 2155 203 3275 8,271 28512
Adwances to Local Governmentz 35,539 23875 - - - G221
Othio Enterprize Bond Program ... - - - - 10,000 10,000
Loan Guarantes Programs ..o 1 - - - 18,372 18373
Az=etz in Excess of

Debt Service Requiremems ... - - - - ) 3

Environmental Protsction and
Matural RE2oUrces e - - - - 1,783 1,783
Community and Ecenomic Development ... - - - - 35,5808 35,808
Total Reserved for EAET e S61.8587 28101 Soi5 STTET 251.971 S201.081

NOTE 18 JOINT VENTURES AND RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

A. Joint Ventures

Great Lakes Protection Fund (GLPF)

The Great Lakes Protection Fund is an lllinois non-profit organization that was formed to further federal and state
commitments to the restoration and maintenance of the Great Lakes Basin’s ecosystem. The governors of seven of the eight
states that border on the Great Lakes comprise the GLPF’s membership. Under the GLPF’s articles of incorporation, each
state is required to make a financial contribution. Income earned on the contributions provides grants to projects that advance
the goals of the Great Lakes Toxic Substances Control Agreement and the binational Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement.

Each governor nominates two individuals to the GLPF’s board of directors who serve staggered two-year terms. All budgetary
and financial decisions rest with the board, except when they are restricted by the GLPF’s articles of incorporation.

Annually, one-third of the GLPF’s net earnings is allocated and paid to the member states in proportion to their respective cash
contributions to the GLPF. The allocation is based on the amount and period of time the state’s contributions were invested.
GLPF earnings distributions are to be used by the states to finance projects that are compatible with the GLPF’s objectives.
Ohio applies its distribution (approximately $640 thousand) to the operations of its own projections program, known as the
Lake Erie Protection Program, which is modeled after the GLPF.

Required contributions and contributions received from the states, which border the Great Lakes, as of December 31, 2007
(the GLPF’s year-end), are presented below (dollars in thousands):

Contriution  Contribution  Contribution

Requirsd Received Percentags

fichigan ............... E25,000 325,000 30.9%
Indiana* .............. 16,000 - -
Minoiz 15,000 15,000 18.4%
(1] 11 14,000 14,000 17.3%
Hewe York ... 12,000 12,000 14.85%
Wizconzin ... 12,000 12,000 14.8%
innezota ... 1,500 1,500 1.0%
Pennevlvania ....... 1,500 1,500 1.5%
Total oo ZO7.000 251.000 100.00%

*The State of Indiana has not yet elected to join the Great Lakes Protection Fund.
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Summary Financial information for the GLPF, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, was as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Cazh and Investments .. 2138,010
ORhEr A2REte e 373
Total Asssts o, 2138383

Total Ligbiltiss oo 24,085
Total Met Aesets 135,288
Total Liabiltiez and Mst Azssts . £138.383

Total Revenuss and Other Additions ... 10,881
Total Expenditures .o (7. 78945}
Met Increass in Mst Azeste £3.085

In the event of the Fund’s dissolution, the State of Ohio would receive a residual portion of the Fund’s assets equal to the
lesser of the amount of such assets multiplied by the ratio of its required contribution to the required contributions of all
member states, or the amount of its required contribution.

Local Community and Technical Colleges

The State’s primary government has an ongoing financial responsibility for the funding of six local community colleges and
eight technical colleges. With respect to the local community colleges, State of Ohio officials appoint three members of each
college’s respective nine-member board of trustees, county officials appoint the remaining six members.

The governing boards of the technical colleges consist of either seven or nine trustees, of whom state officials appoint two or
three members, respectively, the remaining members are appointed by the local school boards located in the respective
technical college district.

The Ohio General Assembly appropriates moneys to these institutions from the General Fund to subsidize operations so that
higher education can become more financial accessible to Ohio residents. The primary government also provides financing for
the construction of these institutions’ capital facilities by meeting the debt service requirements for the Tobacco Settlement
revenue bonds issued by the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority, the Higher Education Capital Facilities general
obligation bonds issued by the Ohio Public Facilities Commission (OPFC), and Higher Education Facilities special obligation
bonds, previously issued by the OPFC, for these purposes. The bonds provide funding for capital appropriations in the Special
Revenue Fund, which are available to the local community and technical colleges for spending on capital construction.

Fiscal year 2008 expenses that were included in the “Higher Education Support” function under governmental activities in the

Statement of Activities for state assistance to the local community and technical colleges are presented on the following page
(dollars in thousands).
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COperating Capital

Subzidiss Subsidies Total

Local Community Colleges:
CUWANDTE e e 281,253 25,530 267,182
JEfTEr=on 4516 - 4 516
Lakeland 18,162 Z2211 20373
Lorain County oo 28,571 7,021 33,582
Rin Grands . 5,450 - 5,455
L1 L T U 50,078 1.9 g2.007
Total Local

Community Colleges .. 165,065 17,102 183,165
Technical Colleges:
Belmont .o 5170 o2 5,862
Central Omio e 8875 To5 5471
Hocking oo 15,555 1514 18,880
Jamez A Bhodes o 877o 1,847 10,626
RAAFION oo 5401 - Loy
ZAME oo eeeen 5,080 &3é 5933
Morth Central 8,077 B31 8,805
SEATK e 18,563 3012 21,575
Total Technical Colleges ... 77420 0,325 86,746

Total o 243 485 5264258 S260.014

Information for obtaining complete financial statements for each of the primary government’s joint ventures is available from
the Ohio Office of Budget and Management.

B. Related Organizations

Officials of the State’s primary government appoint a voting majority of the governing boards of the Ohio Housing Finance
Agency, Ohio Turnpike Commission, the Petroleum Underground Storage Tank Release Compensation Board, the Higher
Education Facility Commission, and the Ohio Legal Assistance Foundation. However, the primary government’s accountability
for these organizations does not extend beyond making the appointments.

During Fiscal year 2008, the State had the following related-party transactions with its related organizations:

e The General Fund reports $228 million loans receivable balance due from the Ohio Housing Finance Agency. The
State made the loans to finance and support the agency’s housing programs.

e The Ohio Department of Taxation paid the Ohio Turnpike Commission $2.3 million from the Revenue Distribution
Fund for the Commission’s share of the State’s motor vehicle fuel excise tax allocation.

e Separate funds, established for the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, Petroleum Underground Storage Tank Release
Compensation Board, and the Higher Education Facility Commission, were accounted for on the primary
government’s Ohio Administrative Knowledge System. The primary purpose of the funds is to streamline payroll and
other administrative disbursement processing for these organizations. The financial activities of the funds, which do
not receive any funding support from the primary government, have been included in the agency funds.

® From the Job, Family and Other Human Services Fund, the Public Defender’s Office paid the Ohio Legal Assistance
Foundation approximately $8 million for administrative services performed under contract for the distribution of state
funding to nonprofit legal aid societies

NOTE 19 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Litigation

The State, its units, and employees are parties to numerous legal proceedings, which normally occur in governmental
operations. Pending litigation affecting the Department of Education and the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation is discussed
below.
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Department of Education (ODE)

Litigation pending in the Hamilton County Court of Appeals contests that the Ohio Department of Education improperly and
retroactively recalculated the number of district residents attending community schools during fiscal year 2005. Plaintiff
Cincinnati City School District Board of Education claims this resulted in significant reductions in state funding in fiscal years
2006 and 2007. Those claims are based on statutory theories. The trial court entered summary judgment in favor of Plaintiff
on November 22, 2006, and a final judgment on January 5, 2007, in an amount of $4.7 million. A liability for $4.7 million has
been included as “Other Noncurrent Liabilities-Due in More Than One Year” account for governmental activities in the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets. A liability of $1.6 million has been included as “Refund and Other Liabilities”
account for the General Fund in the governmental funds Balance Sheet.

Bureau of Workers’ Compensation (BWC)

Litigation is currently pending before the Ohio Supreme Court relating to premium dividend credits that were denied to
previously active participants in the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation/Industrial Commission’s (BWC/IC) retrospective rating
plan (RRP) and then changed to other plans. This action was filed on behalf of all employers that paid premiums under a RRP
during any year from 1995 through 2002, and any subsequent year in which premium dividend credits were granted. After
three of the plaintiffs became self-insured, they continued to pay dollar-for-dollar claims costs under their continuing RRP
obligations, but did not pay premiums. The premium credit was also denied to a fourth plaintiff that left the RRP and went to a
group-rated state plan. This plaintiff received credits for paid premiums during the years it was group-rated, but did not receive
credit for paid claims costs. The trial court denied class certification in this case. In February 2007, the 10m District Court of
Appeals affirmed the trial court’s ruling for BWC. The plaintiffs have filed an appeal.

A class action case has been filed alleging that BWC/IC identifies permanent total disability (PTD) recipients not represented
by counsel and encourages them to settle their PTD claims for substantially less than their actuarial present value. The
plaintiffs contend that BWC refused to conduct good-faith settlement negotiations with PTD recipients represented by counsel.
The trial court denied BWC’s motion to dismiss and/or change of venue, and granted class certification. The 8" District Court
of Appeals has issued a ruling affirming the trial court’s rulings. BWC has appealed to the Ohio Supreme Court. In May 2008,
the Ohio Supreme Court reversed the Court of Appeals’ decision and held that, because this matter is a claim against the
State for money due under a contract, and not a claim of equitable restitution, it must be brought before the Ohio Court of
Claims. To date, plaintiffs have not filed action in the Court of Claims.

BWCI/IC is involved in litigation challenging policies related to lump sum advancements made to PTD recipients. This action
alleges that BWC/IC has improperly recouped monies from PTD recipients by continuing to deduct monies from the plaintiff's
benefits in an amount greater than the advance plus interest.

The ultimate outcome of the litigation related to BWC discussed to this point cannot be presently determined. Accordingly, no
provision for any liability has been reported in the financial statements. Management is vigorously defending the cases
outlined above.

BWC/IC was also involved in litigation in which the plaintiff argued that BWC/IC can only change reimbursement rates by
promulgating a rule under ORC Chapter 119. The trial court issued a declaration that BWC/IC improperly reduced
reimbursement fees to the hospitals. BWC appealed to the 10™ District Court of Appeals. A decision was issued in March
2007 affirming the decision of the trial court. BWC/IC did not appeal the decision to the Ohio Supreme Court. BWC/IC has
offered to settle with hospitals that may be impacted by this case. In February 2008, BWC/IC sent settlement release
agreements to 274 affected hospitals. An estimated liability of $73.7 million was accrued with payments of $33.1 million made
during fiscal year 2008.

All other legal proceedings are not, in the opinion of management after consultation with the Attorney General, likely to have a
material adverse effect on the State’s financial position.

B. Federal Awards

The State of Ohio receives significant awards from the Federal Government in the form of grants and entitlements, including
certain non-cash programs. Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant
agreements and applicable federal regulations, including the spending resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants
are subject to either the Federal Single Audit or to financial compliance audits by the grantor agencies of the federal
government or their designees. Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these audits may become liabilities to the State.

As a result of the fiscal year 2007 State of Ohio Single Audit (issued in April 2008), $7.4 million of federal expenditures were in

question as not being appropriate under the terms of the respective grants. No provision for any liability or adjustments has
been recognized for the questioned costs in the state’s financial statements, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
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C. Loan Commitments
As of June 30, 2008, commitments to finance program loans from the primary government’s budgeted nonmajor special
revenue funds are detailed below (dollars in thousands):

Community and Economic Developrmeant

Crhio Department of Development:
Lowe- & Moderate-Incoms

Housing Loans.....ooooeeee 26,719
Browenfisld Revolving Loans ... &el
7.500

Local infraziruciure and Transponation improvemsents

Crhio Public Waorks Commizzion:

State Capital Improvementz Loans ... 40 230
Revolving Loans .o &£7.873
grianz

Total Monmajor Governmental Funds ... 2104702

As of December 31, 2007, loan commitments for the Ohio Water Development Authority, a discretely presented major
component unit, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Water Pollution Control Loan ... 2450 450
FreshWatsr o oo 107
Orinking YWater Assiztance . 78,258
Community A2=istancs e 14,202
Rural Utility Services 5,871
Other Projects e 5,750

Total e 2563.656

D. Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2008, the Ohio Department of Transportation had total contractual commitments of approximately $1.99 billion
for highway construction projects. Funding for future projects is expected to be provided from federal, primary government,
general obligation and revenue bonds, and local government sources in amounts of $941.4 million, $403.5 million, $575.6
million and $66.6 million, respectively.

As of June 30, 2008, other major non-highway construction commitments for the primary government’'s budgeted capital
projects funds and major discretely presented component unit funds were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government
ental Healthildsntal Retardation

Faciltiez Improvemsntz ... 32775
Parkz and Recreation Improvementz ... 7674
Adminiztrative Services

Building IMprovsments .o 21,813
Youth Services Building Improvemsntz ... 8,535
Adult Corrgctional Building Improvementz ... 27 656
Highway Safety Building Improvemsnts ... 25
Crhio Parkz and Matural Resourcss ... 7.553

Total o 107647

KMajor Component Units
Crhio State University oo SZET 003
University of Cincinnati ... 255 472
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E. Tobacco Settlement

In November 1998, the Attorneys General of 46 states, five U.S. territories, and the District of Columbia signed the Master
Settlement Agreement (MSA) with the nation’s largest tobacco manufacturers. This signaled the end of litigation brought by
the Attorneys General against the manufacturers in 1996 for state health care expenses attributed to smoking-related claims.
The remaining four states (Florida, Minnesota, Mississippi, and Texas) settled separately.

According to the MSA, participating tobacco manufacturers are required to adhere to a variety of new marketing and lobbying
restrictions and provide payments to the states in perpetuity.

As of October 23, 2007, the State of Ohio transferred future rights to the Master Settlement Agreement revenue to the
Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority (BTSFA).

While BTSFA’s share of the total base payments to the states through 2025 will not change over time, estimating the amount
of annual payments that actually will be received in any given year can be complex. Under the terms of the MSA, payments
are subject to a number of adjustment factors, including an inflation adjustment, a volume adjustment, and a potential
adjustment for market share losses of participating manufacturers. Some of these adjustments, such as the inflation
adjustment, result in BTSFA receiving higher payments. Other factors, such as the volume adjustment and the market share
adjustment can work to reduce the amount of the State’s annual payments received.

In addition to the base payments, BTSFA will receive payments from the Strategic Contribution Fund. The Strategic
Contribution Fund was established to reward states that played leadership roles in the tobacco litigation and settlement
negotiations. Allocations from the Fund are based on a state’s contribution to the litigation and settlement with the tobacco
companies. These payments are also subject to the adjustment factors outlined in the MSA.

During fiscal year 2008, Ohio received $333.1 million, which is approximately $32.2 million or 8.8 percent less than the pre-
adjusted base payment for the year.

As of June 30, 2008, the estimated tobacco settlement receivable in the amount of $281.9 million is included in “Other
Receivables” reported for the governmental funds. The receivable includes $29.1 million for payments withheld from BTSFA
beginning with fiscal year 2008 and $76.5 million for payments withheld from the State for fiscal years 2006 and 2007. These
amounts were withheld by the cigarette manufacturers when they exercised the market share loss provisions of the MSA. The
moneys are on deposit in an escrow account until pending litigation between the States and the manufacturers is resolved.
Both the Authority and the State contend that they have met their obligations under the MSA and are due the payments
withheld.

The tobacco settlement receipts provide funding for the construction of primary and secondary school capital facilities,
education technology for primary and secondary education and for higher education, programs for smoking cessation and
other health-related purposes, biomedical research and technology, and assistance to tobacco-growing areas in Ohio.

The enforcement of the terms of the MSA has been challenged by lawsuits and may continue to be challenged in the future.

In the event of an adverse court ruling, BTSFA may not have adequate financial resources to make payment on the BTSFA
revenue bonds, as discussed in NOTE 11.

134



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 19 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

A schedule of pre-adjusted base payments and payments from the Strategic Contribution Fund for the State of Ohio in future
years follows (dollars in thousands):

Pre-Adjusted

Pavmentz

from the

Pre-adjustsd Strateqic

%'=ar Ending =4 Baze Contribution
Jung 30, Paymsntz Fund Total

2008 E347 164 E22 871 E370,035
351,203 23137 374,340
355,467 23418 378,885
350852 23,554 383,345
353,783 23,556 3BT 740
201 4-2018.... 1,928 044 DB 503 2,025,547
2018-2023.... 22334812 - 2,233,412
2024-2028.... 2,378,755 - 2,378,795
2028-2033.... 2,538,413 - 2,539,413
2034-2038.... 2,7085M - 2,708,501
2038-2043.... A - 2,884 75T
20842048, ... 3,085,885 - 3,088,885
20482053 2,580,051 - 2,580,051
Total 222 115.888 2215688 523 331.587

NOTE 20 RISK FINANCING

A. Workers’ Compensation Benefits

The Ohio Workers’ Compensation System, which the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and the Industrial Commission
administer, is the exclusive provider of workers’ compensation insurance to private and public employers in Ohio who are not
self-insured. The Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund provides benefits to employees for losses sustained from job-
related injury, disease, or death.

The “Benefits Payable” account balance reported in the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund, as of June 30, 2008, in the
amount of approximately $17.60 billion includes reserves for indemnity and medical claims resulting from work-related injuries
or ilinesses, including actuarial estimates for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. The liability is based
on the estimated ultimate cost of settling claims, including the effects of inflation and other societal and economic factors and
projections as to future events, including claims frequency, severity, persistency, and inflationary trends for medical claims
reserves. The compensation adjustment expenses liability, which is included in “Other Liabilities” in the amount of
approximately $1.83 billion, is an estimate of future expenses to be incurred in the settlement of claims. The estimate for this
liability is based on projected claim-related expenses, estimated costs of the managed care Health Partnership Program,
nonincremental adjustment expense, and the reserve for compensation.

Management of the Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and the Industrial Commission of Ohio believes that the recorded
reserves for compensation and compensation adjustment expenses make for a reasonable and appropriate provision for
expected future losses. While management uses available information to estimate the reserves for compensation and
compensation adjustment expenses, future changes to the reserves for compensation and compensation adjustment
expenses may be necessary based on claims experience and changing claims frequency and severity conditions. The
methods of making such estimates and for establishing the resulting liabilities are reviewed quarterly and updated based on
current circumstances. Any adjustments resulting from changes in estimates are recognized in the current period.

Benefits payable and the compensation adjustment expenses liability have been discounted at five percent to reflect the
present value of future benefit payments. The selected discount rate approximates an average yield on United States
government securities with durations similar to the expected claims underlying the Fund’'s reserves. The undiscounted
reserves for the benefits and compensation adjustment expenses totaled $36.40 billion, as of June 30, 2008, and $37 billion,
as of June 30, 2007. For additional information, refer to the Fund’s separate audited financial report, for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008.
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Changes in the balance of benefits payable and the compensation adjustment expenses liability for the Workers’
Compensation Program during the past two fiscal years are presented in the table below.

Primary Government
Changes in Workers' Compensation Benefits Payable
anc Compensation Acjustment Expenses Lialility
Last Two Fiscal Years
{dollarz in miltionz)

Fizcal ¥ear Fizcal ¥ear
2003 2007

Benefitz Pavabls and Compsnzation

Adjustment Expenses Liability, 88 0F U 1 e 18,271 E18,907
Incurred Compenzation

and Compensation Adjustment BameilE e 2,587 2 657
Incurred Compenzation

and Compsneation Adjustmesnt Benefit Pavmentz

and Other AOJUSIMENTE e eeme e e e e eneae 2 423) [2.323)
Benefitz Pavabls and Compsnaation

Adjustment Expenzes Ligbility, 82 0F JUNE 30 e 518,435 E18.371

B. State Employee Healthcare Plans
Employees of the primary government have the option of participating in the Ohio Med Health Plan, the United Healthcare
Plan, or the Aetna Plan, which are fully self-insured health benefit plans.

Ohio Med, a preferred provider organization, was established July 1, 1989. Medical Mutual of Ohio administers the Ohio Med
plan under a claims administration contract with the primary government.

The United Healthcare and the Aetna plans, originally health maintenance organizations, became self-insured healthcare
plans of the State on July 1, 2002 and July 1, 2005, respectively.

All plans have contracts with the primary government to serve as claims administrator. Benefits offered while under the
State’s administration are essentially the same as the benefits offered before the two plans became self-insured
arrangements.

When it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, the primary government
reports liabilities for the governmental and proprietary funds. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported. The plans’ actuaries calculate estimated claims liabilities based on prior claims data, employee enrollment
figures, medical trends, and experience.

Governmental and proprietary funds pay a share of the costs for claims settlement based on the number of employees opting
for plan participation and the type of coverage selected by participants. The payments are reported in the Payroll Withholding
and Fringe Benefits Agency Fund until such time that the primary government pays the accumulated resources to Medical
Mutual of Ohio, United Healthcare, or Aetna for claims settlement.

For governmental funds, the primary government recognizes claims as expenditures to the extent that the amounts are
payable with expendable available financial resources. For governmental and business-type activities, claims are recognized
in the Statement of Activities as expenses when incurred.

As of June 30, 2008, approximately $100.6 million in total assets was available in the Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits
Agency Fund to cover claims for the Ohio Med Health Plan. Changes in the balance of claims liabilities for the plan during the
past two fiscal years were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Ohio Mecd Health Plan

Fizcal Fizcal
Year 2008  Year 2007
Claimz Liakiltiez, az of July 1 ... 533,185 535882
Incurred ClRIMS e 217 475 205,041
Claims Paymsnts ... (216,805} (207 538}
Claimz Liabilties, az of Juns 30 .. £33,835 233,185
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As of June 30, 2008, the resources on deposit in the Agency Fund for the Ohio Med Health Plan exceeded the estimated
claims liability by approximately $66.8 million, thereby resulting in a funding surplus. Eighty-five percent or $56.8 million of the

surplus, representing the employer share, was reallocated back to the governmental and proprietary funds, with a resulting
reduction in expenditures/expenses.

As of June 30, 2008, no assets were available in the Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits Agency Fund to cover claims
incurred by June 30 for the United Healthcare Plan, thereby resulting in a funding deficit. Changes in the balance of claims
liabilities for the plan during the past fiscal year were as follows (dollars in thousands):

United Healthcare Plan

Fizcal Fizcal

Year 2008  Year 2007
Claimz Liakiltiez, az of July 1 ... EB010 E7,885
Incurred ClRIMS e 70,374 89 555
Claims Paymsnts ... (68,262} 85,231}
Claimz Liabilties, az of Juns 30 .. B 422 5,010

As of June 30, 2008, the estimated claims liability exceeded resources on deposit in the Agency Fund for the United
Healthcare Plan by approximately $43.6 million, thereby resulting in a funding deficit. Eighty-five percent or $37.1 million of

the deficit, representing the employer share, was reallocated back to the governmental and proprietary funds, with a resulting
increase to expenditures/expenses.

As of June 30, 2008, approximately $25.8 million in total assets was available in the Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits
Agency Fund to cover claims incurred by June 30 for the Aetna Plan, thereby resulting in a funding surplus. Changes in the
balance of claims liabilities for the plan during the past fiscal year were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Aetna Plan
Fizal Fizal
Year 2008 Year 2007
Claimz Ligkiltizz, as of July 1 ... ED ETD 26,154
Incurrsd Claime ..o 80713 85, 204
Claimz Payments ... 70,175} (54,913}
Claimz Liakilties, a= of Jung 30 .. 38,105 385710

As of June 30, 2008, the resources on deposit in the Agency Fund for the Aetna Plan exceeded the estimated claims liability
by approximately $16.7 million, thereby resulting in a funding surplus. Eighty-five percent or $14.2 million of the surplus,

representing the employer share, was reallocated back to the governmental and proprietary funds, with a resulting reduction in
expenditures/expenses.

C. Other Risk Financing Programs

The primary government has established programs to advance fund potential losses for vehicular liability and theft in office.

The potential amount of loss arising from these risks, however, is not considered material in relation to the State’s financial
position.
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A. Bond Issuances
Subsequent to June 30, 2008 (December 31, 2007, for the Ohio Water Development Authority), the State issued major debt as
detailed in the table below:

Deht [ssuances
Subseruent to June 30, 2008
(dotlarz in thouzandz)

Met Interest
Rats or Trus
Date lzzusd Intersst Cost Amount

Primary ‘Govemment:
Ofio Public Fecilitize Commizzion-Genaral Obligation Sondsz:
Infraztructurs Improvements, Series 20088 e 100808 S523% SZ40,000

Third Frontisr Resesarch and Devslopment, Seriss 20084 DEf0s0a S525% 38,580
Common Schoolz Capital Faciltiss - Refunding Seriss 2 041308 257% &1 170
Higher Education Capital Faciltisz, Refunding Serisz 20 Mg 265% 86,0905
Infraztructures Improvementz, Refunding Seriss 20094, MAane 1.81% 40 805
Third Frontisr Resesarch and Devslopment, Seriss 2008 0224108 2.60% g0,000
Common Schoolz Capital Facilties - Refunding Serisz 20088, ... DEME0D 2.852% 102,570
Higher Education Capital Faciltiez, Refunding Serisz 20088 ... DEMBNoD 2.01% A5 745
Infraztructurs Improvementz, Refunding Serisz 200808 DEMane 281% &1,880
Coal Developmsnt, Series ... D258 3.03% 10,000
Coal Development, Seriss K DEIZ505 221% 30,000
Total General Obligation Bonds o 241,755
Treasursr of State-Revenus Sondz:
State Infraztructure Project, Serisz 20081 . 1021105 4800 375,000
Total Revenus Bonde e 375,000
Trezzurer of Sigle-Specizl Qbiigaiion Sondsa:
lental Health Capital Facilities, Series 20084 e 0712005 378% 30,000
Cuttural and Sportz Capital Faciltisz, Refunding Series 20084 ... O7I2060a 2.88% 5,580
Cultural and Sportz Capital Faciltisz, Series 20088 11808 3.73% 30,000
Parkz and Recreation Facilities, 20088 e 030308 3.66% 35,000
Development Azziztance Tax Exsmpt, Serisz 20084 . 0EM 00 3.55% 28,280
Development Azziztance Taxabls, Seriez 20088 naM oo 4 28% 23,710
Qo Suitding Avthorily-Speciz! Qbiigaiion Sondz
State Faciltiss (Adminiztrative Building), S=ries 20084 . 041308 412% 0,000
Ctate Faciltiez (Adult Correctional Facility), Serisz 20004, Mg 4. 13% A),000
Highwray Safety, Series Z008A e DM 308 1.83% 1,885
Juwsnilz Correctional Facility, Refunding Series 20084 e MA3n0ne 2.08% 37,825
State Faciltisz (Adminiztrative Building), Refunding Serisz 20088 DE021058 3.44% 85,580
Ctate Faciltiez (Adult Correctional Facility), Refunding Seriss 200808 0orozng 3455 TE, 700
Juwenile Correctional Facility, Refunding Series 20088, .. 0efzne 3.53% 18,820
Total Special Obligation Bonds e £70,580
Ofio Depariment of Adminizirstive Services Cerlificates of Panicipstion:
Chio Adminiztrative Knowledos Syetem, Series 20004 0122108 3.28% 38,105
Total Cerificates of Participation e 38,105
Total Primany Government e S1.725.450
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Debt [ssuances

Subsequent to June 30, 2008
(dottars in thouzands)

Major Component Units:
Qo Wister Davelopment Authorily Debi
Eond Anticipstion Motes (BANE):
20084 Community Az=iztance Refunding BAM=s .
20088 Community Asgiztance BAN: ...
2008 =tate Match WPCLF Revenus BAN:
Total Bond Anticipation Hotss e

Commercial Peper
2008 Frezh Water Commercial Paper, Seriss A
(Rlaturity Dater ST 0B e
2008 Frezh Water Commesrcial Paper, Seriss B
(hlaturity Dates A 2 e
2008 Frezh Water Commercial Paper, Seriss C
T gy N 1 ) T
2008 Frezh Water Commercial Paper, Seriez D
(Waturity Dats: T2MEI0E e e e e e s
2008 Frezh Watsr Commercial Paper, Serisz E
(Rlaturity Date 2 D e
2008 Frezh Water Commercial Paper, Seriez F
(Maturity Date: 532,500 on /0308 and 532,500 on /08/08).............
2008 Frezh VWatsr Commercial Paper, Serisz G
(laturiy Date: A D e
Total Commercial PADST e

FRevenue Sonds:
2008 Drinking Water Azziztance Refunding Revenus Bond=. ...
20084 Fresh Water Revenus Bonds.
2008 WPCLF Refunding Revenus Bondz-VWater Quality Seriez 2009
2008 Community Asziztance Refunding Revenus Bonds .o
Total Rewenus Bonde. .o

Total Chio Water Development Authority

Onhio State University Debt
Zeneral Recsipts Bondz,
General Receiptz Bonds,

Total Chio State Univerziby

Univerzity of Cincinnati Db
Eond Anticipstion Motes (BANE)C
Bond Anticipation Motss, Seriss Z008E
Bond Anticipation Motez, Serisz 2008H....
Bond Anticipation Motes, Series 20004
Bond Anticipation Motes, Series Z0058
Total Bond Anticipation Hotss e

S LR

=
=

Seneral Receiptz Bondz:
Zeneral Receiptz Bondz, Serisz 2008F
Zensral Receiptz Bondz, Serisz 20086
* General Receiptz Bondzs, Series 20080
Total General Receiptz Bonda. e

[fr

Equipment Leazss - COM Steinway PianoS. .. e eeseans

Total Univerzity of Cincinnati ...
* Stlect fo covamge

Met Interest
Rate or Trus

Date lzzusd Intersst Cost Arnount
030G 2.00% E24 55
110505 4 00% 2455
12104108 3.00% 40,000

88,100

000G 2.T0% 12,500
MM 00E 2.70% 12,500
0312005 1.85% 25,000
OFII0G 1.80% 85,000
101605 2.75% 40,000
12104005 0.85% 85,000
0211500 0.70% 40,000
280,000

DEI2005 3.25% - 5.00% 71,815
DE&f02I00 2.00% - 5.00% 122 205
DEZE/00 2.00% - 5.00% 220120
030508 2.00% - 5.00% 25,185
A4 435

S797 525

03005 “ariable 127 770
0600 2.00% - 5.00% 27,505
345.355

OTFIZ2I0E 2.75% 235,055
12M 805 2.00% 17,000
DEM 2000 1.50% 23,800
OFIZ1008 2.00% 3,350
108,305

1121708 “ariable 00 250
12M 805 4.00% - 5.50% 19,210
100150D 1.26% - 5.00% A0 Bo0
165,850

GMTI0E 4.02% 4071
281,336
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B. Litigation
The following cases have an effect on the State’s financial operations subsequent to June 30, 2008.

A class action case was filed against the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation (BWC) alleging that non-group-rated employers
subsidize group-rated employers, and that this bias in premiums violates various provisions of the Ohio Constitution. Plaintiffs
have asked the court to declare the group rating plan unconstitutional and require BWC to repay to the class members all
excessive premiums collected by BWC, with interest and attorney fees. In April 2008, plaintiffs filed a motion for a preliminary
injunction enjoining BWC from enforcing the group rating statutes during pendency of the action (beginning July 1, 2008). A
hearing was held on the injunction request in August 2008. Parties are awaiting the Court’s decision on the motion for
injunction. The ultimate outcome of the litigation cannot presently be determined. Management is vigorously defending this
case.

During fiscal year 2009, the Department of Education settled a case with Dayton City School District for $1.7 million. The
Dayton City School District originally intended to join the suit with the Cincinnati City School District, discussed in NOTE 19.

In the Sogg v. Department of Commerce case, the plaintiff claims a provision in Section 169.08(D) of Ohio Revised Code
creates an unconstitutional taking of property in violation of takings clause of the United States and Ohio Constitutions. In
April 2009, the Supreme Court of Ohio declared Section 169.08(D) unconstitutional. The Court held that the State may not
retain the interest earned on unclaimed funds and that claimants are entitled to interest on the funds for the four years prior to
the filing of the claim. The case was remanded to the trial court to determine the method for determining the amount of
interest owed to each claimant in the class. On August 18, 2009, the trial court issued an opinion in which it found that the
eligible class members should be awarded interest on their accounts at the rate of six percent per annum. However, this
interest rate is among several issues that are not yet resolved and will be used in the calculations of the State’s liability.

The S. H. v. Strickrath (S. D. Ohio, 2008) case, involving the Department of Youth Services (DYS), was settled in April 2008.
As a result of the settlement, DYS will implement remedial measures for mental health care, education, and other programs.
The settlement also requires structural changes to DYS facilities to address the other issues raised by the litigation. In order to
implement these remedial measures, it is projected that DYS will be required to expend an amount between $20 million and
$30 million, along with additional attorneys’ fees and costs, beginning July 2008.

Also during fiscal year 2009, the Department of Natural Resources was found liable for a maximum of $3.3 million, resulting

from an eminent domain case. The Department of Transportation also was found liable in two eminent domain cases for a
total of $9.1 million, of which $4.6 million has been on deposit with the Court for the duration of the litigation.
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